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IMPORTANT NOTICE

CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with
regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their
knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE CHART
NCIES =

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in Bermuda on 9 September 2002 under the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The Company’s shares
(the “Shares”) were listed on GEM on 16 April 2003. The following is a
corporate chart of the Company and its principal subsidiaries up to the

date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT

THE GROUP

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) recorded a loss in
its overall results for the financial year ended 31 December 2016
which there was a loss in its overall results for the financial year
ended 31 December 2015. In response to the market structure and
based on the overall plan of the Group, the Group had determined
to discontinue some sectors of operations during the year and will
focus and invest its resources in the acquisition of new business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Digital cable television business

During the year of 2016, the People’s Republic of China (the
PRC”) subsidiary 3t R RIFRF T AR A 7] (Beijing Yaao Boshi
Technology Limited*) had co-operated with local television stations
of Xinji, Dongguang and Qing County in Hebei province to develop
the cable television network that covers the three counties. The
digital transformation scheme had been implemented for the cable
television subscribers in the said three counties. The revenue
from this sector was the crucial source among the other business
sectors in the Group.

Wireless digital television value-added
services

The Group signed contracts for the operation of wireless digital
mobile television in Hebei Province, under which value-added
business such as advertisement display via display panels in public
areas was intended to be carried out. During the year of 2016, due
to the absence of satisfactory progress of the project, the Group’s
cooperation with Beijing Qian Tai Bao Xiang Capital Investment
Services Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Beijing Huaxia Innomedia
Technology Co., Ltd.) ("Beijing Qian Tai") was terminated. As a
result of the termination of the cooperation with Beijing Qian Tali,
the remaining unamortized cooperation development fee of RMB
52,315,000 (equivalent to HK$61,547,000) has been recognized
during the year of 2016. Further details on the background of
the cooperation and the termination are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Wireless digital audio integrated circuits
business

During the year 2016, the demand for the circuits was stable and
the revenue generated from this business shared a relatively little
component of the revenue. It is believed that the demand for the
circuits will remain stable in the coming years. The Directors will
keep overseeing the market changes and make fruitful solutions to
better utilize its resources.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT

PROSPECTS

The Group is principally engaged in digital cable television business,
wireless digital television value-added services and wireless digital
audio integrated circuits.

In year 2016, the Group consolidated and served its contracted
broadcasting television subscribers, and build a foundation for
achieving the overall objectives of development of the Group.
More importantly, the Group seek cooperation opportunities in
new provinces while expand its business in the provinces in which
cooperation has been established, so as to create more promising
profit growth and the long-term value for the Group.

In February 2016, the Group acquired 8.55% effective interest in &
EFRE¢ELBR S OLAEMR AR (Qingdao Guojin Precious Metal
Exchange Centre Company Limited*). Upon such acquisition, the
Group would involve in the provision of online platform for trading
and deferred spot delivery services of precious metal. During the
year of 2016, the financial performance from this new investment
not yet met the expectation from the Group due to the external
market adverse situation. The Group predicted that this new
investment opportunity would share some portion of profit to the
Group in the near future.

In March 2017, the completion of the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of JTI Securities Limited (“JTI Securities”) took
place. It provides a prime opportunity for the Group to tap into the
business of financial services which, going forward, is expected to
increase the shareholder’s value and benefit the Company and the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole.

In 2017, the Group will gradually spin-off its traditional cable
television and electronic integrated circuits businesses and gain a
foothold in advantageous sector such as financial products and
services in order to foster maximum benefits for the shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS MBHE
Year-on-Year
2016 2015 Growth
—E-RE —T—AfF Aig &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FAT
Selected financial information ETEIBER
Recognized Revenue B R = 81,218 34,679 134%
Gross profit E7 70,874 12,177 482%
Loss for the year FREE
— including non-controlling — BIRIEERAR R S
interests (58,080) (460,859) 87%
— attributable to equity owners ~ — RSB AFE(S (53,840) (452,094) 88%
Selected balance sheet data BTFEEBBRIEE
Total assets BEE 478,140 722,956 34%
Current assets MENE EE 368,640 563,310 35%
Bank balances and cash IRITEHREIRE 84,411 88,864 (5%)
Total indebtedness (EREEEEE 98,978 532,139 82%
Total equity R iR 377,394 127,069 197%
Equity attributable to EREB A\ E G
equity owners 366,943 67,382 445%
2016 2015
—B-AE —E—NF
Selected financial ratios ETE RS &
Gross profit margin FERM=E 87% 35%
Net loss margin FETIE R (72%) (1329%)
Loss per shares (basic) BREE (EX) (0.70) (10.17)
Return on equity ratio % e [B] 3 2= (0.15) 6.71)
Current ratio BN 3.72 1.06
Debt to equity ratio BEEREE 0.27 8.84
Asset turnover ratio BERAEX 5.89 20.85

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

EXPLANATIONS TO THE FINANCIAL RATIOS

Gross margin ratio is a profitability ratio that compares the gross margin
of a business to the net sales. This ratio measures how profitable a
company sells its inventory or merchandise. In other words, the gross
profit ratio is essentially the percentage markup on merchandise from
its cost. Gross profit margin in 2016 was much higher than that of 2015
due to the recognized unamortized cooperation development fee under
the sector of wireless digital television value-added services business.
Further details on the background of the cooperation and the termination
are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net loss margin measures the amount of net loss with each dollar of
sales generated by comparing the net loss contributable to the equity
owners and net sales of a company. In other words, the net loss margin
ratio shows what percentage of sales left over after all expenses were
paid by the Group.

Loss per shares (basic) is a market prospect ratio that measures the
amount of net loss attributable to owners of the Group per average
number of issued shares during the year. In other words, this is the
amount of money each share would receive if all of the loss were
distributed to the average number of issued shares during the year.

Return on equity ratio or ROE is a profitability ratio that measures
the ability of the Group to generate profit/loss from its shareholders
investments in the company. In other words, the return on equity ratio
shows how much profit/loss each dollar of common stockholders' equity
generates. It measures the loss attributable to the equity owners to the
equity attributable to equity owners.

Current ratio is a liquidity and efficiency ratio that measures a group’s
ability to pay off its short-term liabilities with its current assets. The
current ratio is an important measure of liquidity because short-term
liabilities are due within the next year.

Debt to equity ratio is a financial, liquidity ratio that compares a
company's total debt equity attributable to owners of the Company. The
debt to equity ratio shows the percentage of company financing that
comes from creditors and shareholders.

Asset turnover ratio is an efficiency ratio that measures the Group's
ability to generate sales from its assets by comparing net sales with total
assets. In other words, this ratio shows how efficiently the Group can use
its assets to generate sales.

BA TS LL REH A

EMEEREBOEN L L HEFRANEN L
Ko ZUXRFEBRREEHEFEXARNATN
KFEZ  ENXREE FREmEREKR
WBEDLMK - T —R"FEFEEZSNZ
E-0F REARESBUBRILEERBES
HERARNBHSIEREERAMY - FRASHERK
IEERZE—FHE  HRFEa M BRKRMT
320

FEBRERREREA ARGFBREL AT

HEFWAGENE —THEMELNFER
BT FEHRRBETRBRAEEX A

AR RRBHHERABD

BRER(ERN) RAEFALEEEE AR
HFEIER B EITRN FHENTISEML
Koz BWMFARENERE I BEC S
IR 8 - BRI ATKERH 5 -

BiECHRE AT EAEE G HERRAINREER
BRERAFBEEITNEFNLER - BE
2 BERREBE NS T RARERSRES
By F), B KT o HEt 2 F A AL E
B A AR SR

MR R ERENERBEEENEEH
BEENHRBERREL X - RELLEER
BUMNERAERS  BARHEESNT—
FREIH -

BERSHLERLBARAEA ARIEATE
,\ﬁﬁé\ E’Jﬁﬁ%&u@blitm‘ ’E\fﬁiﬁ\ H

BERBXRRFHERAHLAEETER
SEBEEERIUGHEWARENARERLL X -
BT ZLERBPRASERNRAEEEREH
B RARRRERIKF -

2016 FF#| ERPREZERERLF

9



10

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded a
consolidated revenue from continuing operations of approximately
HK$81.2 million (revenue from continued operations was approximately
HK$34.7 million in 2015), no consolidated revenue generated from
discontinued operations (revenue from discontinued operations was
approximately HK$1.3 million in 2015). Loss attributable to owners of
the Company was approximately HK$53.8 million, as compared to the
loss attributable to the owners of HK$452.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2015. Basic loss per share (including discontinued operations)
was approximately HKO.7 cents, as compared to basic loss per share
HK10.17 cents (including discontinued operations) for the year ended 31
December 2015.

Revenue

During the year 31 December 2016, the revenue of the Group was
principally derived from the following business segments:

(i) Digital cable television business

The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 generated from
digital cable television business amount to approximately HK$17.6
million (2015: HK$21.1 million) or approximately 22% (2015:
59%) of the total revenue including the discontinued operations
for the year 2015, representing operational revenue from basic

subscription and over value-added technology and sales of digital
cable television business related products.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEER R DT

(ii)

(iii)

Wireless digital television value-added services business

The recognised revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016
generated from wireless digital television value-added services
business amounted to approximately HK$61.5 million (2015:
HK$9.5 million) or 76% (2015: 26%) of the total revenue including
the discontinued operations. The Group signed contracts for the
operation of wireless digital mobile television in Hebei Province,
under which value-added business such as advertisement display
via display panels in public areas was intended to be carried
out. During the year of 2016, due to the absence of satisfactory
progress of the project, the Group’s cooperation with Beijing
Qian Tai was terminated. As a result of the termination of the
cooperation with Beijing Qian Tai, the remaining unamortized
cooperation development fee of RMB 52,315,000 (equivalent to
HK$61,547,000) has been recognized during the year of 2016.
Further details on the background of the cooperation and the
termination are set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Wireless digital audio integrated circuits

The revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016 generated
from the wireless digital audio products business and the related
technical services amounted to approximately HK$2.1 million (2015:
HK$4.1 million) or approximately 3% (2015: 11%) of the total
revenue including the discontinued operations.

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin of the Group was approximately 87% (2015: 35%).

As above-mentioned explanation in the wireless digital television value-

added services business under the section Revenue, the recognised

revenue was an unexceptional one causing the relatively high gross profit

margin in the year of 2016.

(i)

(iii)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Other Income

Other income amounted to approximately HK$38.2 million from
continuing operations (2015: HK$1.4 million) which included reversal of
over-provision on cost of sales, fair value gain on financial derivatives and
net gain on settlement with a customer during the year.

Administrative and Operating Expenses

Administrative and operating expenses were approximately HK$82.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2016, compared to
approximately HK$55.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Impairment losses

Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment

At the end of reporting period, the Group has determined property, plant
and equipment from continuing operations of HK$12.6 million (2015:
HK$13.8 million) as impaired. The property, plant and equipment was
acquired by subsidiaries in PRC which the directors believe that they
were probably not applicable and could hardly generate future stream of
income. After reviewing the recoverable amounts of these property, plant
and equipment, the Group determined to provide such impairment to
reflect the ability of generating future income flow.

Impairment losses on inventories

The write down of inventories amounted to HK$3.2 million (2015:
HK$4.6 million) has been recognized as expenses during the year ended
31 December 2016 as those inventories were slow-moving and obsolete
which kept in warehouse in a subsidiary for over 1 year. The Directors
reviewed the list of inventories and considered that they are probably no
longer suitable for use in operation.

Impairment losses on goodwill

The performance of part of operations in 2016 had not met the
expectation of the board of Directors (the “Board”) and resulted in net
loss. Therefore, for better utilize the limited resources, the Group aimed
to diversify the investment risk and expected new business sector will
bring new opportunities to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

The business segments to which the goodwill impairment related was
the digital cable television business. The Group acquired a wholly-owned
subsidiary, 1t FapBiE R FiTA R 2 A) in August 2014 and recorded a
goodwill of HK$91,858,000.

For annual impairment testing in the year of 2016, the recoverable
amount of the digital cable television business has been determined
based on a value in use calculation, with reference to the valuation
prepared by an independent professional valuer, Roma Appraisals
Limited. The calculation was based on the financial budgets covering
a 5 year period. For the periods after the financial budgets the growth
rate is assumed to be steady at 3%. The impairment test resulted in
the recognition of an impairment loss of goodwill of HK$11,563,000.
The pre-tax discount rate of 23.77% was used for estimating the value
in use this year while pre-tax discount rate of 23.5% and 22.88 were
used in 2014 and 2015 respectively. The auditors had reviewed the key
assumptions used by the management in the value in use calculation of
the cash-generating unit including the budgeted gross profit margin and
the discount rate adopted. Auditors also expressed the view that the
accounting treatment of the goodwill was appropriate.

An income-based approach was adopted for the valuation of the market
value of the business enterprise in both 2014 and 2015 as well as in the
year of 2016. Due to the keen market competition and the number of
subscribers could not meet the expected result, the Company provided
a prudent 5-year forecast compared to the previous years to reflect the
forecasted performance of 3t R Z8 B H 18 i G R A 7], so the Company
believe there was a need for the impairment of goodwill after the consent
and discussion of auditors.

Impairment loss on deposit for acquisition of non-current
assets

At the end of reporting period, the Board believe that the Group
should make provision of impairment of this category amounted to
HK$18,000,000 which is the half amount of the Deposit (as defined
below). After the termination of the Memorandum of Understanding (as
defined below), the Group had different ways like meeting and legal suit
with the relevant parties, but could not have any possible feedback, the
Board resolved to make such impairment loss to reflect the true and fair
view of whole picture.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNmR DN
Impairment losses on Intangible Assets

Refer to the impairment loss on goodwill, the recoverable amount of
the digital cable television business has been determined based on a
value in use calculation, with reference to the valuation. An income-
based approach was adopted for the valuation of the market value of the
business enterprise which resulted in the impairment loss of intangible
assets after the proper allocation. Moreover, some of the outdated
techniques and software under 1t R em3R R K17 AR A & contributed
the impairment loss of the intangible assets.

Impairment losses on trade receivables

The Directors impaired trade receivables which due over 365 days
as at 31 December 2016. The Directors concluded that these trade
receivables should be impaired to reflect the fair financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2016. The Directors will take further
possible actions to follow up those impaired accounts receivable. The
Board will evaluate the existing policy towards the recoverability of those
accounts receivable regularly.

Impairment loss on prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Refer to the Company’s policy, the Directors impaired this category
of which the recoverability is remote. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group had made provision of impairment of this category amounting to
Hk$151,000 to reflect the recoverability of this category.

Finance costs

Finance costs amounted to approximately HK$7.0 million (2015: HK$9.3
million), of which approximately HK$5.6 million (2015: HK$7.2 million)
represented interest expenses on redeemable and convertible bonds
issued by the Company before its maturity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately HK$20.3
million (2015: HK$35.6 million), represent a decrease of 43% of property,
plant and equipment during the year of 2016. At the end of reporting
period, the Group has determined HK$12.6 million (2015: HK$13.8
million) was impaired to reflect the true picture of the operation.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

AEBREBRENS  ARBUEREBZA
WRlEBAEREEFE AL S EMHENE
E o ARARBURAEZEERBEE 2 THE
B SYREESTRRELENEERES
1B i ERERBREMARRBZET
By R BT BE - NEREL BT EERER

8o

EERR T R"EF+-_A=+—H#H365
RUEZRBERETRRE EFRAZE
FEWEBRRE T ARME  WRBARABRZE
—ANEFE+ZA=ZT—RAZRAFHBRRL - ES
15 3% A RE SR EGE — 1T BB N S5 R A FE YR
Ao BEEERTE T GZERUBIRR 2 T E
BRZBEBEEK

FHE - BEREMERNEREEE

EFEMBARACBREABE B ERER
B AR TKRE 2 EEEN R —N
F+ZA=+—8 AEBEHZERFHIRRE
B5151,00078 7T + LARBREZER R 2 ] B4 -

=7
B & Bk 7R 49 &7,000,0008 T ( ZFE— R F -
9,300,000 7T ) * H A #95,600,000/8 7L (==

— R : 7,200,000/870) BARARETZ A E
[0 % A # R B A B EARTFrEE £ 2 FI B F L -

Y% - BFE K& %20,300,000% (=
—AF 356000008 L) BZT—RFE
2 BB REER LD 43% c G AR
AEEE EE 12,600,000 T (ZE—HF
13,800,000/ 70 ) AR E @ LEEM XM G

B o

==
=

if



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Intangible assets

Intangible assets amounted to approximately HK$8.2 million representing
a decrease of approximately 87% compared to HK$63.7 million as at
31 December 2015. Details please refer to impairment losses under
Financial Review.

Goodwill

There was no goodwill as at 31 December 2016 compared to
approximately HK$20.4 million as at 31 December 2015. Details please
refer to impairment losses under Financial Review.

Inventories

The Group implemented reviews of the recoverable amount of inventories
during the year and considered certain inventories were obsolete and
no longer suitable for use in operation. The reviews led to recognition
of an impairment loss of HK$3,243,000 (2015: HK$4,631,000) which
was expensed in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income.

Trade receivables

Total trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) amounted to
approximately HK$35.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately
68% compared to HK$110.9 million as at 31 December 2015. During
the year, the Group determined to make provision for impairment of
approximately HK$692,000 to reflect the recoverability of such receivables.
The Directors will take necessary actions for those receivables.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables amounted to approximately
HK$3.1 million as at 31 December 2016, a decrease of approximately
95% when compared to HK$62.4 million as at 31 December 2015. As
at 31 December 2016, prepayments, deposits and other receivables of
approximately HK$151,000 were impaired to reflect the recoverability
of those receivables. The Directors will from time to time to take further
actions and follow up the impaired prepayments, deposits and other
receivables.

F£+ = f =+ — H & 63,700,000 7 7T 35 4 47
87% ° FIEBELX MU IELIEAN 2R ERIE -

B

AEER_E—A"F+_A=+—BULEX
B2 MR -_ZE-RAFE+-A=+—BZREEY
#$20,400,0008 7T » ¥ IBERLHEPHEEBEAN
BEEE -

7E

AEBEEMFAFEZAIRE SR - WA
THRERIEEZERTHBESNEBPEM - %
LR BB BRI ERE 18 3,243,000 T (=&
—FRF : 4,631,000/87L)  EREREEBRRE
b2 ERATRFZH o

ERER(NIBRERERZ) AEO B
35,900,000 L BRRZZE—HF+ A
=+—HA110,900,000% 7T T B 4968% ° F
A - ANEBREE A EK) 692,000 7 TR B 1
& ARER EERGRIEN I B - EEH
MZFEYGRIBRIUNEITE) -

ANFHE - BEREMERNE

RZZTE—RE+_A=+—8 BNZKE &
© K H th FE U FRIE 49 53,100,000 78 7T + 8=
T—RAF+=HA=+—HHK 62,400,000 T
DRIB% e RZE—RF+=-A=+—0H &
IR - ke REMERFIEL 151,000 % 7T
ThHVE R B DA = B % S5 JE WOk I8 ) BT Y [B1 1 o
EERTRHRIE— ST RBEDRECTE
NFEIE - Be REMEWGRIE o

2016 FF#| ERPREZERERLF

15



16

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER R DT

Trade payables

Trade payable amounted to approximately HK$21.5 million as at 31
December 2016, a decrease of approximately 48% when compared to
HK$41.1 million as at 31 December 2015.

Other payables and accruals

Other payables and accruals amounted to approximately HK$21.7
million as at 31 December 2016, a decrease of approximately 91% when
compared to HK$240.7 million as at 31 December 2015. The decrease
of other payables and accruals was mainly due to temporary receipt of
share subscriptions amounting to HK$160,050,000 in December 2015
and the reversal of other payables after the objective evidence and the
consent from the third parties.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has 127 full-time employees
in Hong Kong and the PRC (31 December 2015: 157). The total
employees’ remuneration, including that of the Directors, amounted to
approximately HK$18.5 million (2015: HK$17.9 million).

The Group continues to provide remuneration packages to employees
according to market practices, their experience and performance.
Remuneration policy is basically determined with reference to individual
performance as well as the final results of the Group. Remuneration
to staff will be revised from time to time when warranted considering
the performance of staff. Other benefits include medical insurance
scheme and contribution of statutory mandatory provident fund for the
employees. The Group also has a share option scheme whereby qualified
participants may be granted options to acquire Shares. There have been
no major changes in staff remuneration policies during year ended 31
December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group primarily financed its operations with internally generated
cash flows. As at 31 December 2016, the cash and bank balances of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$84.4 million (2015: HK$88.9
million). The Renminbi denominated balances of approximately HK$14.7
million (2015: HK$1.1 million) were placed with licensed bank in the PRC
and the conversion of these balances into foreign currencies is subject to
the rule and regulation of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had current assets of approximately
HK$368.6 million (2015: HK$563.3 million), while its current liabilities
were approximately HK$99.0 million (2015: HK$532.1 million). The
current ratio (current asset to current liabilities) of the Group was
approximately 3.72 (2015: 1.06) and its gearing ratio (total of notes
payables and short term loan over total equity) was approximately 0.01
(2015: 0.65). Net asset value per share was approximately HK$0.05 as
at 31 December 2016 (2015: HK$0.02).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a total of 3,044,347,822
new Shares were issued. As at 31 December 2016, the authorised
share capital of the Company was HK$100,000,000 divided into
10,000,000,000 Shares and the issued share capital of the Company
was HK$83,045,380.10 divided into 8,304,538,010 Shares.

Subscription of new Shares

On 8 December 2015, the Company entered into two separate conditional
share subscription agreements with Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong and
Sino Perfect Investments Limited as subscriber respectively. Pursuant to
the share subscription agreements, the subscribers have conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to
allot and issue an aggregate of 1,740,000,000 new ordinary Shares with
an aggregate nominal value of HK$17.4 million at the price of HK$0.115
per subscription share (the “Subscriptions”).
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The reasons for carrying out of the Subscriptions were to raise funds to

strengthen its overall financial position as well as to provide funding to the

Group for its development and investment with an objective to provide

attractive returns for the Shareholders.

The Subscription was completed on 5 February 2016. The net proceeds

amounted to approximately HK$200.1 million was used by the Company

in the following manner; —

(i)

(i)

(iv)

as to approximately HK$84 million (42%) for reduction of the
Group’s level of debt;

as to approximately HK$36 million (18%) was paid to the third
party vendor as refundable deposit pursuant to the Memorandum
of Understanding (as defined below), which was terminated on 31
May 2016. The aforesaid cash deposit was not yet refunded to the
Company and details of the Memorandum of Understanding and
the deposit set out in the sub-section headed “Material Acquisition,
Disposal and Significant Investments Held” of this section;

as to approximately HK$22.8 million (11%) for the acquisition of
entired issued share capital of JTI Securities; and

as to approximately HK$43.4 million (22%) for the daily operation
of the Group and approximately HK$13.9 million (7%) will be used
for the funding of any future business developments and working
capital.

Relevant disclosure was made in the announcements of the Company
dated 8 December 2015 and 5 February 2016, and the circular of the
Company dated 12 January 2016.
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Issue of Convertible Bonds

On 8 December 2015, the Company and National United Resources
Holdings Limited (“NUR”) entered into a conditional convertible bonds
subscription agreement, pursuant to which NUR has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue
to NUR the 5% coupon convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$100 million (“First CB”). The First CB have been issued on 5 February
2016. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the First CB has been
converted in full and a total of 869,565,214 Shares have been issued
and allotted.

On 8 December 2015, the Company and Sino King Trading (HK) Co.,
Limited (“Sino King”) entered into a conditional subscription agreement,
pursuant to which Sino King has conditionally agreed to subscribe for
and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue to Sino King the
5% coupon convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$50 million
(“Second CB”). The Second CB have been issued on 19 February 2016.
The Second CB has been converted in full and a total of 434,782,608
Shares have been issued and allotted on 1 March 2016.

The reasons for issue of the First CB and Second CB were to raise funds
to strengthen its overall financial position as well as to provide funding
to the Group for its development and investment with an objective to
provide attractive returns for the Shareholders. In addition, redeemed
the 11% coupon bond in the principal amount of HK$70 million issued
by the Company to NUR on 2 April 2015 (the “Bond”) in full prior to its
maturity date on 1 April 2016 by partially offsetting the principal amount
of the First CB could save the finance cost to the Company.

The net proceeds from the issue of the First CB and the Second CB
amounted to approximately HK$150 million was used by the Company
in the following manner: —

(i) as to HK$70 million (47%) for early redemption of the Bond;
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(i) as to approximately HK$62 million (41%) for the capital injection
to WA RERAEMEHEAR AR (Shanxi Zhongze Heng Yuan
Biological Technology Company Limited*) (the “Shanxi Zhongze”);
and

(i) as to approximately HK$18 million (12%) for the daily operation of

the Group.

Relevant disclosure was made in the announcements of the Company
dated 8 December 2015, 5 February 2016 and 19 February 2016, and
the circular of the Company dated 12 January 2016.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the majority of the Group’s
income and expenses were denominated in Renminbi and Hong
Kong dollars. Up to 31 December 2016, the management of the
Company is of the opinion that the Group has insignificant exposure to
foreign exchange risk. As a result, the Group did not use any financial
instruments for hedging against fluctuation in foreign exchange for the
year ended 31 December 2016. Nevertheless, the management of
the Company will closely monitor and from time to time reassess the
exchange risk exposures of the Group and enter into non-speculative
hedging arrangements if considered necessary.

CHARGES ON GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged property, plant and
equipment amounted to HK$8,341,000 for overdue short term loans
amounted to HK$3,371,000.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS, DISPOSALS AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

Acquisition of 9.5% shareholding interest
in Million Fortune International Investment
Limited

On 1 February 2016, Joyous Raise Investments Limited (“Joyous Raise”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser and World
Dragon Enterprise Limited (“World Dragon”), an independent third party,
as vendor entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to
which, World Dragon has conditionally agreed to sell, and Joyous Raise
has conditionally agreed to acquire 9.5% shareholding interest of the
entire issued share capital of Million Fortune International Investment
Limited (“Million Fortune”) at a consideration of HK$61.75 million
(“Acquisition of Million Fortune”). Million Fortune indirectly holds 90%
equity interest in FATEl S mAZ S0 (FS)BRRAF] (formerly known
as EEHEESBERSH LAERAT]), a company incorporated in the
PRC which headquartered in Qingdao, Shandong Province, the PRC and
is primarily engaged in the provision of online platform for trading and
deferred spot delivery services of precious metals mainly being silver and
copper, and other associated services including transaction settlement
management, commodity delivery management and related consulting
services to customers nationwide in the PRC.

The completion of the Acquisition of Million Fortune has been taken place
on 19 February 2016. Relevant disclosure was made in the Company’s
announcement dated 1 February 2016.

Acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
JTI Securities Limited

On 7 June 2016 (after trading hours), Perfect Capital Global Limited
(“Perfect Capital”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
as purchaser and Ace Vantage Investments Limited (“Ace Vantage”),
an independent third party, as vendor entered into a sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which
Perfect Capital has conditionally agreed to acquire and Ace Vantage
has conditionally agreed to sell, 14,500,000 issued and fully paid up
shares of JTI Securities in the name of and beneficially owned by Ace
Vantage, representing the entire issued and fully-paid share capital of JTI
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DM

Securities (the “Acquisition of JTI Securities”). JTI Securities is principally
engaged in securities brokerage business. It is a licensed corporation
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SFO”) to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated
activities and is a China Connect Exchange Participant and a Hong Kong
Stock Exchange Participant.

On 23 March 2017, Perfect Capital and Ace Vantage entered into
a supplemental agreement to amend certain terms of the Sale and
Purchase Agreement. Completion of the Acquisition of JTI Securities
took place on 23 March 2017 in accordance with the terms and
condition of the Sale and Purchase Agreement (as supplemented by the
aforesaid supplemental agreement). Final consideration, being the sum
of the agreed premium of HK$13 million and the amount of the net asset
value of JTI Securities as at 28 February 2017, has been determined at
approximately HK$22.8 million and has been paid by Perfect Capital on
completion.

Following such completion, JTI Securities has become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of JTI
Securities will be consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
of the Company. Relevant disclosure was made in the Company’s
announcements dated 7 June 2016 and 23 March 2017.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Disposal of Assets

7 Il A 2 B S & B A R A &) (Shenzhen Champion Maxiumic Group
Co., Limited*) (“Shenzhen Champion”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as vendor and At EEREREBR R
&) (Hebei Guangdian Network Investment Limited*) as purchaser (the
“Hebei Guangdian”) entered into a conditional termination agreement
on 31 December 2013 (the “Termination Agreement”) for the sale and
purchase of the telecommunication equipment in relation to digital
cable television broadcasting network and the termination of the
cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) (being the
business cooperation agreement dated 26 November 2010 made
between Shenzhen Champion and )i 3t EE (5 B4 S E R D AR AF]
(Hebei Television Broadcasts and Information Network Group Co., Ltd*)
(“Hebei TV”) together with the subsequent subsidiary contracts made
between Shenzhen Champion and Hebei Guangdian (which performed
the Cooperation Agreement for Hebei TV) with detailed terms on the
technical cooperation and the construction and operation of the networks
between the parties). The Termination Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder had been approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting held on 10 March 2014.

During 2015, a court order (“Order”) was granted by the Shijiazhuang
Intermediate People’s Court in the Hebei Province, the PRC in relation
to a civil action brought by Shenzhen Champion against Hebei
Guangdian regarding payment in accordance with the terms of the
Termination Agreement, in which Hebei Guangdian was ordered to
pay (i) the overdue payment penalty of approximately RMB597,000
(approximately HK$756,000) due to the delay in settlement of the first
payment amounting to approximately RMB30 million (approximately
HK$38 million); (i) the second payment amounting to RMB20 million
(approximately HK$25.3 million) and the relevant default interest accrued
on the second payment; and (i) the court costs of the above civil action.

As at the date of this report, the Company received approximately
RMB34 million (approximately HK$38 million) from Hebei Guangdian and
the Company is optimistic that the remaining balance of payment could
be received during the year of 2017.
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Memorandum of Understanding

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 1 December
2015, the Company and Mr. Qu Yong Bo (B )K) (the “Vendor”), an
independent third party, as vendor entered into a non-legally binding
memorandum of understanding on 1 December 2015 (the “Memorandum
of Understanding”) setting out the preliminary proposed terms and
conditions in relation to the possible acquisition of 100% equity interest
in KSR In & ¥ a8 R B IR A 7] (Daging AORUI Bioenergy Co., Ltd.”)
(“Possible Acquisition”) and having made refundable deposit of RMB30
million (equivalent to HK$36 million) (the “Deposit”) to the Vendor after
signing the Memorandum of Understanding.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2016,
after taking into consideration of, among other factors, the preliminary
results of the due diligence review, the Board decided not to proceed
with the Possible Acquisition and accordingly, the Company served
a written notification to the Vendor after the close of trading hours on
31 May 2016 informing the Vendor of its decision not to proceed with
the Possible Acquisition. Pursuant to the terms of the Memorandum of
Understanding, the Vendor shall, within seven days from the date of the
termination of the Memorandum of Understanding, refund the Deposit to
the Company. Interest on the Deposit shall accrue at the rate of 1.5% per
month calculated on the actual number of days elapsed from the date of
termination of the Memorandum of Understanding if the Vendor is unable
to refund the Deposit in accordance with the terms of the Memorandum
of Understanding within seven days from the date of the termination.
As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 24 March 2017,
the Deposit is still outstanding and the Company has commenced legal
action against the Vendor and Jiashunda Trading Limited, the nominee
appointed by the Vendor as the recipient to the Deposit, at the Court
of First Instance in the High Court of Hong Kong on 24 March 2017 to
claim for the return of the Deposit and interest.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

FIEE S 57

WARRBHA-_ZT—RAFE+_A—RBZRAE
s ARelEBYE - MmBREE(E
F(EAEF )R -_E—RFE+-_A—B3]
NTEERHNR Az RBERE(RBER
1) EREHINBAATENBEAERKED
BERAB IR AR Z 100% Ak ([T ee de g £ 18 |)
ZHNFREBGRRGME  REFTRBEHRE S
% B MEH 2 AR 30,000,000 7T (F8E R
36,000,000787T) 2 FIiREIEE ([1RE]) °

WARBAPR T -—R"EFRAA=T—HZA
ETHHRE - ERA(ETER) ARERELR
ZNEER  EEQRETRETIRKES
Bt RZBE-R"FRAA=T—HRSZK
B ARRAEBESZELEMAN  SHET
BRETRETRRKBERZRE < RIEHR
fRETTER IR BT AR LR Rk B
HECARRERS TART - WE T ARER
IR TR RN R I AR B ARIE
BE  BHENEHARBETEIRZERB
B RARIL%AE - MARBBEHA-F
—tF=A-+HBAZLEMEE  REDH
KEE ARABERZZ—+tF=A=1+MH
REESFLZRRAEHEN MEIRZEESH
RAR (BMESHEEAKRTREZREAN) R
ERITE - UBKRERE MM SRERE -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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i

DISCUSSION ON QUALIFIED OPINION

According to the qualified opinion raised in the independent auditor’s

report, the view of the Group towards the issues as follows:

1)

2)

3)

Corresponding figures

As the impairment loss RMB111,695,000 incurred in the year of
2015, there is no impact in the financial performance of the Group
in the year of 2016 and the financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and there will have no any financial impact in the
years onwards.

Disposal group classified as held for sale
and associated liabilities

During the year of 2016, the top management of Group tried
various ways to look for the potential disposal of the sub-group.
As the macro-environment was not clear in the year of 2016,
the potential purchase was a bit prudent on different business
combinations, In the year of 2017, the Group is optimistic there is
the higher demand for mineral resources, and the top management
of the Group started negotiating with the potential buyers with the
consideration not less than the investment cost of the Group.

Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary

Due to the suspected misappropriation of certain funds in Shanxi
Zhongze, the Directors consider that it would be inappropriate to
consolidate the financial statements of Shanxi Zhongze into the
Group and since the Group has been unable to obtain reliable
financial information of Shanxi Zhongze for the year ended
31 December 2016, the Directors consider that the financial
information of Shanxi Zhongze should be de-consolidated with
effect from 1 January 2016.

Details of the aforesaid suspected misappropriation of funds are
set out in the Company’s announcements dated 14 November
2016 and 23 February 2017.
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4)

5)

Deposits for acquisition of non-current
assets

In view of the above, a provision for impairment of HK$18,000,000
to reflect the recoverability of the Deposit was made. Actions taken
in relation to receive the Deposit has been set out in the section
headed “Memorandum of Understanding”.

Other investment

The Group invested HK$61,750,000 during the year of 2016. As
it was a newly investment for the Group, it is trusted that such
investment would provide better financial impacts to the Group in
the future unless there is big change in the world market.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2016. The Company wishes to highlight
the importance of its Board in ensuring high standards of corporate
governance in the interests of its Shareholders and is committed to
identifying and formalizing best practices appropriate to the needs of the
Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize a
quality board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to
all Shareholders. The Company has compiled with the code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules
as its own code of corporate governance. Except for the deviations from
code provisions A.2.1, C.1.2 and E.1.2 which are explained below, the
Company was in compliance with all code provisions set out in the CG
Code during the year ended 31 December 2016.

Distinctive Roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The division of responsibilities
between the chairman and chief executive officer should be clearly
established and set out in writing. The roles of chairman of the Board
and the chief executive officer were separate and performed by different
individuals until 24 June 2016. As it took time for the Company to
identify a suitable candidate to be appointed as the chief executive
officer, the position of the chief executive officer remained vacant until the
appointment of Mr. Chen Rongbin as the chief executive officer on 21
July 2016.
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Monthly Updates

Code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code provides that management
should provide all members of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment of the issuer’s performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the board as a whole
and each director to discharge their duties under Rule 5.01 and Chapter
17 of the GEM Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the management of the Company did not provide monthly update to all
members of the Board, but the management keeps providing information
and update to the members of the Board quarterly.

Attendance of General Meeting

Code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code requires that the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. He should also
invite the chairmen of the audit committee, remuneration committee,
nomination committee and any other committees (as appropriate) to
attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP, the former
chairman of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Company, did not
attend the annual general meeting of the Company held on 31 May 2016
(the “2016 AGM”) due to his own official engagement.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings set out
in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as its code of conduct
for securities transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31
December 2016. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, except
for Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong sold 4,404,000 Shares on 18 November
2016 without first notifying in writing the designated Director under rule
5.61 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding securities
transactions by Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016. The
Company shall reiterate and remind the Directors from time to time in
respect of the relevant procedures, rules and requirements in relation to
Directors’ dealings in order to ensure the Directors’ compliance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the Company and
is entitled to delegate its powers to any executive Director, committees of
the Board and the management team. The Board is primarily responsible
for approving and monitoring the Company’s major corporate matters,
the evaluation of the performance of the Company and oversight of the
management. Specific tasks that the Board delegates to the Company’s
management include the implementation of strategies approved by the
Board, determining the policy for the corporate governance, monitoring
of operating budgets, the implementation of internal controls procedures,
and ensuring of compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
other rules and regulations. The Board is directly accountable to the
Shareholders and is responsible for preparing the accounts.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises ten members,
consisting of six executive Directors and four independent non-executive
Directors.

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong (Chairman)

Mr. Chen Rongbin (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qiu Bin

Mr. Gao Yang

Mr. Hu Qixian

Mr. Chen Xi

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chi Keung
Ms. Chen Yan

Mr. Xu Haiou

Mr. Chau Sen Chung

Each Director has relevant experience, competence and skills appropriate
to the business requirements of the Company. The biographical details
of the Directors are set out on pages 61 to 66 of this annual report. To
the knowledge of the Directors, the Board members have no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The chairman of the Board, being Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong, is
responsible for the management of the Board by providing leadership
for the Board and has taken primary responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and procedures are established and
that appropriate steps are taken to provide effective communication with
Shareholders and that their views are communicated to the Board as a
whole, and the chief executive officer of the Company, being Mr. Chen
Rongbin, is responsible for the day-to-day management of business of
the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term
of one year renewable automatically for successive terms of one year
each commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then current
term of appointment, and they are subject to retirement and re-election
in accordance with the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”). They
are persons of high calibre, with academic and professional qualifications
in the fields of accounting, legal, finance and economics. With their
experience gained from various sectors, they provide strong support
towards the effective discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the
Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent.
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NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.05(2) ~fRF& Al %M L™ i8 Bl 5
AND 5.05A OF THE GEM LISTING RULES 5.05(2) & 5.05A 1&HY1ER

—  Following the resignation of Mr. Lei Yong and Mr. Chiu Chi Kong  —
as independent non-executive Directors on 8 June 2016, the
number of the independent non-executive Directors did not
represent one-third of the Board as required under Rule 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules. The Company fulfilled the requirement on
15 June 2016 following the appointment of Ms. Chen Yan and
Mr. Xu Haiou as independent non-executive Directors.

—  Following the resignation of Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP and Mr. Hu  —
Dingdong as independent non-executive Directors on 20 June
2016, the number of the independent non-executive Directors did
not represent one-third of the Board as required under Rule 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules. On 24 June 2016, Mr. Tan Xiangdong
resigned as an executive Director, the number of Directors reduced
to nine and therefore the Company fulfilled the requirement on the
number of the independent non-executive Directors representing at
least one-third of the Board.

—  Following the appointment of Mr. Chen Rongbin as an executive  —
Director on 21 July 2016, the Board consisted of ten Directors,
among which only three of them were independent non-executive
Directors, thus the number of independent non-executive Director
did not represent one-third of the Board as required under Rule
5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules. Subsequently, following the
resignation of Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis as independent non-
executive Director on 31 August 2016, the Company also failed
to meet the requirement set out in Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing
Rules with regard to at least one independent non-executive
Director must have appropriate professional qualification or
accounting or related financial management expertise. Following
the appointment of Mr. Wong Chi Keung, who has relevant
qualifications and expertise, as independent non-executive Director
on 17 October 2016, the number of Directors increased to eleven
and therefore, the Company met the requirements under Rules
5.05A and 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted on 10 September 2013 a board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) and delegated certain duties under the Board
Diversity Policy to the Nomination Committee. The Company recognizes
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the
quality of its performance and hence the purpose of the Board Diversity
Policy aims to build and maintain a Board with a diversity of Directors.
The Board diversity would be considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skill, knowledge and
length of service, and the selection of candidates will also base on the
above. The Nomination Committee will review and adopt the above
measurements when it reviewed the composition of the Board and it
will also review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its
continued effectiveness from time to time. After assessing the suitability
of the Directors’ skills and experiences to the Company’s business,
the Nomination Committee considered that the existing Board was
appropriately structured.

BOARD MEETINGS

The Board met regularly during the year with additional meetings
arranged if and when required. 8 Board meetings were held during the
year ended 31 December 2016 and the attendance record of each
Directors is set out in the table on page 38 of this annual report. Directors
are appropriately notified in advance of the meetings with proposed
agenda and are free to contribute alternative views at meetings. Major
decisions are only arrived at after deliberation at Board meetings.
Directors who are considered having conflicts of interest or having
material interest in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of the relevant meeting and will abstain
from voting on relevant resolutions.

Board minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection by the Directors. Every Board member is entitled to have
access to Board papers and related materials and has unrestricted
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied with,
and in consultation with the compliance officer, advising the Board on
compliance matters. Directors also have the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, 2 general meetings of the
Company were held, being the special general meeting of the Company
held on 28 January 2016 and the 2016 AGM. The attendance record of
each Directors is set out in the table on page 38 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 30 September 2002 with
written terms of reference in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi Keung (chairperson), Ms. Chen Yan and
Mr. Xu Haiou.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is currently made available
on the GEM website and on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee shall meet not less than four times a year in
accordance with its terms of reference. The principal duties of the Audit
Committee are to review the quarterly, interim and annual reports and
the financial statements of the Group and to review significant financial
reporting judgements contained in them; oversee and review the financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems of
the Company; to review the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group; and to make recommendation to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor as
well as to ensure independence of the continuing auditor and corporate
governance related matters. The Audit Committee also discusses with
the management the risk management and internal control systems to
ensure effective systems are in place.

The Audit Committee held 5 meetings during the year ended 31
December 2016 and the attendance record of each member of the Audit
Committee is set out in the table on page 38 of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee had
performed the following work:

reviewed the financial matters, quarterly, interim and annual
financial reports, financial statements, internal control system, and
audit related matters of the Company;

made recommendation on the re-appointment of ZHONGHUI
ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company and the terms of its
engagement;

reviewed corporate governance related matters;

discussed the above as appropriate with the executive Directors,
the management and the auditor of the Company, and made
recommendations to the Board;

discussed with the management the risk management and internal
control systems to ensure effective systems are in place;

discussed with the auditor of the Company the nature and scope
of the audit, reporting obligations and audit planning before the
audit commences; and

considered and recommended to the Board the engagement of
external professional party to review the internal control and risk
management systems.

The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016

have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved for issue by

the Board.

The Audit Committee reviewed the existing internal control and risk

34

management systems of the Group and also noted that review of the
same will be carried out annually.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Remuneration Committee on 12 April 2005
with written terms of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The Remuneration Committee currently consists of two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xu Haiou (chairperson) and Mr.
Chau Sen Chung and an executive Director, namely Mr. Chen Xi.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is currently made
available on the GEM website and the Company’s website.

According to its terms of reference, the Remuneration Committee shall
meet at least once a year. The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendation to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration; to approve or
make recommendation of remuneration packages for the Directors and
the senior management; and to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and objectives resolved by
the Board from time to time. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the approach made under B.1.2(c)(i) of the CG Code to determine,
with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held 6 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016 and the attendance record of each member of the
Remuneration Committee is set out in the table on page 38 of this annual
report.

In addition to the Remuneration Committee meetings, the Remuneration
Committee also dealt with matters by circulation during the year.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration Committee
performed the following work:

—  reviewed the existing policy and structure of the remuneration for
the Directors and senior management;

— considered and determined the remuneration packages of
executive Directors; and

— recommended to the Board the remuneration packages for the
proposed Directors.

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016, by band is set out
below:

£ /\i‘f’ H JF Eiif
HITUATIIE -

BHE_T oM
ZBgC

BAEEREREEEBHMN 2R BHER R
e

ZRIETHTES ZHNET

MEFEERBIELES 2HME

BE_T—RFT-_A=T—"HLEFE &2
AERERERE (RRES) 2HFMERWT

Number of individuals

AE

2016 2015

Remuneration Band £ —E—REF —ZT—RF
Nil 08T 1 4
HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 17870 — 1,000,000 7T 19 7
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 77t — 1,500,000 77T 1 2
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /&7t — 2,000,000 7T 0 2
21 15

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the Nomination Committee on 12 April 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.
The Nomination Committee currently consists of two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Ms. Chen Yan (chairperson) and Mr. Xu
Haiou and an executive Director, namely Mr. Hu Qixian.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee is currently made
available on the GEM website and the Company’s website.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

REEES
EFeCR_TERAFENAT_HRIRERE
g WM A RIZER M ARR 2 87
HE- - AREAZECHMBBUIFATE
= RBRE(XRE) RFFEB-EEN KR —
FHWITES - BIMAEBRLEAN -

I

RAZB e BESRERK AT NEIRRE U K&
RARIEHEER] -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

According to its terms of reference, the Nomination Committee shall meet
at least once a year. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
are to review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to skills, experience and background, geographical and
industry experience, ethnicity, gender, knowledge and length of service) of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;
to identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorship; assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors; to make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors; to review the Board
Diversity Policy and the measurable objectives that the Board has set
for implementing the Board Diversity Policy; to monitor the progress
on achieving the objectives; and to make the relevant disclosure in the
corporate governance report annually.

The Nomination Committee held 3 meetings during the year ended
31 December 2016 and the attendance record of each member of
the Nomination Committee is set out in the table on page 38 of this
annual report. In addition to the Nomination Committee meetings, the
Nomination Committee also dealt with matters by way of circulation
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Nomination Committee
performed the following work:

—  reviewed the Board’s structure, size, composition and diversity;

— assessed the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors;

— made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of retiring
Directors at the 2016 AGM,;

— made recommendation to the Board on the continuation in service
of Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP, the then Director who has reached the
age of 70;

— made recommendation of new Director candidates to the Board’s
approval; and

— made recommendation to the Board on the composition of Board
committees.
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BE_ZF-AF+-A=+-HLFEEEK
EXZEERAHFERZLKEIINT

Attendance records of the Directors and members of the Board
committees for the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
below:

Audit Remuneration Nomination
General Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
RRAE EZ2eE ENZESSE FWZEeeE REEZEeg
Total Number of Meetings BRERY 2 8 5 6 3
Executive Directors: HTES
Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong BB e BHEF* il 5/6 = = =
(Note 1) (Hizt1)
Mr. Chen Rongbin (Note 2) BRI (H22) N/A N 2/2 = = =
Mr. Qiu Bin (Note 3) IR E (H17£3) 2/2 8/8 - 5/5 3/3
Mr. Gao Yang St b 2/2 7/8 - - -
Mr. Hu Qixian (Note 4) HEB AL (Ht4) N/A TER 2/2 = = N/A TE R
Mr. Chen Xi (Note 5) B& L (H525) N/A A 2/2 = 11 =
Mr. Xiao Yan (Note 6) HESE(Wi26) 1/2 6/6 = — =
Mr. Li Tao (Note 6) FEREME6) 0/2 416 = = =
Mr. Li Nan (Note 6) ZHakE (frite) 0/2 4/6 - = -
Mr. Yu Bun (Note 6) BRI (HiE6) 0/2 1/6 = = =
Mr. Tan Xiangdong (Note 7) BRREE (M7 N/A iR N/A TR - - =
Non-Executive Director: FHTES .
Mr. Wang Kun (Note 8) Tt (#77#8) 2/2 8/8 = = =
Independent Non-Executive BV FHTES :
Directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Keung (Note 9) &2 3R% £ (H17£9) N/A i 11 2/2 = =
Ms. Chen Yan (Note 10) BiaL L (5t 10) N/A T 2/2 3/3 = N/A NE
Mr. Xu Haiou (Note 11) TR S (1) N/A N 2/2 3/3 11 N/A N
Mr. Chau Sen Chung (Note 12) ~ EIEM L4 (Hfst12) N/A T 11 = N/A TN@E R -
Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP (Note 13) R4 -Fa+ (fiF 13) 1/2 6/6 2/2 5/5 3/3
Mr. Hu Dingdong (Note 74) HEREE (Wit 14) 0/2 6/6 2/2 4/5 3/3
Mr. Lei Yong (Note 15) BBELEWH15) 2/2 6/6 2/2 = =
Mr. Chiu Chi Kong (Note 16) BEREE Bzt 16) 1/2 5/6 = — =
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis ~ BRA IS4 (#7152 17) N/A iR 11 11 il =

(Note 17)
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Notes:

Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong has been appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 17 February 2016. His attendances above were stated by
reference to the number of meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Chen Rongbin has been appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 21 July 2016. His attendances above were stated by reference to the
number of meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Qiu Bin ceased to be a member of each of the Nomination
Committee and Remuneration Committee with effect from 20 June 2016.
His attendances at the meetings of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee above were stated by reference to the number of
meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Hu Qixian has been appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 June 2016. In addition, he has been appointed as a member of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 20 June 2016. His attendances
above were stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his
tenure.

Mr. Chen Xi has been appointed as an executive Director with effect from
1 June 2016. In addition, he has been appointed as a member of the
Remuneration Committee with effect from 20 June 2016. His attendances
above were stated by reference to the number of meetings held during his
tenure.

Each of Mr. Xiao Yan, Mr. Li Tao, Mr. Li Nan and Mr. Yu Bun retired as an
executive Director with effect from the conclusion of the 2016 AGM. Their
attendances above were stated by reference to the number of meetings
held during their tenure.

Mr. Tan Xiangdong has been appointed as an executive Director with effect
from 1 June 2016 and resigned on 24 June 2016. No meeting was held
during his tenure.

Mr. Wang Kun resigned as a non-executive Director with effect from 15
December 2016. His attendances above were stated by reference to the
number of meetings held during his tenure.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

AN A D A
TRERRS
9. Mr. Wong Chi Keung has been appointed as an independent non-executive

Director and the chairperson of the Audit Committee with effect from 17
October 2016. His attendances above were stated by reference to the
number of meetings held during his tenure.

Ms. Chen Yan has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 15 June 2016. In addition, she has been appointed
as the chairperson of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee with effect from 20 June 2016. Her attendances above
were stated by reference to the number of meetings held during her tenure.

Mr. Xu Haiou has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director with effect from 15 June 2016. In addition, he has been appointed
as the chairperson of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each
of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee with effect from 20
June 2016. His attendances above were stated by reference to the number
of meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Chau Sen Chung has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director and a member of the Remuneration Committee with effect from
31 August 2016. His attendances above were stated by reference to the
number of meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP resigned as an independent non-executive Director
with effect on 20 June 2016 and ceased to be the chairperson of each of
the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
following his resignation. His attendances above were stated by reference
to the number of meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Hu Dingdong resigned as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 20 June 2016 and ceased to be a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee following
his resignation. His attendances above were stated by reference to the
number of meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Lei Yong resigned as an independent non-executive Director with effect
from 8 June 2016 and ceased to be a member of the Audit Committee
following his resignation. His attendances above were stated by reference
to the number of meetings held during his tenure.

Mr. Chiu Chi Kong resigned as an independent non-executive Director with

effect from 8 June 2016. His attendances above were stated by reference
to the number of meetings held during his tenure.
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17.  Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis has been appointed as an independent non-

executive Director with effect from 1 June 2016 and was subsequently
appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 8 June 2016. On 20
June 2016, he has been redesignated as the chairperson of the Audit
Committee and appointed as a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis resigned as an independent non-executive
Director on 31 August 2016 and ceased to be the chairperson of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee following his
resignation. His attendances above were stated by reference to the number
of meetings held during his tenure.

The Board is responsible for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
the Shareholders and in particular, uses annual general meetings or
other general meetings to communicate with them and encourage their
participation.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

Directors must keep abreast of their collective responsibilities. Each
newly appointed Director would receive an induction package covering
the Group’s businesses and the statutory and regulatory obligations of
a director of a listed company. According to the code provision A.6.5 of
the CG Code, all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

The Group provides briefings and other training to develop and refresh
the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The Group also continuously
updates Directors on the latest developments regarding the GEM
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements, to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate governance
practices. Circulars or guidance notes are issued to Directors and senior
management where appropriate, to ensure awareness of best corporate
governance practices.
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All Directors have participated in continuous professional development FIBESCLEFEZELEE RMAAR RREME
and provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31 RBERBE-_T—"F+_A=+—HILF
December 2016 to the Company. The individual training record of each EE X 2Bl #HE_T— X "F+=H

Director received for the year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: =+ — BIEFEBREETMEZFAAFIIZRE
BT
Name of Directors Type of Trainings
EEEB EHE R
(Note)
(Bft3E)
Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong (Chairman) FHTREEENRERF (F/E) AB
Mr. Chen Rongbin PR SR ST A
(Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (BIE/ERITEAEE) AB
Mr. Qiu Bin xSt B
Mr. Gao Yang SEkE B
Mr. Hu Qixian HEBESE AB
Mr. Chen Xi BRAELE AB
Mr. Wong Chi Keung B ZRSTAE AB
Ms. Chen Yan BRIGZ + A,B
Mr. Xu Haiou R B4 AB
Mr. Chau Sen Chung BEMEE AB
Notes: Bf3E
A:  attending seminars and/or conference and/or forums on subjects relatingto  A: HEFEABHESHERCEE A2 HE

directors’ duties and corporate governance

R/ Rgz R/ REHE

B:  reading newspaper, journals and updates as regards legal and regulatory B: HEBBMEELEAEZLRETEHNEEEEM
changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their BITHE 2HE - BRIRSHE

duties
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CONFLICT OF INTEREST

If a Director has a conflict of interest in relation to a transaction or
proposal to be considered by the Board, the individual is required to
declare such interest and to abstain from voting. The matter will be
considered at a Board meeting attended by Directors who have no
material interest in the transaction.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial
services provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1”), to provide
compliance and full range of company secretarial services to the Group
in order to assist the Group to cope with the changing regulatory
environment and to suit difference commercial needs.

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), the representative of Uni-1, was appointed
as the Company Secretary of the Company with effect from 1 January
2014.

Mr. Wong Chi Shing, the Financial Controller of the Company, is the
primary point of contact at the Company for the Company Secretary.

According to the requirements of Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr.
Tse, being a person who was a company secretary of an issuer before 31
December 1994, will take no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training for the financial year commencing on 1 January 2017.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors and officers.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 30 December 2011
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Group to grant options to participants as incentives
or rewards for their contributions to the Group. Details of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in the Report of Directors and note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The emoluments payable to Directors and senior management will
depend on their respective contractual terms under the service contracts
and is fixed by the Board with reference to the recommendation of the
Remuneration Committee (in case of non-executive Directors) and their
duties and responsibilities within the Company or determined by the
Remuneration Committee (in case of executive Directors) with reference
to their duties and responsibilities within the Company. Details of the
remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total fees in respect of audit
and non-audit services provided by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the
auditor of the Company, are set out as follows:

=M<

ARRAR ZEB——F+ A=+ RERNBRE
AHEI([ERERE ) - BREABIEESAR
BRI A2EERLBRE  FRREHAKE
FIEE R BB 3R - FERAERT Sl BER
EEEMEMIREMEMARMES9 -

AEERSREREX N MR F RS LD
BT REZTBZANGRRBEETEL2EH M
ZEe2EE (WRIFATESR) ARBRENK
RAZBEMETRIFHRE - ABAFHERE
AR TER)2ERENARFZBE R
BEERETE - EFFWFBHARNGEVBHRE
BfFE14 -

R ETEN &

BE_Z—RF+TA=1t—HLEE  #AK
REZHBEN P E L ESTMEHMAERD AR
HHRB SR BRG B RETIIT

Services rendered Fee paid/payable
RS R B HE
HK$’000

FHET

Audit Services ZBURTS 1,180
Non-audit services HZBURTE =
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general meeting,
other than an annual general meeting, shall be called a special general
meeting. The Board may whenever it thinks fit call special general
meetings.

Shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Shareholders may convene a special general meeting of the Company
according to the provisions as set out in the Bye-Laws and the
Companies Act of Bermuda. Members holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Putting enquiries by Shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.

IR R
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Procedures for putting forward proposals by
Shareholders at Shareholders’ meeting

The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a
proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@  any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth
of the total voting rights at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be
deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any
necessary statement, at the Company’s registered office in the case of:

(i) a requisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks
before the meeting; and

(i)

any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirmation that the
requisition is in proper and in order, the Board will proceed with the
necessary procedures.

PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The respective responsibilities of the Directors and the auditor for
preparing financial statements of the Company are set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 83 to 90 of this annual report.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and ensure that the financial
statements are prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the
timely publication of the financial statements of the Group. The Directors
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of any matters
uncertainly relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board'’s Responsibilities for the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing
their effectiveness at least annually through the Audit Committee.
However, the Board recognizes that no cost effective internal control and
risk management systems will preclude all errors and irregularities, as
such systems are designed to manage, rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

Main Features of the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term and sustainable growth of a business. The Board puts
particular emphasis on determining the risk-tolerance levels in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives while the management is responsible
for the design, implementation and maintenance of a sound and effect
internal control systems under its risk management mechanism. The
Company has adopted “Three Lines of Defense” model to identify,
assess and mitigate different type of risks, model of which are set out
below:
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Board
BExg

Management
BHEE

2nd Line of Defense
Management ensures risks are within acceptable range and that the 1st Line of Defense is
effective by:-

1. Defines rules sets and models 3. Develops new system

2. Provides technical support 4.  Oversees portfolio management
EZER

ERERREAREIEXBEARE—BHRITZAR

1. AERAUEE RER 3. HIEHHIE

2. RUEMLHE 4. EEBHEAER

1st Line of Defense

Business Units are responsible for identifying, assessing and monitoring risks associated with

each business or deal

E—EFAR
EBELARHA  FHERERESREBHARZENER

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage
Significant Risks

1

Establish and update the risk assessment criteria and relevant risk
items.

Review the existing risk management mechanism, identify areas for
enhancement and refine the mechanism if necessary.

Identify relevant risks and update the identified risks in the risk
register in response to the changes in the Company’s business and
the external environment.

Rating for the impacts and inherent likelihood of each identified

risks, priorities the identified risk items and identify the responsible
risk owners.
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Audit Committee
EREES

3rd Line of Defens 2

External Consultant 1ssists the Directors
to regularly review the 1st and 2nd Line
of Defense by:-

1. Inspection
2. Monitor
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Analyse the counter measures which have been put in the risk
response (ranking) table based on risk priorities.

All high risk items should be reduced or eliminated by mitigation
actions while all medium risk items should be considered for
mitigation which subject to a cost benefit analysis.

Estimate the initial and ongoing costs for mitigation by comparing
with the estimate cost of non-mitigation and consider all risk
mitigation options.

Once the decision to mitigate the risk has been made and the
strategy is identified of each risk item, a mitigation plan should be
developed.

Prepare for the risk assessment results, which covers significant
control failings or weaknesses that have been identified, which
have a material impact on the Company’s financial performance or
condition, and present the same to the Audit Committee.

Develop the ongoing risk mitigation plan for the top prioritised
(significant) risk items based on the risk assessment results.

Whistleblowing Policy

All staff is considered to be an informal monitor. The Group relies on each

of its employee, at all levels, to monitor quality, ethics and professional

and the Group’s standards. The Group listens to employee concerns,

receives recommendations for improving the Group’s practices and

controls and announces timely commmunications on policy changes and

other matters of the Group.
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In addition, the Audit Committee establishes a whistleblowing policy,
whereby employees and those who deal with the Company to raise
concerns about possible improprieties in any matter relating to the
Company without fear of reprisal or victimization, in a responsible and
effective manner. Written complaints can be lodged directly to the
chairman of the Audit Committee and/or make a copy to the chief
financial controller of the Company (if applicable). The chairman of the
Audit Committee will then convene a meeting to decide whether and/
or how to carry out any necessary investigation and, depending upon
the circumstances, consider to nominate investigating officer or set up a
special committee to investigate the matter independently.

Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the
Risk Management and Internal Control Systems
and to Resolve Material Internal Control Defects

Risk Assessment report and internal control review report are submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, had performed annual review on the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems, including, but
not limited to, (i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks
and the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment, (i) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems, (iii) the extent and
frequency of communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee
and the Board which enables them to assess control of the Company
and the effectiveness of risk management, (iv) significant control failings
or weaknesses that have been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of
the Company’s processes for financial reporting and GEM Listing Rules
compliance.

Save as the internal control weakness over its investment function, the
Board considered the risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2016. No
significant areas of concern that might affect the financial, operational,
compliance controls, and risk management functions of the Group were
identified. The scope of such review covers the adequacy of resources,
qualification and experience of staff of the Group’s accounting and
financial reporting functions and their attitude against internal control of
the Group.
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In view of the above weaknesses, the Company has engaged an internal
control adviser to review the internal control system of the Group, in
particular, the internal control over the investment in other corporations,
and is now formulating precautionary measures and policies to prevent
the occurrence of similar incidents in the future.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the
Handling and Dissemination of Inside
Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the
relevant obligations under the SFO and the GEM Listing Rules. Certain
reasonable measures have been taken from time to time to ensure that
proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement
in relation to the Group, which include:

— dissemination of information should be absolutely limited to the
stated purpose and the core members within the Group who
are responsible for or involved with the project or the matter
in question. In addition, documents and files containing inside
information must be kept in a safe place to which access is
restricted to individuals who “need to know” the information.

— a record documenting the distribution of the information including
the identity of the recipients and the time of dispatch should be
kept.

—  transmission of electronic file containing inside information must be
made under secure condition. Computer terminals must not be left
logged on and unattended where they can be accessed by others.

— unnecessary copying of documents containing inside information
must be avoided. Extra copies of such documents must be
promptly removed from meeting rooms and work areas after
meetings and discussions and destroyed if no longer required.
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Internal Audit Function B EF LB BE

The Company has conducted an annual review and is of the view thatan N AFIEETFREER - WRAANIBEIZ I
internal audit department could enhance the effectiveness of its internal  FI I FE ANEBEL =B BE 2 B I -
control function.

The Company is undertaking preparatory work for the setting up of the N2 B3R IEE FXEHEAK L ASFEZ IR -
internal audit department.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS HEBEREXH

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during #HEZZT—~F+-A=+—RHIEFE ' &2
the year ended 31 December 2016. Bz ABEREX B A -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HENRERRE

FOREWORD

The Group primarily adopt the principles and bases of the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules, with an aim to
establish a sound environmental, social and governance structure.

This report comprises the review of environment, social and governance
areas, which sets out the Group’s policies and practices as well as certain
major subsidiaries of the Company’s policies and practices in respect of
three environmental aspects and eight social aspects in accordance with
ESG Reporting Guide for the year from 1 January 2016 to 31 December
2016 (the “Year 2016”). This report is designed to allow the Company’s
stakeholders, such as Shareholders, investors, customers, suppliers,
employees, creditors, regulators and the general public to have a
comprehensive understanding of the long-term sustainability information
of the Group. The Group seeks to balance the views and interests of
these stakeholders through constructive conversation with a view to
setting the course for long term prosperity.

The Group is principally engaged in digital cable television business,
wireless digital television value-added services and wireless digital audio
integrated circuits business.

The Group has maintained a head office in Hong Kong, as well as several
offices located in Shenzhen, Beijing and Shi jia Zhuang, Xinji, Dongguang
and Qing County in Hebei Province of the PRC.

The Group’s major revenues are generated from two major subsidiaries,
named Beijing Yaao Boshi Technology Co. Ltd. (1t R e R ER KA R
‘A A]) (“Beijing Yaao”) and Beijing Champion Maxiumic Technology Co.,
Ltd (St RFZEAER KGR A F
which are engaged in digital cable television business and wireless digital

) (“‘Beijing Champion Maxiumic”),

television value-added services business respectively. The head office in
Hong Kong (the “HK Office”), a PRC main office in Beijing (the “Hengxin
BJ Office”) and a branch office of Beijing Yaao in Qing County (the “Qing
Office”) are considered as the major business locations of the Group.

F=

AREE E RRMAIEIR_ETR AR — 1 PrEk
ZERE g RERmEHES([RE -8R

ERBEES ) 2RARES - EEBRRY
ZERE - e REARE -

AREBFHRE w@RE BN ZEH
EHRHREAEER_T—A"F—A—HBE=ZF

—RFETZA=T—BLEFE(=ZZE—XF
Bl BRERE e kE/mEESIN=E
R &)\ (B & 75 2 BUR KB HIA R A
RNAIETEEMBRAAZBERIED - NiE
EHEERR  REE BEF  #EHR EE-
BREA  EEHEBR —MAREFRRDRF
MEXETHRASECRAFBEZEEN
REBERNRNBBEZMRZRNAZKZEN R
HEE BB TE - EERARRAZER
HEBAT M o

WEERBLUBREY - BRI
BB RE -

AEEEE
BEIRERS M EBREN T

NEEREBRBENRER  TRPEZRY -
tEFTLEARE - 5%  BAELEE%
RBEZEMERE -

AEE 2T BERHEREMREEMBAR - A
ERTDREREMAR DR ([dRER ]|) Rk
REZFHCHREERAR ([LRPEAT])
MK QA0 B F B AR BAL EARFER MR
MERBERTES - ARBZETEEX I
RUREBEZEHER((EBREE]) - R
ARZAEERRFE(ETLRBREE]) &
UNBEFE 2L TERDHER((EHRER]) -

2016 FF#| ERPREZERERLF

53



54

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERRE

EMISSIONS

As mentioned above, the Group is principally engaged in digital cable
television business and wireless digital television value-added services
business. Hence, the emission relating to air and greenhouse gas
emissions, discharges into the water and land, as well as generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are minimal as compared to
mining or manufacturing business in the Year 2016.

During the Year 2016, the major emissions of the HK Office, Hengxin
BJ Office and Qing Office were: (i) the fuel consumed, kilometres
travelled and greenhouse gases generated from use of motor vehicles;
(i) greenhouse gases generated from the electricity consumed; (iii)
greenhouse gases generated from the paper waste disposed at landfills;
and (iv) greenhouse gases generated from business air travel by
employees.

In order to minimise the fuel consumption, energy consumption, paper
wastage and air travel by employees, various sustainable development
measures have been enforced to address environmental responsibilities
are under normal operating procedures, including but not limited to (i)
motor vehicles are restricted to serve for customers’ use and senior
management to attend business meeting; (ii) staff were encouraged to
switch off the light and air-conditioning after the use of a room; (iii) staff
were encouraged to print only when necessary and prior use recycle
papers for printing; (iv) use of electronic form of documents to reduce
paper out; (v) staff were encouraged to prevent unnecessary overseas
business travel; (vi) high speed trains were used to replace flight
whenever available; and (vii) conference call was extensively adopted.

There is no hazardous waste produced from the operations of HK Office,
Hengxin BJ Office and Qing Office. Non-hazardous waste produced from
the operations of HK Office and Hengxin BJ Office is mainly comprised
of office consumables and from the operations of Qing Office are mainly
comprised of office consumables and packaging materials, of which the
non-hazardous waste are minimal.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

B

WEXF - AEEEEREARBUERR
B REGEM BRIBERBES - Bt - R=
TNFE BRBEIREXRHEL - AE=
R RERBII - MK R L2 BER
UARELEEEREEERMED -

RoF—REE - EBREE
BREGNERZEBINA : OEDEFE
TRERREMATELZRERE  ()FE
EEZAERA OIERERESMELL
BERR | R ()R RA B ST L2 AR

o

ESiE R =

ps =G
EE?%H

AREROMEDER « 8RR ERRER
EBEMERTT  EENTSENRERRIEGBTE
—REERFRRIRERT W BEEATRR
(REFEEARSREEAB2MELSH
FEAAE: (VEBE IEEREBEZEREYX
Rz (VEBETIEXVERS ST - WE
FefE A EIYARITED ¢ (v)ERE TR ZXXHR
DHERIER  (VEEIE TRETNUE 28I
BIRTT » W) EAIITIE R TARERERE : &
Vi) BZIRAEEEE

BEMER BN ERERBTERERL
LENTSELEERRY - BENEFRERE
SBARMERCEEELZBRERRENIES

BRAFEY  BENERZEEELCETRE
EYVETEBRBLRMEBEMNF  HHES
BEEYED -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERESE

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste of the Group during the Year
2016. In addition, no significant fine or non-monetary sanction for non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations has been reported in the
Year 2016.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group is committed to minimising the impact of business
activities on the environment, and supporting environmental protection
programmes. In particular, a number of initiative measures designed to
conserve resources were introduced to promote employee awareness of
the need in order to achieve efficient utilisation of resources.

As mentioned in the above “Emission” section, the Group has a series
of policies and procedures to minimise the electricity consumed by
the employees in the HK Office, Hengxin BJ Office and Qing Office.
In addition, multi-function devices with printing, scanning and photo
copies were extensively adopted. Employees were encouraged to switch
on the computers only when use and switch off after office hours. For
policies on the efficient use of water resources in the offices, staff were
encouraged to save water at pantry. The drinking water containers were
well maintained to prevent leakage. For policies on packaging material,
staff were encouraged to use recycle paper boxes.

THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group encourages all employees to participate in different kinds of
recycling activities and minimising the use of nature resources. In the
Year 2016, there is no significant impact on the environment and natural
business from the operations of the Group, in particular, the HK Office,
Hengxin BJ Office and Qing Office.
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EMPLOYMENT

The Group seriously emphasise on developing human resources and
provides competitive remuneration and welfare packages. Promotion
opportunities and salary increments are benchmarked against individual
performance. Employees are entitled to benefits such as annual leave,
sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave and medical insurance
coverage in accordance with local laws and regulations.

The Group emphasises on equal opportunities for all personnel in
respect of hiring, pay rates, training and development, promotion and
other terms of employment. The Group committed to providing a work
environment that is free from any form of discrimination on the basis of
ethnicity, gender, religion, age, disability or sexual orientation.

The Group has diversified cultures including the employees with different
genders, ages, skills, educational backgrounds, industry experiences
and other qualifications in order to achieve the most suitable composition
and balance.

The remuneration of the employees of the Group will be adjusted
based on the levels of business prospect, the annual operating results,
annual performance appraisal, market trend and inflation. A share
option scheme was adopted on 30 December 2011. The purpose of
the scheme is to enable the Group to grant options to participants as
incentives or rewards for their contributions to the Group.

Treatment of employee’s misconduct is to be fair and reasonable in all
of the circumstances. Misconduct may lead to a warning, and more
serious misconduct may lead to a dismissal. Any acts of misconduct
are to be reported to the administration department. In addition, the
audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) establishes
of whistleblowing policy. Written complaints can be lodged directly to
the chairmen of the Audit Committee and/or make a copy to the chief
financial controller of the Company (if applicable).

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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HK Office has established a series of policies to ensure compliance with
the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong. For Hengxin BJ Office and
Qing Office, the employees are required to sign employment contracts
with relevant subsidiaries. Such employment contracts and a series of
policies aim to ensure compliance with Labour Law of the PRC, Labour
Contract Law of the PRC and other local laws and regulations. In
addition, the employees’ wages, overtime pay and related benefits are in
accordance with the local minimum wage. The working hours for general
employees are normally not more than 8 hours a day and 40 hours a
week. Integrated computation of working hours is implemented with
reference to the requirements of the Labour Law of the PRC.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination and other
benefits and welfare on the Group during the Year 2016. In addition,
no non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in
significant fine or sanction has been reported in the Year 2016.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group adopts non-discriminatory employment practices and
provides a healthy and safe workplace. All employees are required to
keep the office premises in good and cleaning condition. Occupational
hazards at workplace are reported to the local regulatory authorities
annually.

Smoking is prohibited in office areas. Fire extinguishers, fire alarms and
evacuation route are available for the employees located at HK Office,
Hengxin BJ Office and Qing Office.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on providing a safe
working environment and protecting employees from occupational
hazards of the Group during the Year 2016. In addition, no non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant
fine or sanction has been reported in the Year 2016.
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group has committed to provide on-the-job training of its employees
in order to enhance their knowledge and skills. All employees are
encouraged to enhance their skills and knowledge in order to perform
their duties more efficiently and effectively. During the Year 2016, certain
external training expenses recommended to the employees were borne
by the Group such as the topics about financial reporting and compliance
updates on local laws and regulations.

The Group encourages employees to strike a balance between work
and life. All employees are encouraged to participate in the recreation
activities in order to enhance the team spirit, employee’s sense of
belonging and morale. For knowledge management and enhancement of
using electronic devices purpose, the HK Office, Hengxin BJ Office and
Qing Office provide free internet connection facilities to all employees.

LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group fully understands that the exploitation of child and forced
labour are universally condemned, and therefore take the responsibility
against child and forced labour very seriously. The Group strictly comply
with all laws and regulations against child labour and forced labour, in
particular, for the HK Office, Hengxin BJ Office and Qing Office.

Employment by the Group is based on the principle of fairness, openness
and willingness. All individuals enter into employment contracts without
acts of forced labour.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that preventing from employment of child or
forced labour by the Group during the Year 2016. In addition, no non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that resulted in significant
fine or sanction has been reported in the Year 2016.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

R K aE s

AEBEB N RIEBREERHE MIFI
o EL AN M RE - B PTA fR BRI E R
M WERHBBMHETHERE - RN -F
—NFE - REEHEBZETINEIIERH
REBEAYE - PlnA R % R ® R E AR
M ARERZEE

b

AEESEREEE TFRAE ZHEBSFE -

EMERESHRETE URSEHKE
BT ZRBRRTR - SLAREEEMIN®S
EREFREMS  BERER - BHI MR
ERMNERHERSAMERERERE ZEH

P D
g T#A|

REBERANERE T RABLBEBREE RS
BEE  ARAEETUNEIRE—YERE
T Ro#:A%E) - AREBRIKESTHAITEER
BT RBABE OEEES  LHERENSE
B BRIt R R R T BRI

¥ - rRAKBBZRANERER
BRATSBHER - QBT

BFEBLELHR

R-F-—REE  AEESTHABEBELAR
é'é@Eﬁﬁglﬁﬁﬁéﬁ%@Zﬁ?ﬂiﬂiizﬂEZE
MERERBR - WIN —T—RNEEIRE
SRARETERERERME X KNRE R
A P



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - HERERESE

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group has the greatest respect for the laws and regulations that
govern its business. The Group always adheres to international best
practices and conducts fair and unbiased procurement processes when
dealing with suppliers.

The Group adheres to the principle of transparency and implement the
values of honesty, integrity and fairness in the supply chain management.
The Group’s procurement procedures provide directions and guidelines
on evaluation and engagement when dealing with suppliers of goods
and services to ensure business is conducted legally, financially and
technically-sound. In addition, approval procedures are in place to
ensure that supplier engagements are monitored and approved by the
appropriate level of management.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

A high priority for the Group is to ensure customer satisfaction in terms
of its products and services. Strenuous efforts are made to ensure
compliance with the laws and regulations relating to product health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters of the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates. The Group requires its employees to comply
with applicable governmental and regulatory laws, rules, codes and
regulations.

The employees in Qing Office deal with lots of private and confidential
information of subscribers in its digital cable television business. Hence,
Qing Office has set up strict code of conduct requirements for their
employees and has signed privacy and confidential agreements with the
subscribers. In addition, the employees are encouraged to maintain all
reasonable methods to safeguard the information of the Group and the
subscribers.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact relating to health and
safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress on the Company during the
Year 2016. In addition, no significant fine has been reported in the Year
2016.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION

Corruption, bribery or fraud in any forms are strictly prohibited. The
Group’s anti-corruption policies in practice set out standards of conduct
to which all employees are required to adhere to promote the integrity
environment in the workplace. All employees are prohibited to offer
and accept of advantages by using the excuse of work or the authority
granted from the Group. The advantages include but not limited to
money, gifts, loans, rewards, contracts, services and benefits-in-kind.

The Group encourages the reporting of dishonest acts among the
employees. HK Office prohibits all employees to accept brides, valuables
and the embezzlement of funds. Hengxin BJ Office and Qing Office may
terminate the employment with the employee who carries out dishonest
acts as stated in the employment contracts.

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

There is no legal case concerning corruption brought against the Group
or its employees for the Year 2016.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the communities in
which it operates and maintain close communications and interactions
with the communities in order to contribute to local development from
time to time.

As global responsible citizen, the Group strives to improve the society
image and social responsibility through community investment. All
employees of the Group are encouraged to participate their own
initiatives on helping and supporting the local communities and
neighbours.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong (“Tan Sri Dato’ Lim”), aged 67, was
appointed as the chairman of the Board and an executive Director on
17 February 2016. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the
Company. Tan Sri Dato’ Lim was conferred an honorary title of Tan Sri
by His Majestry the King of Malaysia. He obtained his Bachelor Degree
from Nanyang University, Singapore in 1971. Using his knowledge and
experience in the palm oil industry, Tan Sri Dato’ Lim established Paos
Industries Sdn Bhd in 1987 and subsequently, he established Paos
Holdings Berhad in 1997. Paos Holdings Berhad has been listed on
the main board of Bursa Malaysia Berhad since 2000, which principally
engaged in the downstream of the palm oil industry, producing palm oil
and value-added products of palm oil, such as finished soap, animal
feed, cocoa butter substitute and soap chips. Currently, Paos Industries
Sdn Bhd is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Paos Holdings Berhad while
Tan Sri Dato’ Lim is the substantial shareholder of Paos Holdings Berhad.
He was the major shareholder of Pantai Holdings Berhad, the largest
chain of private hospital in Malaysia. In addition, Tan Sri Dato’ Lim also
involved in various industries, such as medical, hemodialysis products,
investment bank, chemical products, biodiesel, palm oil refineries, soy
lecithin, hotel and tourism.

Mr. Chen Rongbin, aged 53, was appointed as a vice chairman of
the Board, an executive Director and the chief executive officer of
the Company on 21 July 2016. He obtained his bachelor’s degree
in economics from Hunan College of Finance and Economics (#F
B4 EP7) (now known as Hunan University (i@ A22)) in 1987. Mr.
Chen Rongbin obtained the Economist qualification (4% ZAI{EEEE 1)
and awarded the Floor Trader qualification (K E ) from the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He also obtained the practising certificate
issued by the Securities Association of China and a license for dealing
in securities issued by the Securities and Futures Commission in Hong
Kong. Mr. Chen Rongbin has almost 30 years of experiences in banking
and security management and is familiar with financial businesses such
as banking, security and third party payment. He served as senior
management in several sizeable state-owned financial institutions during
1987 to 2012. From September 2012 to August 2015, Mr. Chen Rongbin
worked with Yue Xiu Securities Holdings Limited, and his last position
was marketing director. From October 2015 to June 2016, he served as
chief investment officer of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited, whose
shares are listed on GEM.
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Mr. Qiu Bin (“Mr. Qiu”), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 January 2013. Mr. Qiu is also a director of a subsidiary of
the Company. He graduated from Beijing Union University with a bachelor
degree in Business Administration. From 1992 to 2003, Mr. Qiu was
the department manager at the Bank of China Limited, Beijing Branch
responsible for a wide range of banking and credit duties. From 2004
to 2008, he joined the Shanghai Pudong Development Bank, Beijing
Branch and served as the business manager in charge of marketing
and credit functions. Mr. Qiu then became the deputy general manager
and director of the finance department in Beijing Dong Fang Chengrui
Investment Consultants, Ltd. (“Dong Fang”). He was responsible for the
overall operation and strategic decisions of the foreign investment and
financing businesses of Dong Fang. Mr. Qiu is well versed with Chinese
domestic banking system, settlement, foreign exchange and credit areas.
He also has extensive experience in the fields of financial management
and securities investment.

Mr. Gao Yang (“Mr. Gao”), aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 9 November 2015 and re-designated as
an executive Director on 18 December 2015. He is also a director of
several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Gao graduated from 2 BAp
B B 2 $4 7% 72 X 2 National Judicial Official Amateur Legal University*
(the predecessor of National Judges College), majoring in law. He has
extensive legal knowledge and has accumulated extensive experience
in judgement. Mr. Gao had been worked in the Beijing court system
for almost 20 years and has held various positions such as clerk of the
court, assistant judge, judge, deputy chief judge of the Criminal Court
and chief judge of the Economic Court. He also worked as general
manager for several companies during 1991 to 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER

Mr. Hu Qixian (“Mr. Hu”), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
Director on 1 June 2016. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee and a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Hu
obtained his undergraduate certificate in finance from the Open University
of China (BEIZX FAER) (formerly known as China Central Radio and TV
University (Ff R EIE T AE)) in 2003. He is an Intermediate Economist
(FP AR AR ) in the PRC. Mr. Hu also obtained the Securities Practitioner
Qualification Certificates issued by the Securities Association of China.
He served in the branch of Longhui County, Hunan Province of the PRC
(PEARIRITHREE B 77) as credit clerk during 1993 to 2010.
From June 2010 to June 2012, Mr. Hu was the sales and marketing
manager of sales department of Jiefang Road, Changsha of China
Galaxy Securities Co., Ltd. (R BRI ZFHAHBRA 7).

Mr. Chen Xi, aged 50, was appointed as an executive Director on
1 June 2016. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee.
Mr. Chen Xi graduated from Shenzhen University (Z&YIIXZ) with a
bachelor’s degree in business administration. From 1994 to 2003, he
served as the general manager of & JIl /52 1% & B BR A 7] (Shenzhen
Zhonggian Investment Management Co., Ltd.), and has become its
shareholder since 1995. Subsequently, Mr. Chen Xi founded or invested
in various companies including _£/8E X & 8 Ak 7% A R A & (Shanghai
Xishi Financial Services Co., Ltd.) and was appointed as its chairman. He
has extensive experience in the fields of integrated financial services and
investment management advisory services and possess strong foresight

capacity.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (“Mr. Wong”), aged 62, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 17 October 2016. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee. Mr. Wong holds a master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He is
a fellow member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia,
and an associate member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants.
Mr. Wong is also a responsible officer for asset management and advising
on securities for CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK) Company
Limited under the SFO. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Asia Orient Holdings Limited, Asia Standard International
Group Limited, Century City International Holdings Limited, China
Shanshui Cement Group Limited, China Ting Group Holdings Limited,
ENM Holdings Limited, Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited, Golden
Eagle Retail Group Limited, Nickel Resources International Holdings
Company Limited, Paliburg Holdings Limited, Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited, TPV Technology Limited, Yuan Heng Gas Holdings
Limited and Zhuguang Holdings Group Company Limited, the shares of
these companies are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Wong was an executive director, the deputy general manager, group
financial controller and company secretary of Guangzhou Investment
Company Limited (now known as Yuexiu Property Company Limited)
for over ten years. He acted as an independent non-executive director
of PacMos Technologies Holdings Limited (now known as PacRay
International Holdings Limited) during the period from August 1995
to June 2014, the shares of which are listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong has over 36 years of experience in finance,
accounting and management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER

Ms. Chen Yan (“Ms. Chen”), aged 37, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 15 June 2016. She is also
the chairperson of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee. Ms. Chen is a law graduate from j&# K2 (Tsinghua
University) in 2004 and obtained a master of laws degree (Business Law
in a Global Contest) from University of Montreal, Canada in 2010. She
had worked in Beijing Supreme People’s Court as judge’s assistant of
the No. 2 criminal justice division (1t m AR A RIER IS & #I8E —kE)
during the period from September 2002 to January 2005, served as a
legal adviser of a consulting company in Canada during the period from
January 2005 to September 2007, a lawyer of Zhong Lun Law Firm (/1
72BN ETEFT) in Shenzhen during the period of December 2009 to July
2012 and an investment manager of /& & % & % & (Tangshang Group)
during the period of July 2012 to December 2013. Since 2014, Ms. Chen
served as the PRC lawyer of Li & Partners. She has extensive experience
in private equity transactions, domestic and overseas share offering and
foreign direct investment projects.

Mr. Xu Haiou (“Mr. Xu”), aged 49, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 15 June 2016. He is also the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee, and a member of each of the Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee. Mr. Xu holds a degree of bachelor of
business studies with a major in finance, from Massey University of
New Zealand. He has over 10 years’ experience in banking credit and
investment management businesses and 10 years’ experience in private
equity funds management. Mr. Xu had worked in & JII T &1 48 B 2 2%
& & BR A & (Shenzhen Qina Industrial Development Co., Ltd.*) during
the period of 2010 to September 2013 as deputy general manager
and was involved in helping that company to apply for personal SAFE
foreign currency exchange franchise business, and the establishment
of “Excellent Exchange” currency exchange brand. In 2013, he founded
and served as the general manager of &Y B E S HR A (Shenzhen
G&F Trading Co., Ltd.), which is a company principally engaged in
operation of convenience store chain business in Shenzhen port, metro
and hospitals.

izt ((BRaLt]) 375 R-ZE—AF
NATHBEZRTABUERTES - FINA
REZEBGZEEBREZEEEINE - RK
TRZZSTNFEBEASEEARERE - I
RZE—SFRBNEASHNBAZBERG
SFELTEM - FER - TET_FHAZ-ET
hFE—ABBEEERT e RARERMEEH
F_ELETEEDE R-ZTTRF—AZE=
TELFNAPBE—RMERNBARRLE
EEER RZEENF+ZAEZE—=F
+ A BARITE R Y AP fm D B 75 P T S AT
PR -_B——F+AFE T =%+ F i/
FEARESELTRELE Brta=T
— P F AR T EB R T P BA I
Bl - REABRERS - BERINET - INFE
BERESEY  AARENERLER -

FEBEE(HEED  49% RZE—X
FRATHIHEZEABILIENTES - FI
BEHEWNEES 2R UREZZESRRES
ZEERBEZNE - FEEFARAFBAKN
£ (Massey University) T BB 287 - &
BeR - FERBIOFHNRITEE KETRE

BE o URI0OFHREESERRLR - FFEE
RZE—ZEFE_ZT-=FNAHBERNR

YMERBEXERERAFBELE BB
NERFESEFIMNEETEBEARINE
FRHSEER - WA TERE] IMNE LM
e R _FE-—=FRIVRINEHEZERD
A ERALE  2aREIRERIIAE -
Wi - BB PR R AR T o

2016 FF#| ERPREZERERLF

65



66

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREER

Mr. Chau Sen Chung (“Mr. Chau”), aged 57, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 31 August 2016. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Chau obtained a Bachelor
degree from FEH A& KEE (East China Normal University) with a major in
Mathematics. He had served as /8T ALBEIBESEHRWER (the
Deputy Secretary-General of Shanghai Public Relations Association) in
EETZAEEIBIERE (the Economic Section of the United Front Work
Department of Shanghai Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference) and had also served as the chief representative
of the Shanghai representative office of # B & % X & B A 7] (Alied
Domecq PLC), responsible for managing the wine trading business in
provinces in Huadong region. Mr. Chau is currently a director of #5 &
(b8) BB Z 5 ABR A A (Changyi (Shanghai) International Trade Co.,
Ltd.). He has extensive experience in wine trading. In addition, Mr. Chau
involved in clubhouse catering business since 2014 and entrenched well-
developed relationships and network.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tse Kam Fai (“Mr. Tse”), aged 53, was appointed as the Company
Secretary of the Company on 1 January 2014. Mr. Tse is a fellow
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
The Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries. He is also a member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Tse is currently also the
company secretary of four companies whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange and a company whose shares are
listed on GEM. He is also an executive director of a local professional firm
providing regulatory compliance, corporate governance and corporate
secretarial services to listed and unlisted corporations. Mr. Tse has more
than 25 years’ experience in handling listed company secretarial and
compliance related matters.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEOHRE

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report and the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Group
is principally engaged in digital cable television business, wireless digital
television value-added services and wireless digital audio integrated
circuits business. Details of the principal activities of the principal
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including a discussion
of an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business and
the events after the reporting period, can be found in the Management
Discussion and Analysis as set out on pages 6 to 26 of this annual
report. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.

The environmental policies and performance and relationships with
employees, customers and supplier and others that have a significant
impact on the Company and on which the Company’s success depends
are also discussed under section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report. These discussions form part
of this Report of the Directors.

Financial Key Performance Indicators

The analysis of financial key performance indicators can be found in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.
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ESEHE

BUSINESS/MARKET RISKS

16 7 358 8 15 £ 47 B IR 2 &) (Beijing Yaao Boshi Technology Limited*)
had co-operated with local television stations of Xinji, Dongguang and
Qing County in Hebei province to develop the cable television network
that covers the 3 counties. The digital transformation scheme had been
implemented for the cable television subscribers in the said 3 counties.
The revenue from this sector form the main and vital source among the
other business sectors in the Group.

The functional manager will carefully scrutinize each project for related
risks and returns. These include assessment of relevant government
policies, market demand, market conditions and economic data.
The Management is responsible for supervision, conducting regular
operational reviews and keeping the Board fully informed through regular
reports (either in written or verbal form), and prompt decisions can
therefore be made if changes are required.

OPERATIONAL RISKS

The front-line or functional manager will review key activities of the
Group and ensures all material required control procedures, including
financial and operational, are functioning implemented. Precautionary
and contingency measures are also set up to ensure the Group is
protected against major potential loss, damage or impact to the business
operations.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEOHRE

FINANCIAL RISKS

The investment and business operation are exposed to risks from
exchange rates, interest rates and liquidity. Amid global and PRC financial
uncertainties, the financial risks encountered by the Group had increased
accordingly.

The financial controller of the Group closely monitors the financial
risks and when appropriate will adopt measures to manage and
hedge corresponding risk if necessary and obtained approval from the
Directors. The Group's cash and financing are decentrally managed and
controlled at the subsidiary level and closely monitored at the corporate
level through regularly reporting. To meet the obligations as and when
needed, the Group maintains sufficient facilities with various banks in
PRC and Hong Kong. The maturity of deposits and loans are planned
and managed to reduce liquidity risk.

COMPLIANCE RISKS

Front-line or functional manager reviews key activities of the Group to
ensure the compliance of local rules and regulations from time to time.
The responsible persons of each of the major subsidiaries are required
to communicate and consult with local legal advisors in daily operations
or for material transactions if necessary. The Group has engaged a PRC
legal advisor in 2016 for annual retention services in PRC and a Hong
Kong legal advisor for certain major events in 2016 to reduce the risk of
non-compliance of local rules and regulations as well as the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules.

OTHER RISKS

Details of other risks, for example, the forign currency risk, credit
risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk, ate set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the PRC while the Shares are listed on GEM. Hence,
our establishment and operations shall comply with relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC, Hong Kong and the respective place of
incorporation of the Company and its subsidiaries. In addition, the
Company is required to comply with the GEM Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this
report, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material breach of
or non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 91-92 of this annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 2 June
2017, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 26 May 2017 to Friday, 2 June 2017, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to be
eligible to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting, all
transfers of Shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Union Registrars Limited at Suites 3301-04, 33/F., Two
Chinachem Exchange Square, 338 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong
for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 25 May 2017.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a total of 3,044,347,822 new
Shares has been issued by way of subscription and upon conversion of
the First CB and Second CB. Further details of the Shares issued during
the year ended 31 December 2016, the Subscription and conversion
of the First CB and Second CB can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BONDS

Details of the First CB and Second CB issued during the year ended
31 December 2016 can be found in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity on page 95 of this annual report and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company did not have any reserves
available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie to the
Shareholders, as computed in accordance with the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) (31 December 2015: Nil). In addition,
the Company’s share premium balance of approximately HK$2,001.4
million as at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015: approximately
HK$1,667.3 million) may be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to the
date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong (Chairman)
(appointed on 17 February 2016)

Mr. Chen Rongbin (Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 21 July 2016)

Mr. Qiu Bin

Mr. Gao Yang

Mr. Hu Qixian (appointed on 1 June 2016)

Mr. Chen Xi (appointed on 1 June 2016)

Mr. Xiao Yan (Chief Executive Officer)
(retired on 31 May 2016)

Mr. Li Tao (retired on 31 May 2016)

Mr. Li Nan (retired on 31 May 2016)

Mr. Yu Bun (retired on 31 May 2016)

Mr. Tan Xiangdong (appointed on 1 June 2016
and resigned on 24 June 2016)

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wang Kun (resigned on 15 December 2016)
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Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Wong Chi Keung (appointed on 17 October 2016)
Ms. Chen Yan (appointed 15 June 2016)

Mr. Xu Haiou (appointed 15 June 2016)

Mr. Chau Sen Chung (appointed 31 August 2016)

Mr. Leung Wo Ping JP. (resigned on 20 June 2016)

Mr. Hu Dingdong (resigned on 20 June 2016)

Mr. Lei Yong (resigned on 8 June 2016)

Mr. Chiu Chi Kong (resigned on 8 June 2016)

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis (appointed on 1 June 2016
and resigned on 31 August 2016)

Pursuant to Bye-Law 87(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr. Qiu Bin shall retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company. In addition, by virtue of Bye-Law 86(2) of the Bye-Laws,
Mr. Chen Rongbin, Mr. Hu Qixian, Mr. Chen Xi, Mr. Wong Chi Keung,
Ms. Chen Yan, Mr. Xu Haiou and Mr. Chau Sen Chung shall retire from
office as Directors at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. All of the above retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 61 to 66 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors (including all independent non-executive Directors)
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a fixed term of
one year renewable automatically for successive terms of one year each
commencing from the day next after the expiry of the then current term
of appointment.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance (as defined in
Rule 18.25 of the GEM Listing Rules) to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director or substantial
shareholder of the Company has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year under review was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors, their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company
or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for Directors’
and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities. Save for the
above, at no time during the year ended 31 December 2016 and up to
the date of this annual report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) being in force for
the benefit at any of the Directors (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of the directors of an associated company (if made by
the Company).
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Board on the basis of their merits, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the non-executive Directors are fixed by the
Board with reference to the recommendations from the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the duties and responsibilities of the non-
executive Directors and the emoluments of the executive Directors
are determined, with delegated responsibility, by the Remuneration
Committee having regard to the duties and responsibilities of the
executive Directors.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible participants, details of the scheme is set out below
and note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted on 30 December 2011
are summarized as follows:

(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group
to grant options to participants as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

(b)

Participants

The Directors may, at their discretion, invite any person who is a
full time or part time employee or director of any member of the
Group, a consultant or agent of or adviser to any member of the
Group, to take up options to subscribe for the Shares.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Total number of Shares available for issue

At the 2016 AGM, a resolution relating to the refreshment of the
scheme mandate limit under the Share Option Scheme was passed
by the Shareholders as an ordinary resolution of the Company. The
total number of the Shares available for issued under the Share
Option Scheme is 795,670,983 Shares, representing approximately
9.58% of the issued Share as at the date of this annual report.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Share Option Scheme

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme to each
participant in any 12 months period shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of grant.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant within 28 days from
the date of the offer of grant of the option. Upon acceptance of the
option, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant of the option.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined and notified by the Board to each grantee, at the time
of making an offer of the grant of an option which shall not expire
later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option. Unless
otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the offer of
the grant of options to a grantee, there is neither any performance
target that needs to be achieved before the option can be
exercised nor any minimum period for which an option must be
held before it can be exercised.
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(f)

(9)

(h)

Price of Shares

The subscription price for a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such price
as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine, save that
such price will not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (i) the
average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of a Share.

Remaining life of the Share Options Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force before 29 December
2021.

Movements in the share options granted

The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share
options granted under the Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2016:

Number of Shares (Note)
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As at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed As at Exercise
1 January during during during during 31 December price per
Participants 2016 the year the year the year the year 2016 Date of grant Exercise period Share
RZB-RE RoB-%E B8R
28% -A-B  RERRE  RERGE REREHE  RERAN TSASt-B RERH 8 TfE
HKS
AT
Other participant Bk 3,000,000 - — - 3,000,000 - 29/02/2012 01/03/2013-29/02/2016 084
Total 5 3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 -
Note: FiEE -

Number of Shares over which options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is exercisable.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 December 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, the chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) in the Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or pursuant to Rule 5.46 of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities transactions by Directors, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

Interests and short position in Shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company
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Approximate
percentage of interests in
the issued share capital

Name of Director Capacity Long position/short position ~ Number of Shares held of the Company

ERDRAEBRITRAER
Bz L) He/Re FEZRHEA ZBREDL
Tan SriDato’ Lim Tong Yong ~ Beneficial owner Long position 865,596,000 10.42%

TR S B ERBEAA e

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and chief executives of
the Company nor their associates had any interests and short positions
in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required standard
of dealings by Directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the GEM Listing

Rules as at 31 December 2016.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS'’/

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2016, the following persons (other than the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company) had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares

Name of shareholders

Type of Interests

TERR T HMALTRALQF

Z B3 RARBARR 1D 2 e KK

=

7,

<

RZF—RNE+ZA=+—H ' WFTALZ(ERQ
AIZEEREZETHRABRIN RAAERMG K
FRBARR (7 P B IR IR 5 R A E 155 55 336 1%
BYFEERMATRE AR

REG IR

Number of Shares
held/interested in

Approximate
percentage of
interests in the issued
share capital

of the Company

BEZROEE HARATE BITRAERE
REREE R BEREZZRHHE ZBHBEDL
Tang Hanbo Beneficial owner 2,004,020,000 24.13%
FEE BE=mmAA
Sino King Trading (HK) Beneficial owner 434,782,608 5.24%
Co., Limited EnEEA
Chan Lai Pan (Note) (Ffi7E) Interest in controlled 434,782,608 5.24%
corporation
SN di
Note: BiE -

Chan Lai Pan is the legal and beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital
of Sino King Trading (HK) Co., Limited. By virtue of the provisions of Part XV of
the SFO, Chan Lai Pan is deemed to be interested in these 434,782,608 Shares

which Sino King Trading (HK) Co., Limited is interested.

Chan Lai Pan % Sino King Trading (HK) Co., Limited
2EHEETRAZEEZERHEEA - REZF LB
B A EXVEL 2 & 32 Chan Lai Pan# 18 /& 7 2%
%434,782,608M% %15 (Sino King Trading (HK) Co.,
Limited A E R B 2w ) R HE A #ERs o
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, the Directors were
not aware that there was any person (not being a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who had, or was deemed to have, interests
or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and was recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

BREXPRBEEN RZT—-—RF+ A
=t+—R  BFEHIABEEMAL (LIEERR
AEEREBRITHRAR) RARA 2B A0
B R B SRR AR A IR B E 5 M E 150
EXVEIE2 R FIDH 2 G ARRRERKE
RIBARERIEE 77 NS RGI % 336 FA T
FEERCMARCER ERIORE

FTEFEFREER

Percentage of the Group’s

HAREEESL
Revenue Purchases
Wz R
The largest customer BARF 76%
Five largest customers in aggregate AAREFAE 79%
The largest supplier BAHIER 31%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AR EEE T 95%

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the
laws of Bermuda, being the jurisdiction in which the Company was
incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.
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PURCHASES, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company nor any
of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as required under the
GEM Listing Rules.

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors or any of their associates (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may
compete with the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of
interests with the Group.

AUDITOR

Following the resignation of Cheng & Cheng Limited as auditor of the
Company on 8 December 2015, ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Company on 18 December 2015 to fill
the casual vacancy following the resignation of Cheng & Cheng Limited.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other changes in auditor of the
Company during the past three years.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to re-appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY hFMBERE

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the Group for AEEBRT AEVBFEZEZEUREERE
the past five financial years is set out on pages 191 to 192. EMESHNE191 21928 -

On behalf of the Board REESE

Lim Tong Yong FTEFNTESFE

Chairman and Executive Director PRERFE*

24 March 2017 —E—+tF=A=+mWmA
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R GTE e

MM o

ZHONGHUI

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HENG XIN CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Heng Xin
China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 91 to 190, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effect of the matters as described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

1. Corresponding figures

Included in the impairment loss for the year ended 31 December
2015 were amounts of approximately RMB111,695,000 (equivalent
to HK$141,386,000) relating to trade receivables brought forward
from 31 December 2014. We have not been provided with
sufficient appropriate audit evidence whether the impairment loss
should be recorded in 2015 or years before.
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Disposal group classified as held for sale
and associated liabilities

We have not yet obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to satisfy ourselves as to the carrying amounts of disposal group
classified as held for sale of approximately HK$245,268,000 (2015:
HK$254,362,000) and liabilities associated with disposal group
classified as held for sale of approximately HK$43,650,000 (2015:
HK$64,246,000). There are no other satisfactory audit procedures
that we could adopt to satisfy ourselves as to whether these
amounts are fairly stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
due to the incident of a suspected misappropriation of funds of
Shanxi Zhongze Heng Yuan Biological Technology Company
Limited (“Shanxi Zhongze”), a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Company, the existing directors considered that the control over
the Shanxi Zhongze had been lost. Since then, the directors neither
had control over the operating and financial activities, nor any
access to the underlying accounting books and records of Shanxi
Zhongze. Due to the lack of control and the unavailability of these
financial records of Shanxi Zhongze for the period beginning from 1
January 2016, the directors considered that it was impracticable to
consolidate the results, assets, liabilities and cash flows of Shanxi
Zhongze from 1 January 2016.

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the Group had lost control of Shanxi Zhongze since 1
January 2016. In addition, no sufficient evidence has been provided
to satisfy ourselves as to the amounts of assets and liabilities of
this subsidiary deconsolidated. As a result, we are unable to satisfy
ourselves that the loss on deconsolidation of this subsidiary of
approximately HK$65,403,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 was fairly stated.
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4. Deposits for acquisition of non-current

assets

As explained in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had paid a deposit of HK$36,000,000 for acquisition of
non-current assets, of which an impairment loss of HK$18,000,000
was recognised during the year ended 31 December 2016. We
have not yet obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to amount of impairment loss recognised
during the year and the recoverability of remaining deposit for
acquisition of non-current assets of HK$18,000,000. There are
no other satisfactory audit procedures that we could adopt to
determine whether the impairment loss of HK$18,000,000 made
during the year and the remaining balances of the deposit of
HK$18,000,000 are fairly stated.

Other investment

We have not yet obtained sufficient appropriate audit evidence to
satisfy ourselves as to the impairment test of other investment of
HK$61,750,000. There are no other satisfactory audit procedures
that we could adopt to determine whether any impairment on the
amounts should be made in the consolidated financial statements.

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have a
consequential effect on the Group’s financial performance and cash
flows for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016, the financial
positions of the Group as at 31 December 2015 and 2016, and the
related disclosures thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. In addition to the matters described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Refer to Notes 19 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant to
our audit because the balance of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets of HK$20,271,000 and HK$8,179,000 respectively
as at 31 December 2016 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves application
of judgement and is based on assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the identification of the related cash generating units;

— Assessing the arithmetical accuracy of the value-in-use calculations
with reference to the valuation performed by the external valuer
engaged by client;

— Assessing the competence, independence and integrity of the
external valuer engaged by client;

—  Obtaining the external valuation reports and meeting with the
external valuer, to discuss and challenge the valuation process,
methodologies used and market evidence to support significant
judgments and assumptions applied in the valuation model;

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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—  Checking key assumptions and input data in the valuation model to
supporting evidence;

—  Checking arithmetical accuracy of the valuation model;

—  Comparing the actual cash flows with the cash flow projections;

— Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions (including
revenue growth, profit margins, terminal growth rates and discount
rates); and

—  Checking input data to supporting evidence.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets is supported by the available evidence.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Refer to Note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for impairment. This
impairment test is significant to our audit because the balance of trade
receivables of HK$35,901,000 as at 31 December 2016 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment
test involves application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit limits and
credit periods to customers;

—  Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history with the
customers;

—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
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—  Assessing ageing of the debits;
—  Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;
—  Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit risk in
the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for trade receivables is
supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when
it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about
the corresponding figures, disposal group classified as held for sale and
associated liabilities, loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary, deposit for
acquisition of non-current assets and other investment. Accordingly, we
are unable to conclude whether or not the other information is materially
misstated with respect to these matters.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the HMIMBEZGFEUBERERFIERELBELE—
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website at: SHRAERE S Al

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/standards/  http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-

auditing-assurance/auditre/ regulations/standards/auditing-assurance/
auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report. I MBI E R SRS 2 — 25 o

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited PEZESHMEBAERA A

Certified Public Accountants HEDF AT

Sze Lin Tang HEEE

Audit Engagement Director ERLEEER

Practising Certificate Number PO3614 HEFERITPO3614

Hong Kong, 24 March 2017 B —T—+tF=H=+WMA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

> A2 <
melEaRkEMEEBAE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE
2016 2015
A —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FtEE FET FAET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS  SEKE X
REVENUE & 7 81,218 34,679
Cost of sales SHER A (10,344) (22,502)
Gross profit EF 70,874 12,177
Other income EAb YA 8 38,227 1,437
Selling and distribution costs SHE R SHA AR (893) (1,717)
Administrative and ITH R AR
operating expenses (82,113) (565,875)
Impairment on various assets FEEERE 10 (62,697) (260,684)
Loss on deconsolidation BUBfRAE ABR—RHHB AR 2
of a subsidiary &8 15 (65,403) —
LOSS FROM OPERATION REXBEER (102,005) (304,662)
Finance costs B A AR 11 (6,973) (9,302)
LOSS BEFORE TAX RRE AT 18 (108,978) (313,964)
Income tax credit FriSHiiE e 12 59,551 1,391
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM IEEE £ ERNEIE
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (49,427) (812,573)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS C & IF&R&¥7
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM BRI E X FNEER
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 16(c) (8,653) (148,286)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR FREE 13 (58,080) (460,859)
Other comprehensive loss for FREMZEEE (FIREA) :
the year, net of tax:
Items that may be reclassified AEEEH P EEEHZZER -
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on BEBINET 2 BN ZERE
translation of foreign operations (12,336) (12,737)
Exchange difference reclassified R EUEARE ABRMIE A 7]
to profit or loss on REND BB ERERE
deconsolidation of subsidiary 3,437 —
Exchange differences reclassified W HEHEB A RREFHEE
to profit or loss on disposal B sEHERE
of subsidiaries - (11,241)
(8,899) (23,978)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FALHEBRARE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (66,979) (484,837)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

reEmREMEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RF —ET—hHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
BoaE FET T
LOSS FOR THE YEAR BN ALEEFARESE :
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company EATEBA
Loss from continuing operations ~ #HEAL & £ 15518 (49,427) (312,573)
Loss from discontinued BRI REEKEE
operations (4,413) (139,521)
Loss attributable to owners AR F#HEE AE(LEE
of the Company (53,840) (452,094)
Non-controlling interests FEHERR IR R =
Loss from continuing operations ~ #HEAL & £ E 18 - —
Loss from discontinued BRI RS X EE
operations (4,240) (8,765)
Loss attributable to FEER R RS R AR
non-controlling interests (4,240) (8,769)
(58,080) (460,859)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LT ALEEER
LOSS FOR THE YEAR 2HEEHAEE .
ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company EATEE A (64,966) (476,262)
Non-controlling interests FEEER R R = (2,013) (8,575)
(66,979) (484,837)
LOSS PER SHARE (HK$ cents) &MREE (G81l) 18
From continuing and REBFERCRIEREE]
discontinued operations
— Basic — &K (0.70) (10.17)
— Diluted — e (0.70) (10.17)
From continuing operations  REFELE £
— Basic — HAR (0.64) (7.03)
— Diluted —EE (0.64) (7.03)
From discontinued operations RE B4 1L && %K
— Basic — HK (0.06) (8.14)
— Diluted — e (0.06) (3.14)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BAARR R

As at 31 December 2016

R_F—RF+-_A=+—H

2016 2015
AL —T—AF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’'000
5T FHET FH&TT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment 1% - BiE K& 1fE 19 20,271 35,566
Goodwill G 20 - 20,446
Intangible assets mREE 21 8,179 63,738
Derivative financial instrument PTEEmTA - 3,896
Deposits for acquisition of WEEIERBEE  RE
non-current assets 25 19,300 36,000
Other investment Hipig & 24 61,750 —
109,500 159,646
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Inventories eSS 26 - 46,733
Trade receivables FEW R SR 27 35,901 110,923
Prepayments, deposits and AR - e Kk
other receivables H b pE U RIE 28 3,060 62,428
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEEY 29 84,411 88,864
123,372 308,948
Non-current assets held for sale  #H{EHE Z IERBNEE 22 245,268 254,362
368,640 563,310
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Trade payables FE{FEREX 30 21,548 41,066
Other payables and accruals E At RIA R ERT B R 31 21,715 240,672
Receipts in advance TEUBR TR 32 8,684 47,297
Notes payables e EI% - 70,000
Short term loans REEIE N 33 3,371 12,571
Tax payable FEST IR 10 56,287
55,328 467,893
Liabilities directly associated with ERFEH{EH & Z IERENEE
non-current assets held for sale  E#EiHEC B & 22 43,650 64,246
98,978 532,139
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEZE 269,662 31,171
TOTAL ASSETS LESS BEERRBEME
CURRENT LIABILITIES 379,162 190,817
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e PR R

As at 31 December 2016 R-B—RF+-_A=+—8
2016 2015
—EB-KR¥ —T-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FtaE FE T FAT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥REIE &

Receipts in advance TEUBR TR 32 - 56,637
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE 35 1,768 7,111
1,768 63,748
NET ASSETS BEERE 377,394 127,069
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners 42 REG A E(GERS
of the Company
Issued capital BEITRA 36 83,045 52,602
Reserves 1 38 283,898 14,780
366,943 67,382
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR IR R = 10,451 59,687
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 377,394 127,069

The consolidated financial statements on pages 91 to 190 were HF U EZFINHZGAFBEHREER -
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24 March ~ —+t&F = A =+ /0 A& & B2 i R EETE

2017 and are signed on its behalf by: BRI TATRAESE :
Approved by: BEA
Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong Chen Rongbin
B ESEMRERFE" FRERIE,
Director Director
EE EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEER# R

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE-ZT—X"F+-A=+—AILtEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RRAREAEL
Foreign
currency Share Non-
Issued Share Capital translation option Other Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total  interests equity
N FER

BEARA  ROEE* EARE  RERE BRERE EtEE  ZiEE f  KRER  EnfE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
T ThL Thr Thn T ThTL Thr T T ThTL
At1 January 2015 R-E-1F-A-H 34580 1478350 2,325 80,847 4236 (79,992)  (1,183,650) 336,702 21,039 357,741
Total comprehensive loss for the year FRZABIEES - - - (24,168) - - (450094 (476,262 (8575 (484837)
Issue of new shares ¥kt 18016 188,926 - - - - - 062 - 206,942
Acquistion of a subsidiary YE-BHBAA - - - - - - - - 47223 47223
At 31 December 2015 R=F-R%t-f=1-A 52602 1,667,276 2,325 56,679 4236 (79992)  (1,635,744) 67,382 59,687 127,069
At 1 January 2016 RZE-F-f-H 52602 1,667,276 2,325 56,679 4,236 (79992)  (1,635,744) 67,382 59,687 127,069
Total comprehensive loss for the year 2 EEIEEE - = = (11,126) = = (53,840) (64,966) 201y (66979)
Issue of new shares skt 17400 182,700 = = = = - 20,00 - 200,100

lssue of shares upon comversion RSB AR B4 %4
of convertible bonds IR 13048 151,384 = = = = = 164,427 - 164427
Share options lapsed during the year RERE KRR E - - - = (4.236) = 4236 = = =
Deconsolidation of asubsiclary ~ BUEGA AR —EHELR - - - - - = - = @729  (4729)
At 31 December 2016 RZF—AEt-A=1-A 83,045 2,001,360 2,325 45,553 - (79992) (1,685,348 366,943 10,451 377,3%

consolidated statement of financial position.

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the

*

ZERBEREESEUBRRRANERE F

e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—A"F+-A=1t—HILFE

96

2016 2015
—B-R¥ TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM RETDABRSRE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax FRA% A E IR
From continuing operations BB E R (108,978) (313,964)
From discontinued operations RE BRI E T (8,653) (148,286)
Adjustments for: AT SBEL AR
Finance costs BB 6,973 9,302
Interest income FE WA (26) (4
Gain on disposal of property, HEMZE - BFE K&z W
plant and equipment - (205)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HE B A BEE - 123,069
Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary ~ BUB4R& ABR—FEHI B A 72 &8 65,403 —
Depreciation of property, plant M - BEREETE
and equipment 3,714 8,433
Amortisation of intangible assets B & S 6,783 15,027
Property, plant and equipment M - RE KR
written off 4 —
Reversal of overprovision of SHEE A ZN B RE R i Bt 1B
costs of sales (7,741) —
Net gain on settlement with a customer Bl —FRPE 4 E 7 5558 (21,765) —
Fair value loss on initial recognition IR ES 2 A EEE
of convertible bonds 15,000 —
Share of loss of an associate A —REE A RB1E 566 124
Fair value changes on disposal group DEAFEHEZHESE
classified as held for sale Z AV EEE (12,068) —
Fair value gain on financial derivatives SRIPTET A A EKRE (5,451) —
Impairment losses on goodwil EEREEE 11,563 80,295
Impairment losses on intangible assets & & EREEIE 16,477 —
Impairment losses on inventories GFERBEEE 3,243 4,631
Impairment losses on trade receivables  EXEZUREEE 692 137,895
Impairment losses on prepayments, FERFIE - Ze Kk
deposits and other receivables E At e GRIB R EE 1B 151 8,000
Impairment losses on property, VI BB LR EREEE
plant and equipment 12,571 13,823
Impairment losses on deposits for WHESIEMBN B E < iR e REEE
acquisition on non-current assets 18,000 12,000
Impairment losses on EETIRREEE
construction-in-progress - 4,040
(3,542) (45,820)
Change in inventories FEEH) 2,062 8,403
Change in trade receivables JE U BR SR B 44,917 8,081
Change in prepayments, deposits TERFIE e REAEWGIEEE)
and other receivables 4,907 (21,009)
Change in trade payables FE{ AR TR (11,777) 6,360
Change in other payables and accruals — EAth JE{ Z/IE & fE =+ & F & &) (11,883) 7,249
Change in receipts in advance TR BR SR &) (59,956) (17,687)
Cash used in operations KEFMAZEE (35,272) (54,423)
Income tax paid BEH (847) (3,888)
Net cash flows used in KEEEFA
operating activities REREFH (36,119) (58,311)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHMBRENE
ACTIVITIES
Deposits for investment REZRE (1,300) (36,000)
Acquisition of other investment WEE B IS & (61,750) —
Purchase of property, plant EEME - BE&&HE
and equipment (2,846) (38,408)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE - (928)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEK B AR - 9,866
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - RE KRB ZFMERIE
plant and equipment - 629
Net cash outflow on decosolidation of ~ BUHEAR& ASR—HKTE AR
a subsidiary Z IR RFRE (769) =
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WE—RHEB AR RS
a subsidiary R R - (61,161)
Interest received BYFIE 26 4
Net cash flows used in RETEFFA
investing activities REREFH (66,639) (125,998)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEETHMEREESRE
ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from issue of shares BRI BEATPTIS SR IR F R 40,050 146,946
Temporary receipts from shares B B0 R UER  Falr 5B
subscription - 160,050
Issue of notes payable BITRNEE - 70,000
Repayment of notes payable EERENEE - (100,000)
Net proceeds from issue of BT IR RE S TS SIEF 5
convertible bonds 80,000 —
Repayment of short-term loans BEEEER (9,000) —
Interest on bank loans/other loan SRITER HMbEZZFE (2,668) (2,041)
Net cash flows generated from RMEFBEEZ
financing activities REREFHE 108,382 274,955
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReREELZEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS EhnFE 5,624 90,646
Cash and cash equivalents at REVIZRE KRS ZEY
beginning of year 88,947 7,107
Net foreign exchange difference &5 =FE (9,441) (8,806)
Cash and cash equivalents at RERZRERBEZEY
end of year 85,130 88,947
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF ReRRSEEYZEBRDH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHE &R 84,411 88,864
Cash and bank balances included FTAREREZEEY
in assets held for sale W& RIRTTHE R 719 83
Total cash and bank balances Be MIRTTE B 85,130 88,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited
liability. Its shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of its registered office is at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The address
of its principal place of business is Suite 3604, 36/F., Central Plaza,
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Deconsolidation of a subsidiary

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared based
on the books and records maintained by the Group. However, due
to the incident of a suspected misappropriation of funds of LLI75
EEEEYRI AR AT (Shanxi Zhongze Heng Yuan Biological
Technology Company Limited*) (“Shanxi Zhongze”), a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Company, as detailed in the Company’s
announcement dated 14 November 2016, the directors considered
that the control over the Shanxi Zhongze had been lost. Since then,
the directors neither had control over the operating and financial
activities, nor any access to the underlying accounting books and
records of Shanxi Zhongze. Due to the lack of control and thus the
unavailability of these financial records of Shanxi Zhongze for the
period beginning from 1 January 2016, the directors considered
that it was impracticable to consolidate the results, assets, liabilities
and cash flows of Shanxi Zhongze from 1 January 2016.

* The English names are for identification only
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting year
beginning on 1 January 2016. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes
to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year and
prior years.

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group has already
commenced an assessment of the impact of these new and
revised HKFRS but is not yet in a position to state whether these
new and revised HKFRSs would have a material impact on its
results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors to
exercise its judgements in the process of applying the accounting
policies. The areas involving critical judgements and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESTTHX @)

(continued)

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability
to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESTTHX @

(continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

(a) 458 &)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries
not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position and consolidated statement of
changes in equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year between the
non-controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their
capacity as owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed
to the owners of the Company.
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(b) Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition
of a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of
acquisition is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of
the assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs are
incurred and the services are received. |dentifiable assets and
liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at
their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of
the Company’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might
be impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment
losses of goodwill is the same as that of other assets as
stated in the accounting policy (z) below. Impairment losses
of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate
share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable
assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (o)

(continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESTTHX @

(continued)

(c) Associates (c) BEE L\ 7]
Associates are entities over which the Group has significant BENRRAEEHHEABEKRY
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate BHrER -EATENRSEZ
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity BERYBEREEBRRRKEZES

but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered when assessing
whether the Group has significant influence. In assessing
whether a potential voting right contributes to significant
influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability to
exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method and
is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities
of the associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. The goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the investment and is tested for impairment together with
the investment at the end of each reporting period when
there is objective evidence that the investment is impaired.
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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(c) Associates (continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and
its share of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in the consolidated reserves. The cumulative
post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising
its share of those profits only after its share of the profits
equals the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus
the fair value of any investment retained in that associate and
(i) the Group’s share of the net assets of that associate plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that associate and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture, the Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (o)

(continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (2

(continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

0]

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.
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(d) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

—  All resulting exchange differences are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign entities
and of borrowings are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (o)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE
2 L
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EZEFBER @

(continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) V¥  BMERZE
Property, plant and equipment other than construction in Yz - KB REE (ERETIRERIN)
progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation TR AR R EH T B AR EE
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, B W% BEREZEEE 2
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any KAEREEBEBEREMNAFEE
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working EEEEERR RER BB E
condition and location for its intended use. [RE R 2 F R BB o
Construction in progress includes property, plant and FRIEBFEERLIERERIEEE
equipment in the course of construction for production or HERAZYE BERXE - £F
for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried TR AR B R EEE
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Depreciation PR - fEi T2 MHRE & = 0] A I
begins when the relevant assets are available for use. FIRETIRITE - TEIRENEIR
Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate AERERZR 2 EAYE - BE
category of property, plant and equipment when completed R EELER -

and ready for intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount ENBRAERENRRLEENZER
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when AR AREEM%IE B KA g
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with AISETEl - BEXRAFTEFAE
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can EREES - iR AEREE (1§
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are BRABAME) T8 EMEES kIR
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they BEREENHRETESERER -

are incurred.
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(e) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Computer equipment 9-30%
Furniture and fixtures 19%

Leasehold improvements over the remaining lease term

Motor vehicles 6%
Office equipment 18%
Plant and machinery 6-9%

Transmission and other 6% or over the contract term,

network equipment which ever is shorter
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
is the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(f) Leases

0]

(i)

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. At the commencement of the
lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the lower of
the fair value of the leased asset and the present value
of the minimum lease payments, each determined at
the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance lease
payable. Lease payments are apportioned between the
finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their estimated useful
lives.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Intangible assets

(i)

(i)

Intangible assets acquired separately

On initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
separately other than from business combinations are
recognised at cost. After initial recognition, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any identified impairment loss. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line
basis over its useful lives of 10-18 years, and carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the profit or
loss when the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are identified and recognised separately from goodwill
where they satisfy the definition of an intangible asset
and their fair values can be measured reliably. The
cost of such intangible assets is their fair value at the
acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is provided on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 8 to 18 years. Alternatively, intangible
assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESTTHX @

(continued)

(h) Inventories

(i)

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

()

(k)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market and are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment.
An allowance for impairment of trade and other receivables is
established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the
original terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance is
the difference between the receivables’ carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition.
The amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in the
receivables’ recoverable amount can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the
receivables at the date the impairment is reversed shall not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Other investments

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked
to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity
instruments, are measured at cost less impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESTTHX @)

(continued)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BE_Z

—NF+ZA=t+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (2

(continued)

(1)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which
are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents.

(m) Financial liabilities and equity

(n)

instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (o)

(continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Convertible loans

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the
loans into equity instruments, other than into a fixed number
of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price, are
regarded as combined instruments consist of a liability and
derivative components. At the date of issue, the fair values
of the derivative components are determined using an option
pricing model. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to
the liability component and is carried as a liability at amortised
cost using the effective interest method until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The derivative components are
measured at fair value with gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability
and derivative components of the convertible loans based
on the allocation of proceeds to the liability and derivative
components on initial recognition.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including early redemption
option of convertible bonds, are initially recognised at fair
value on the date of issue and are subsequently remeasured
at their fair value.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Revenues from the sales of goods are recognised
on the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered and the title has passed

to the customers.

(i)  Service income is recognised in the period when

services are rendered.

@iy Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

(t) Employee benefits

() Employee leave entitlements
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Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(t) Employee benefits (continuea)

(i)

(iii)

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

(u) Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to

certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments

are measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non

market-based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments

at the date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant

date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed

on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on

the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest

and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting

conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EZEFBER @
(continued)
(v) Borrowing costs (v) BEEK
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, EihE - REIEESEBREE(F
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are E—BRERSEENEBRERAS
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time SHEE) MEFELE ZEERART)
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised BRCEZEEEZRA—ED
as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the BEEREEERY I EBRER
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. BMERABRIEERRL - HEERE
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of BERINEEREECERAIME
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 2 FEERE MR IRE WA TS
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for HEBERENMEZIEERAT R

capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used FR—RBELARBERNEEERE
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount EMEACESME 6BKBER
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined b2 EERAEBINIRARZEE
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that X2 ERELEEGFE - EX{bEE
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the EAEERANAEEZABEARARE
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group EEE (TRERNGEEREEM
that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings BAZKEEBE) 2 INETFHEERK
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying PN

asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in FiBEMEER AR EEE BT
the period in which they are incurred. B HER °
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(w) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESTTHX @)

(continued)

(w) HE

Fir 15 %% /% B B A 18 ERE AEF 18 2 48
B o

BN IR Y IR AN B 2 EAR R
A ETE o ERRTUS A BB P AT
R EE N TR - FERTENT
BREEEMFEERTUWALATN
WAXIER - A TEEKTRB
ETAMBEIEE - NEEZ AV
BIBRAEDZNBREARECERK
BEELEERZMEE

BB B MR PRSI E E K
B (& AR B 8 5T B R SR A A
FERMRE 2 = RAER - BEFIR
BE-RIMBRERNEG R E2E
R MELERAEETI— RN A8
3R P RS ) 4 5 R] AR A AT A3
=25 (RBARBREERARD
PR ) BUAT A Al IR E A =
EHER - WETREZZABELT
FERRVGN R EFHENNR S
RINTHER (RIFAGHRIN) 2 H Al
BERARGBMESL AT SHERZ
FEERREENRAE -

BELEHRBRBERARNE QA
M“TW&%&A%ﬁiﬁmFE
ZRERNE R ZRER - MHERALE
I m] 2 ) T By 2 B 2 R [l T B =
RNA RRRAETSEE 2 1BER
BRSO



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (2

(continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

(w) #E &)

(w) Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any
of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(i)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(x) Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)

(V)

(Vi)

(vii)

(i)

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group s itself
such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to a parent of the
Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EESTTHX @)

(continued)

(v) Segment reporting

(z)

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business in different geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments
have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature
of productions processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment.
Operating segments which are not individually material may
be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet
available for use are reviewed annually for impairment and
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets
except goodwill, inventories, derivatives and receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment loss. Where
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EZEFBER @
(continued)
(z) Impairment of assets (continued) (z) EEBE ®
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs Ak E SR AN FER D EKAR
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the ZEHEEFHAEEMERZES
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present EoRNFHEEAEER - IERT
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current J P 35 R i 455 3 B T B 2 BTAR S 7%
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks BERAB 2R BRIAITIRE -
specific to the asset. BHEET RIS RENREEIRE -
If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit WHIBEE(IFERESELEETL) 2
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying A EeEAFHENEIREE - Al
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to FZIBEEE(NZREeEAEL) 2R
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised HEABRZEETRE &5 o FE
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is BEAENESTHER  RIEEH
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment BENREGHESREYERBRIN - £
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. ZEA T REEBESWHRASER
B e

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the W B BBEEREEE  EHEEER
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is ReEFEE T REEREZLL
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, EHEET 2 AT E S5 - N
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed IREE (R SHS T E1R) TS
the carrying amount that would have been determined (net LW EEEESNIRCEEE LI E
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss RBEFREERERREESEFE
been recognised for the asset or cash-generating unit in EE 2 IRHEE o BB E 1B = BN
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised REZERER @ EHEHEEERE
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is MY - BREEBERE2/E
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of EHIEMERE o

the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (o)

124

(continued)

(aa) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.

(ab) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and
are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EE=:THE (2

(continued)

(ac) FIFHEF RBBERE

(ac) Non-current assets held for sale and

discontinued operation

Non-current assets or disposal group are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the assets or disposal group are available for
immediate sale in their present condition. The Group must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Non-current assets or disposal group classified as held for
sale are measured at the lower of the assets’ or disposal
group’s previous carrying amount and fair value less costs to
sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HILFE
2 L
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EEgitHX @
(continued)
(ac) Non-current assets held for sale and (ac) ZELHEHREEERE

discontinued operation (continueq) AU EZETE 2)

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single WEBIERERIL - BIREBEK

amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss and EfrEKBaREHRE—SE - &

other comprehensive income, which comprises: FEE

— The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued — BRI EBRTE R
operation; and EiE &

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the — RIEERERELEERZ
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the BEILESE 2 AT ERLD
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting ERASREERBEELS
the discontinued operation. EEER - BRRBIR KK

E518 o

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT 5. BASESSTHE KA TESE

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION Yz EERIR
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying accounting FEHE 5B 2 B2+ B
policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors RIERSFEER ZBAEY  EFCHEY
have made the following judgements that have the most significant BHRTHERSEAEREATE Z T
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements (apart HlET (B8 & T XXREBRHESN) o

from those involving estimations, which are dealt with below).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Deconsolidation of a subsidiary

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared based
on the books and records maintained by the Group. However, due
to the incident of a suspected misappropriation of funds associated
with a subsidiary, by that time, the directors considered that the
control over this subsidiary had been lost. Since then, the directors
neither had control over the operating and financial activities, nor
any access to the underlying accounting books and records of this
subsidiary. Due to the lack of control and financial information, the
directors considered that it was impracticable to consolidate the
results, assets, liabilities and cashflows of this subsidiary.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are discussed below.

(@) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment of similar
nature and functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
construction in progress

Property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is determined with
reference to the present value of estimated future cash
flows. Where the future cash flows are less than expected
or there are unfavourable events and change in facts and
circumstance which result in revision of future estimate cash
flows, a material impairment loss may arise.

Recoverability of intangible assets

During the year, the Group reconsidered the recoverability of
its intangible assets arising from the Group’s development,
which is included in its consolidated statement of financial
position at 31 December 2016 at HK$8,179,000 (2015:
HK$63,738,000). Detailed sensitivity analysis has been
carried out and the Group is confident that the carrying
amount of the assets will be recovered in full, even if returns
are reduced. This situation will be closely monitored, and
adjustments made in future periods, if future market activity
indicates that such adjustments are appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment of deposits for acquisition of non-
current assets, trade and other receivables, deposits
and prepayments

Impairment of deposits for acquisition of non-current assets,
trade and other receivables, deposits and prepayments
is made based on an assessment of the recoverability of
deposits for acquisition of non-current assets, trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments. The assessment
of impairment of receivables, deposits and prepayments
involves the use of estimates and judgments. An estimate
for doubtful debts is made when collection of the full amount
is no longer probable, as supported by objective evidence
using available contemporary and historical information to
evaluate the exposure. Bad debts are written off as incurred.
Where the actual outcome or expectation in the future is
different from the original estimates, such differences will
affect the carrying amount of deposits for acquisition of non-
current assets, trade and other receivables, deposits and
prepayments and thus the impairment loss in the period in
which such estimate is changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

6.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:

foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances and
trade and other receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE
6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. IHEEEERBBERBUER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE &)
The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event WHFFTRZE—XNFE+ A
that counterparties fail to perform their obligations at 31 = t—HREBRTEERMT QXS
December 2016 in relation to each class of recognised B EEERReMEEMART
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as ZEEEERBRAE RBNGE I
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. BARR KSR 2 EEREE - &
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade Bz EERbkEZNRKEEUGER -
receivables. In order to minimise credit risk, the directors have REBREERKEERE £=
delegated a team to be responsible for the determination EEE—ERXaEEERFERE
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring B EEFEHREMEERRF o 1t
procedures. In addition, the directors review the recoverable SN EEEHEFEENZSEERZ
amount of each individual trade debt regularly to ensure that A el £ 5 - AR e U Bl &
adequate impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable BIEH RARERE - Al - =5
debts. In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s RE - ANEEZEERBRAKNEK -

credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk on trade receivables RZE—XRE+-_A=+—H8" &K
as at 31 December 2016 is mainly from one major customer EEEWREFRCEREERBREE
which accounted for 98% (2015: 97%) of trade receivables. RE—BEERF - BHEEEKER

7 98% (ZE—FE : 97%) ©

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to REBEFIEER - BRFEER
customers with an appropriate credit history. REBRIFEERENER -

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because ReERBITEHVEERRER
the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings assigned LTI F R A ERBRE AT
by international credit-rating agencies. RHELS T RE AT RRTT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-Z—

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial liabilities is as
follows:

(&)

NETZRA=+—HILLFE

MR EEBERBR

() "EBEZEE

AEENBRASERERRERE
HORDESTFE - UBREER
RABNESMEBRRERDESS

EWHRBEHE

AEESRABENHMRIFTNT -

Total
contractual
undiscounted

cash flows
Carrying within 1 year
amount or on demand
—FRE
REREH
FEITRREE
SREIE REARE
HK$’000 HK$’000
AT FHT

At 31 December 2016 R-B-AE+=A=+—8H
Trade payables FEATBR IR 21,548 21,548
Other payables and accruals HE b SRR K FERT B A 21,715 21,715
Short term loans HHIER 3,371 3,371
46,634 46,634

At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF+=-A=+—8
Trade payables FERTBRFR 41,066 41,066
Other payables and accruals HAbfE S RIB R ERT B R 240,672 240,672
Notes payables ANES 70,000 71,941
Short term loans RHER 12,571 12,571
364,309 366,250
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

6. BAEBERE ERHE

(d) FIEEAE

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to notes payables and short term loans. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rate financial assets of bank balances. The Group has
not used any interest rate swaps to mitigate its exposure
associated with fluctuations relating to interest cash flows.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging
policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no interest
rate sensitivity is disclosed as the interest rate sensitivity does
not give additional value in view of insignificant exposure of
interest bearing bank balances as at the end of the reporting
period.

AEEATRENREMEHER
BERZAFEMNERRER - AEET
AXZETEREAERTHAE MR
THRHETREERBIASREN
TR o AN B3 R (=
EHA AR EEMASRERSR
BNEREBEBZRER

AEHE B AT BN R EHBOR A
m- EEEBERMNEREAR - LHR
FERZEEPEAFIRRL -

ENMEPRABRITAERZF X
BB NEEK - B RERE I A
EREIMEE  MARREERAHE
ARBENRGREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

134

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

MR EEBERBR

(&)

(e) BT ASHE

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHER FHIT
Financial assets: SREE :
Loans and receivables B R ERGRIA
(including cash and (PREEERREZEED)
cash equivalents)
— Trade receivables — FEURBRFK 35,901 110,923
— Financial assets included in — oREERERMNE -
prepayments, deposits and & & HALEWIE
other receivables 737 23,578
— Cash and cash equivalents — RERIREEEBY 84,411 88,864
121,049 223,365
Financial liabilities: THE[E:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost #$EK A2 SR B E
— Trade payables — FERTERIE 21,548 41,066
— Other payables and accruals — H b E M T E 21,715 240,672
— Notes payables — ENEE - 70,000
— Short term loans — REHER 3,371 12,571
46,634 364,309

(f) Fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated statement
of financial position approximate their respective fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

7.

REVENUE

Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivable by
the Group from the sale of goods and services rendered to outside
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes are as

follows:

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

7. W

WantE AN ERERINRE P IHE
AR 7 BT 4 B B W 2 B (R HURAT D
RERIHERABRIRE) - DT

& on MR

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHT
Digital cable television business BIEEN BRERS 17,586 21,120
Wireless digital television B GHN BRI ERTS
value-added services 61,547 9,495
Wireless digital audio integrated circuits ~ #EARERAI S A 2,085 4,064
Wireless digital terrestrial television HOTE R AR B BAR A 4%
network equipment integrated business ~ RIEEKERS - 1,198
Encrypted integrated circuits iy - 117
81,218 35,994
Representing: Hep
— Continuing operations — FECEER 81,218 34,679
— Discontinued operations (note 16) — BARIEEEETE (IRE16) - 1,315
81,218 35,994
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HILFE
8. OTHER INCOME 8. HMWA
2016 2015
—EB-XR¥ —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiT
Bank interest income RITHBUA 26 4
Gain on disposal of property, LEME - BB R s
plant and equipment - 205
Reversal of provision on deposits, e BENHRIER
prepayments and other receivables L A 8 WSURR TR 1354 o ¢ 563 =
Reversal of over-provision on costs of sales %65 ik 7 8 58 % 5 [0 & 7,741 =
Net gain on settlement with a customer ~ E—ZRPAE 7 a5 /558 21,765 —
Rental income HE WA 102 —
Fair value gain on financial derivatives SRITETAE 2 A FEWE 5,451 —
Waiver of other payables FEEA S E M FE AT RRIR 25,052 -
Sundry income ESIETLPN 2,579 1,230
63,279 1,439
Representing: Hep :
— Continuing operations — BB 38,227 1,437
— Discontinued operations (note 16) — BRI (15 16) 25,052 2
63,279 1,439
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION Sk

The Group has three reportable segments in continuing operations
and are as follows:

— Digital cable television business

—  Wireless digital television value-added services

—  Wireless digital audio integrated circuits

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units that
offer different products and services. They are managed separately
because each business requires different technology and marketing
strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as
those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
No operating segments have been aggregated in arriving at the
reportable segments of the Group.

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

5 HER

AEBZHEEEEBRAE =T RED
B

— BERBUBEES

—  BRBUERIZERS

— ERBLSELR
AEBZPHRED MABBELET © 18

HETRHER KRS - RO HEEEH
REBT B TR N 52 IHER S o

REN R SRR ES A I RRME
ARTRARR o A B2 D FEH AL EH
ZRREDER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

) a1 PZ-N [P
9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. oHER @)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and BRI mE D E R EE EERAR
liabilities: ZER
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RELSEER BALHEEER
Wireless
digital
terrestrial
Wireless television
digital Wireless network
Digital cable television ~digital audio equipment  Encrypted
television value-added  integrated Castor integrated  integrated
business services circuits  products  Sub-total  business circuits  Sub-total Total
HEES
&5 HOER
BREL  HUER  EREQ EEE
RN BERE  ERCR  ERER Nt RHEE  mESh gt &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TR T THTL TR ThL T THL TEL
Year ended 31 December 2016 BE-E-RE
t2A=t-BLEE
Revenue from external customers REJIKEFE 2z 17,586 61,547 2,085 = 81,218 = = = 81,218
Segment profi/loss) AR/ (B8 3643 63,602 (4,114 = 63,221 = — — 63221
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 2521 % 804 = 3421 = — — 3421
Capital expenditure EARY 3 = 9 = 12 = = = 12
As at 31 December 2016 RZF-AE
TZB=t-H
Reportable segment assets TREAT EE 113,064 667 1644 - 1153755 = = - 115375
Reportable segment liabilties IREA D AE (39.914) (7.544) (12471) = (59,929) = = = (59,929)
Year ended 31 December 2015 BE-E-3f
TZAZt-ALEE
Revenue from external customers REIMEE 2 W 21,120 9,495 4,064 = 34,679 1,198 17 1315 35,994
Segment profi/foss) AHER/ (BE) (174,789) 200 (4,009 — (17657 (37) (7,287) (7324)  (18389)
Depreciation and amortisation REREH 4,962 1,180 701 5 6,874 4 7647 7651 14525
Capital expenditure ERRR 12,444 293 1,563 27,350 41,650 o 928 928 42518
As at 31 December 2015 R-B-1f
tZA=1-A
Reportable seqment assets ARENDEE 149254 4586 12710 100008 266558 = = — 26658
Reportable seqment libilties HEA B8 (176484 (133659) (0944) R412) (322499 — — — (2049
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuea) 9.

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

DERER #)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, Al¥E o bliles ~ mFsEsE  EEREA
assets and liabilities: B2 8K -
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Revenue g
Total revenue of reportable segments Al a0 B 81,218 35,994
Elimination of discontinued operations BEAR TS 2 H — (1,315)
Consolidated revenue fre e 81,218 34,679
Profit or loss AR EE
Total profit or loss of reportable segments A ¥R 7 26 2 1B 25 A2 %A 63,221 (183,896)
Unallocated income ROEUWA 7,182 1
Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary ~ BEUH4RAE ABR—EMHE AR
Z BB (65,403) —
Impairment losses on goodwill REREGE (11,563) (80,295)
Impairment losses on intangible assets EREEREERE (16,477) 7/
Impairment losses on inventories GFERERE (3,243) (4,631)
Impairment losses on trade receivables FEW AR FOR B &R (692) (137,895)
Impairment losses on prepayments, TERNFUE e RHM
deposits and other receivables FEWRIE R E 18 (151) (8,000)
Impairment losses on property, Y% BE MR EREEE
plant and equipment (12,571) (13,823)
Impairment losses on deposits for WHEIE BN B EE
acquisition on non-current assets RS RBEEE (18,000) (12,000)
Impairment losses on EETIZRERE
construction-in-progress - (4,040)
Other unallocated expenses Hiv RHEHZ (52,961) (8,369)
Finance costs BRE A (6,973) (9,302)
Income tax expenses FriSHiF > 59,551 1,391
Elimination of discontinued operations BRI T8 2 0 8H 8,653 148,286
Consolidated loss for the year from FNREAFEEETS
continuing operations ZEREEBE (49,427) (312,573)
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments ASRED 2 BEE 115,375 266,558
Unallocated assets IO EE 362,765 456,398
Consolidated total assets RERREE 478,140 722,956
Liabilities afE
Total liabilities of reportable segments AEnE < BatE 59,929 322,499
Unallocated liabilities ROEEE 40,817 273,388
Consolidated total liabilities meRaE 100,746 595,887
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

9. NEER =)

Geographical information: HIER
Revenue Non-current assets
= FRBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—E-XF —ET—hF —E-XE —T—FHF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T FET T
Continuing operations  FEK& ¥
PRC i 79,132 30,615 28,450 139,121
Hong Kong B 2,086 4,064 81,050 —
Discontinued operation T RIEEEET
PRC F - 1,315 - 20,525
Consolidated total REMBET 81,218 35,994 109,500 159,646

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the

locations of the customers.

Revenue from major customers:

Revenue from customers of the corresponding periods individually
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as

REFIHHEME - WS THRERTP Z P
TEih -

KERETEEFZ Wz

RIEREHEA - REERNEP ZWEE B
(IEAREE B TEIB10%) FIBT

follows:

2016 2015
—B-R¥ —E—TF
Segment HK$’000 HK$’000
2B FHET FHET
Customer A Wireless digital television value-added services 61,547 9,495

®FH RS BRI ERS
Customer B Wireless Digital Audio Intergrated Circuits - 4,064

BFEZ ERENIB AN

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

10. IMPAIRMENT ON VARIOUS ASSETS

BE-Z—

NET-A=+—BHILEEE

10. ZIEEERE

2016 2015
I AL= —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FiT
Impairment losses on goodwill EE R EEE 11,563 80,295
Impairment losses on inventories GFEREEE 3,243 4,631
Impairment losses on trade receivables FEWERFOREE 1B 692 137,895
Impairment losses on prepayments, TENFIE - Ze Rk
deposits and other receivables E b e W IR R E B 18 151 8,000
Impairment losses on intangible assets B EERERE 16,477 —
Impairment losses on property, plant VI - BB MR EREEE
and equipment 32,817 18,823
Impairment losses on deposits for WEEIERBNEE 2
acquisition on non-current assets B REEBE 18,000 12,000
Impairment losses on FREIERERE
construction-in-progress - 4,040
82,943 260,684
Representing: Rk
— Continuing operations — FECEER 62,697 260,684
— Discontinued operations (note 16) — BRIEEEER (HFE16) 20,246 —
82,943 260,684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

11. FINANCE COSTS

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

11. @B KA

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
Interest on other loans HEZHE 1,356 2,118
Interest on redeemable bonds AIEEES 2 F B 739 7,184
Interest on convertible bonds AIANRAE S 2 Fl 4,878 =
6,973 9,302
Representing: Hep -
— Continuing operations — FHESE T 6,973 9,302
— Discontinued operations (note 16) — BERIERE TS (fizE16) - —
6,973 9,302
12. INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FIBHIIK R
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiET
Current — the PRC BNER —
— Charge for the year — RNFEHIE 58 81
— Over-provision in prior years — BAFEEERE (55,488) —
— Deferred tax (note 35) — EEFIE (KT 5E35) (4,121) (1,472)
(59,551) (1,391)
Representing: Hep
— Continuing operations — R ETS (59,551) (1,391)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE

12. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 12. TEHIER 2

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 as the Group did not
generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during that

years.

PRC corporate income tax is calculated at a standard rate of 25%

(2015: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits arising from its

operation in the PRC.

The reconciliation between the income tax credit from continuing

and discontinued operations and the product of loss before tax

multipled by the PRC enterprise income tax rate is as follows:

HRAEERBE—Z—"FR-Z—0
FH-A=+—RALFEYEREBEL
ERERBUGER] - MEMFRLRAEE
S BT TERE -

R RS 7 ERSEE 2 (hat BRI E
ZHBEBEMBRIZEF K B25% (=
—REF :25%) °

RERBENRD RIS EERNFTERIER
BT ATE IR TR P R EERR R 2 5k
REEROT ¢

2016 2015
—B-AE¥ —E—NfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHIT
Loss before tax BRFR AT E IR (117,631) (462,250)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate A 2 TR 25% 5T & 2 Fi18
of 25% (2015: 25%) —ZE—hF :25%) (29,408) (115,563)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ FAEfth BA B EEM R AL & 2
operating in other jurisdictions WEBARZ TR EE 3,612 46,802
Tax effect of income that is not taxable BN R R 2 iR 2 (7,447) (1,599)
Tax effect of expenses that are not PREMBR A < IR E
deductible 26,063 54,071
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERRIBEE MBS E 16,891 16,915
Over-provision in prior years B F R B E (55,488) =
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised R LRIABER ZHIEEE
previously (13,774) (2,017)
Income tax credit Frisiis e (59,551) (1,391)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

13. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

13.

The Group’s loss for the year is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FREE

AEBFABEDENG, (GEA) T3
BIRRIE -

2016 2015
—EB-RF —E—ARF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHER FHT
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: & T ABIEZ EE# S -
— Salaries, bonus and allowances — e - 2 R 17,804 15,759
— Retirement benefits scheme — RIEFE S
contributions 732 2,164
18,536 17,923
Auditors’ remuneration = ENEN N & 1,180 700
Cost of inventories sold BEHEZTFEKRAE 2,036 3,964
Depreciation of items of property, Y BENREEE ZITE
plant and equipment 3,714 8,433
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 2 B5E 6,783 15,027
Fair value loss on initial recognition R ES
of convertible bonds ZAFEEE 15,000 =
Operating lease charges KEHEER 4,638 3,417
Gain on disposal of property, LEWE - BEMEE 2 W
plant and equipment - (205)
Research and development expenditure 25 RS2 4,433 2,956
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each director were as follows:

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

14. EE R A B RS HFEA 2

37

BEFZHEHIIMT ¢

Salaries, Retirement
allowances and  benefits scheme Total
Notes Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
F =11 BB
MiEE e REAMFIE BE 5 ko)
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET TET
Year ended HEZZ-X§
31 December 2016 +tZA=+—-HLEE
Executive directors: WIES:
Tan SriDato’ LimTong Yong A EEBMHEF"
(appointed on (R=Z—RF
17 February 2016) — R+ EERE) (i) 906 - - 906
Mr. Chen Rongbin ey
(appointed on (RZT—RF
21 July 2016) + A=+ —BEZfE) (i) 870 100 9 979
Mr. Gao Yang SRt 1,087 - - 1,087
Mr. Qiu Bin s 832 - 18 850
Mr. Hu Qixian RS RE
(appointed on (R=Z—RF
1 June 2016) NA—REZE) 607 169 - 776
Mr. Chen Xi RAELE
(appointed on (RZT—RF
1 June 2016) NA—HBEZE) 607 - - 607
Mr. Tan Xiangdong ERREE
(appointed on 1 June 2016 (R=Z—~"F~A—H
and resigned on BZEUR =T —"F
24 June 2016) NAZTHBEHE) 144 - - 144
Mr. Yu Bun CIpEY s
(retired on 31 May 2016) (R=Z—R~F
AA=+—HEMAE) 436 - 9 445
Mr. Xiao Yan HE®R
(retired on 31 May 2016) (RZT—RF
AA=+—HEfF) 378 - - 378
Mr. Li Nan £yt
(retired on 31 May 2016) (R=Z—RF
AA=+—HEMAE) 379 - - 379
Mr. Li Tao TERE
(retired on 31 May 2016) (RZT—RF
AA=+—HER) 387 - 8 395
Non-executive director: FRITES :
Mr. Wang Kun FirA
(resigned on (R=Z—RF
16 December 2016) TZRATSEEE) - - - -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

14§$&£%%%%@A2M
7 (&)

146

Salaries, Retirement
allowances and  benefits scheme Total
Notes Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
e 28 BB
MiEE e REMFS TR B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T TET TET TET
Independent non-executive BUIERiTES
directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Keung BZREE
(appointed on (R=Z—RF
17 October 2016) +A+EREZMT) 32 - - 32
Ms. Chen Yan BRIz £
(appointed on 15 June 2016)  (R=F—"4F
NATRREEME) g - - 7
Mr. Xu Haiou BRI
(appointed on 15 June 2016)  (R=Z—<4F
NATHBEZME) 71 - - 7
Mr. Chau Sen Chung BARMEE
(appointed on (RZZ—RF
31 August 2016) NA=Z+—HEZE) 44 - - 44
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BRI SE4
(appointed on 1 June 2016 (R=Z—~"F~A—H
and resigned on BZEUR =T F
31 August 2016) NA=+—H#EHfE) 30 - - 30
Mr. Leung Wo Ping RRFIE
(resigned on 20 June 2016) (R=Z—RF
NAZTHEHE) 68 - - 68
Mr. Hu Dingdong HEREE
(resigned on 20 June 2016) (R=ZZ—RF
NAZTHEHE) 57 - - 57
Mr. Lei Yong EBELE
(resigned on 8 June 2016) (R=Z—RF
NANBEHE) 53 - - 53
Mr. Chiu Chi Kong HERISE
(resigned on 8 June 2016) (R=ZZ—RF
AANBEHE) 88 - 5 93
7,147 269 49 7,465
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

14. EE R A B RS HFEA 2

&)

Salaries, Retirement
allowances and benefits scheme Total
Notes Fees other benefits contributions emoluments
Eo =i RAER
fisE e REMH HE G k]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T AT FHT FAET
Year ended HE-Z-1%
31 December 2015 +tZRA=t—-HLEE
Executive directors: WITES ¢
Mr. Xiao Yan HEXAE 1,849 o i 1,849
Mr. Li Tao TELE 1,400 r— 18 1,418
Mr. Qiu Bin s & 1,120 - 7. 1,120
Mr. Wang Kun FiEs
(re-designated as a (R=Z—8F
non-executive director with +=A+NAH
effect from AERIENITES)
18 December 2015) — 7 'y T
Mr. Li Nan FR%E
(appointed on (R=Z—H%F
9 November 2015) +—ANBEZE) — 74 77 7.
Mr. Gao Yang =t b
(re-designated as an (R=Z—8F
executive director with effect +=A+NAR
from 18 December 2015) HAERBTER) = 74 i 7
Mr. Yu Bun CIDE s
(appointed on (R=Z—8F
18 December 2015) +=A+\REZT) 7 o 77 7
Non-executive director: FRTES :
Mr. Xu Lei RERE
(resigned on (R=Z—A%F
18 December 2015) +TZA+/\BEE) 262 = = 262
Mr. Wang Kun FiEs
(re-designated as a (R=Z—8F
non-executive director with +=A+NHR
effect from AERIITES)
18 December 2015) — — = -
Independent BUIERiTES
non-executive directors:
Mr. Leung Wo Ping 2AFILE 168 = = 168
Mr. Hu Dingdong HERLAE 140 = = 140
Mr. Lei Yong EBLE 131 = = 131
Mr. Dong Shi BREAE
(resigned on (R=Z—AF
18 December 2015) +TZA+T/\BEE) 131 = = 131
Mr. Gao Yang miEEE
(appointed as an (R=Z—8F
independent non-executive +—ANBEZE
director on 9 November 2015 BBV IEHTES
and re-designated as an WRZE—h%F
executive director with effect ~ +=A+/\H
from 18 December 2015) ATENTES) — o i —
Mr. Chiu Chi Kong RIS
(appointed on (R=Z—8%F
18 December 2015) +-A+/\BEZF) 8 = = 8
5,209 - 18 5,227
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #H

BB AEF-AS+—ALEE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EER A E R HEA 2B

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes

(i) Tan Sri Dato’ Lim Tong Yong was appointed as an executive director
and the chairman of the Board with effect from 17 February 2016.

(ii) Mr. Chen Rongbin was appointed as an executive director, a vice
chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 21 July 2016.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included four (2015: three) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the
remaining one (2015: two) individuals are set out below:

&)
FfisE

) FAHBEEEMRFR_ZFT-RF_A
TEREREANTESRESTSLIR

(i) FEEBREEAR-_ZE—XNFLA-+—H
EZIBARBNITES  BIEERT
BB, -

HE—_ZT—R"FR-_ZFT—RHF+=A
=t+—HIEFE - BEEESHRERR
BRETAB S 2 28 -

FR AEERERSHFALEELOS
(ZZ—01F  ZR)EF REZFHM
HRERLEXZEN - T —R(ZF—A
FZR)ALZHBAT :

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e RMREYHR
in kind 1,082 2,440
Contributions to pension scheme RIREFIGT B R 9 18
1,091 2,458
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e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 14. EERAE R HEAZH
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) CAC )
The emoluments fell within the following bands: FHeNTATHE 2 ASWT :
Number of individuals
AE
2016 2015
—E-XRF —E—FF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 0787t — 1,000,000 87T - 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 /& 7T — 1,500,000 7% 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 /87T — 2,000,000/ 7T - i
1 2
During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, no BE_T— X E;k_ZF—HRF+=-HA
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the =+—HLEFE FAEEHERESHH
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining Umm ATHEA - Z NS - 1ER
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. S|SB ERBEENEREE G 2
BB SR (E o

15.LOSS ON DECONSOLIDATION OF A 15. BUHZRE AKR—EME A A

SUBSIDIARY

As disclosed in note 2 to these consolidated financial statements,
the financial results of Shanxi Zhongze was deconsolidated from
the consolidated financial statements of the Company from 1
January 2016 due to the incident of a suspected misappropriation
of funds of Shanxi Zhongze. As a result, assets, liabilities and cash
flows of Shanxi Zhongze was deconsolidated from the consolidated
financial statements of the Group from 1 January 2016.

ZEE
WZFGE M MARME2PTHE - AR
LARESRIBRESEMF  R2F—K
F—A—BAARBREVBHRERIVEERS
ABRILFRIZE S EAE - At R=F
—A~NF-A—H UATEZEE - BfF
MR RERANEE LG A M BERRIUHS
BARR -
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e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HILFE
Nl 4 A == —
15.LOSS ON DECONSOLIDATION OF A 15. BUHZRS AR—EMEB 2R
SUBSIDIARY (continued) ZER e
Net assets of Shanxi Zhongze as at the date of deconsolidation LA EREUEAGRE AR BB B EFE
were as follows: R
HK$’000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment Y% BB MR 86
Intangible assets | EE 32,143
Goodwill B 8,883
Derivative financial instruments PTESBMTA 3,896
Inventories rE 41,428
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFOE ~ e R EHALEUEIR 25,582
Cash and cash equivalents ReRReEFEEY 769
Trade and other payables FE - ARk S LM P A~ kIR (2,412)
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFIEAE (1,222)
Non-controlling interests IR AR R (47,223)
Net assets of the deconsolidated subsidiary BUEERAE ABRHB AR 2 EEFE 61,930
Release of the related foreign currency FEFR MERE ISR E
translation reserves 3,473
Loss on deconsolidation of a subsidiary BUHERE ABR—EM B AR 2 EiE 65,403
Net cash outflow arising on deconsolidation BUHERE ABR—EM B AR ELE
of a subsidiary: ZIRBIRFEE 769
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

The Group’s discontinued operations for the year ended 31
December 2016 represented the investment in mining business
operated by Zhong Kuang Jing Zi Investment Co., Limited (the
“Zhong Kuang Jing Zi").

The Group’s discontinued operations for the year ended 31
December 2015 represented the wireless digital terrestrial television
network equipment integrated business segment and encrypted
integrated circuits segment operated by Star Hub Investment
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Star Hub Group”) and the
investment in mining business operated by Zhong Kuang Jing Zi.

(@ During the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors
intended to dispose of the Group’s interests in Zhong Kuang
Jing Zi. Negotiations with several interested parties had been
taken place during the year ended 31 December 2016.

The Disposal of Zhong Kuang Jing Zi was planned during
year ended 31 December 2015. Up to the date of approval
of these consolidated financial statements, the disposal was
not yet completed. The results of Zhong Kuang Jing Zi under
the business segment of investment in mining business in
Lijiang has been presented as discontinued operation during
the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, and Zhong
Kuang Jing Zi was classified as asset/(liabilities) of disposal
group held for sale on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

(b)  On 30 November 2015, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest
in the Star Hub Group. The disposal was completed on 31
December 2015, the date on which the control of the Star
Hub Group was passed to the acquirer. The Star Hub Group
represented a separate major line of business of the Group
and the Star Hub Group was presented as a discontinued
operation.

16. D AR IF I ZEFE

AEEHE_T—A"FT-_A=1+—HLt
FREZERIEEXERETRERRERE
BERRABI([HERE ) ELENBEERER
RE -

AEEHE-_T—AF+=_A=+—H
LIEFE 2 BRI E & ¥ 75 5 B Star Hub
Investment Limited & = Fff & 2 =] ([ Star
Hub £ B |) & & i) AR S SRR
ERERS D ERINZR R EFEDEA R H
BEREKENEEFEBIRE -

@ BE-E-—AF+_A=+t—HL
FE ESRAEASERTRESR
BriEsn WYERBE-_T—RF
T-A=t—HULFERZZEE
FEITRER ©

W R =Bt = A= E
LEFEEHEEEFERE - &
ERFEREV BRI ERR - B
EEHEEARTHK - PERETEL
KEREEBIH T 2 EEREE
—E—AERZZFE—HF+=A
=t HIEFEERIABKIELE
EEB BEHBEREEREEHE
MRERF WS ERIFELEZLE
SEEE (AF) -

b) R=ZZT—HF+—A=+H' &
SBEET — I8 E & % A & Star
Hub&EE 2 =3k - mEEEE
ERZE—AF+HA=+—H%
BX - B % Star Hub & B = 425 # #
MRE BB FUHES - Star Hub
ERAAEE —KEBNEEZER
#% T Star Hub £ B A B 42 A8 &
ES R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

=

16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continueq)

() The loss for the year from discontinued operations is

analysed as follows:

NETZRA=+—HILLFE

16. BRI EEERK »)

FRAERIEKEEBER 2 TN
T

2016 2015

AL —ZT—IfF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHER FAT

Loss of discontinued operations BRI R 2 F5i8 (8,653) (25,217)
Loss on disposal of discontinued HEBRIEREEK EE

operations - (123,069)

(8,653) (148,286)

The results of the discontinued operations for the year which

have been included in consolidated profit or loss, are as

FRERUEREXB2XE (BEA
AT

follows:
Zhong Kuang
Jing Zi Total
PIERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
2016 —E-RE
Other income E YA 25,052 25,052
Administrative expenses TR > (12,893) (12,893)
Impairment loss on various assets & EREEE (20,246) (20,246)
Share of loss of an associate 7 — A & A B EE (566) (566)
Loss from operations ey = (8,653) (8,653)
Finance costs LSSV EIN - -
Loss before tax FrEERIE1E (8,653) (8,653)
Income tax expense FRiSHi - -
Loss for the year from discontinued FAE 48 1H & & ¥ 15518
operation (8,653) (8,653)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_ZT—XRF+-A=+—HILFE
16. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (continued) 16. ERIEREER @)
(c)  (continued) © (&)

Star Hub Zhong Kuang

Group Jing Zi Total
Star Hub £ & FERE st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FET FBT
2015 —EB-RF
Revenue Wegs 1,315 — el
Cost of goods sold B miHERA (1,210) - (1,210)
Gross profit E7 105 — 105
Other income A 1 1 2
Selling and distribution costs & K 5 $5E AR (60) — (60)
Administrative expenses TE R (7,375) (17,765) (25,140)
Share of loss of an associate 7 — & & A 5] &5 18 — (124) (124)
Loss from operations #EE 1R (7,329) (17,8898) (25,217)
Finance costs BB - — =
Loss before tax BRI R (7,329) (17,888) (25,217)
Income tax expense iR = = 7
Loss for the year FANEBE (7,329) (17,888) (25,217)
Loss on disposal of HERBAREE
subsidiaries, net of (FBRFET1SHR)
income tax = = =
Loss for the year from FARERIEEEES
discontinued operation E5i8 (7,329) (17,888) (25,217)
During the year, the discontinued operation received FRN - BRIECEEBRCEES
approximately HK$726,000 (2015: received approximately W ER 4 726,000 L ( —F— R 4F ¢
HK$27,899,000) in respect of operating activities, received U BY 4927,899,000 7T ) © BLIRE
approximately HK$nil (2015: received approximately TEBWEATE T (ZE—AF : I
HK$6,449,000) in respect of investing activities and paid HY 496,449,000 7T ) Mgt g & &S
HK$nil (2015: HK$nil) in respect of financing activities. YREBT(ZE—RF ) °
No tax charge or credit arose on loss on disposal of the HH 4R | A A e g BB
discontinued operation. AR EE L SRR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
17. DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for
each of the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

18. LOSS PER SHARE (HK$ CENTS)

(a) From continuing and discontinued
operations

Basic loss per share (HK$ cents)

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$53,840,000
(2015: HK$452,094,000) and the weighted average number
of 7,721,5637,000 (2015: 4,447,210,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share (HK$ cents)

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 is the same as the basic loss per share
as the impact of the convertible bonds outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect (2015: No diluted loss per share are
presented as the Company did not have any dilutive potential
ordinary sharing during the year ended 31 December 2015.)

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

BE-T—AFt-ASt—ALFE
Iz 2

EERTRERERE_T—~FR-F
—HET=A=+—BILEFE 2 EAR

SR (BAL)
(a) %5%,%&E%ltl@%‘ s

%
FRERER GEN)

RAREEABEBREANEER
BIBEARRERE ARFEREMNLE
858,840,000 7L( =& — A 4F -
452,094,000 77T ) R FA B BEITE
38 % N #E £ 39 8 7,721,587,000 fi%
(ZZ—FA%F : 4,447,210,000 %) 5+
g o

BREEERE GBL)

RN HARBRABRESAREE
TE BHEEE_TAFtZ
A=t—BULFEZESREIER
HEEREAEERR(ZF—0fF:
HREBE_ZT—AF+_-_A=+—
B IEFEAR R EATA 5 E
TRk MAEZINEGRESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

18. LOSS PER SHARE (HK$ CENTS) (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

18. BIREE GBAL) )

(b) From continuing operations

Basic loss per share (HK$ cents)

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$49,427,000
(2015: HK$312,573,000) and the weighted average number
of 7,721,537,000 (2015: 4,447,210,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share (HK$ cents)

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 is the same as the basic loss per share
as the impact of the convertible bonds outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect (2015: No diluted loss per share are
presented as the Company did not have any dilutive potential
ordinary sharing during the year ended 31 December 2015.)

(b) KEFEELEET

BRESERE GBIL)

RAREEABEBREABER
BEARNRAREEARFRNENES
849,427,000 (=& — A F ¢
312,573,000/ 7L) R FAB BEITE
38 A% hn 4 S 5 #17,721,537,000 A%
(ZZ A : 4,447,210,000 %) 5+
§ o

BREFER GEW)

RN HARBR A RESAREE
FE BHEEE_TRFtZ
A=t—BULFEZEREIER
HEEREAEERAR(ZF—AF:
HRBE_ZFT—AF+_H=+—
B IEFEAR R EAL A #EE
TRE RYE2IEREERE
izl
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(c) From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share (HK$ cents)

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of HK$4,413,000
(2015: HK$139,521,000) and the weighted average number
of 7,721,537,000 (2015: 4,447,210,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share (HK$ cents)

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2016 is the same as the basic loss per share
as the impact of the convertible bonds outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect (2015: No diluted earnings per share are
presented as the Company did not have any dilutive potential
ordinary sharing during the year ended 31 December 2015.)

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

18. LOSS PER SHARE (HK$ CENTS) (continued)

BE-2—AF+-A=+—ALFE
18. BRREE OBl @
(c) KECAIAZLEEK

BREASERE GBIL)

RATHER AEEEREREEZ
BERNRAREEARFTERENES
84,413,000 t(=ZF — A F:
139,521,000 7C) R FAE EHTE
8 A% hn 4 F 5 #17,721,537,000 f%
(ZZ R : 4,447,210,000 %) 5+
;%’; °

BREFER GEW)

RN HARBRABRESAREE
TE BHEEE_TRFt=
A=t—BULFEZESREIER
HERENEBERR(ZF—0F :
HRBE_T—hAF+_HA=+—
B IEFEAR R EAL A #5EE
TRE RYE2IEREER
)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE-ZT—X"F+-A=+—AILtEFE

19. 1% - BEKRZE

Transmission
and other
Computer Furniture Leasehold Motor Office Plant and network Construction
equipment and fixtures  improvements vehicles equipment machinery equipment in progress Total
FAR & EaRfh
ERE Be%E nERE A& HAZRE BEREE iR ERIR Eh
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000
AT FhT Thn AT FhT Thr TAT Fh Thr
COST: A
At 1 January 2015 W=E-15-f-A 936 78 1,009 7,29 1,612 4429 135,930 20,858 172,687
Acquired onacquistion  FUERBARFREA
of subsicliaries - - = - 86 = - = 86
Additions HE 49 4209 20211 - 88 68 13,340 > 38408
Disposal e (183) (356) - (317) (114) (234) - - (1,204)
Disposal of subsiciaries ~ (HEMBAT (172) ) ] (1,017) = = = = (1.294)
Tansferedtoassets ~ BANBARELE
classified as held for sale  ZE&E = (3,874 (19,409) = = = = = (23,219
Exchange redignment [ 5% 3) (156) 718) 337) 79) (47) 853) (1,249) (11,341)
At31December 2015 W=F-FE+-A=1-A
and 1 January 2016 R=E-~E-5-H 1,040 467 1,066 5,624 1,49 4016 140,738 19,616 174,063
Addtions hE - ) 752 i 10 2 2017 7 2846
Witien off s @) = = = m = = = (34)
Deconsoldation of NEGAAE—RNEAR
asubsidiary = o - = (90) = 3 7. (90)
Exchange realignment {38 ) ] - (235) 69 (226) 71.947 (1,102) 0611)
At31December 2016 R=Z-~"F+-A=1-H 986 467 1818 5,389 1,340 37192 134,868 18,614 167,174
ACCUMULATED ZtERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT:
At1 January 2015 R-E-5E-A-A 632 458 1,009 6,263 1,486 1317 96,861 16,715 124,744
Charge for the year FENE 493 576 2,600 179 9 473 4103 > 8433
Elminated on disposal it E (124) (250) = (285) @ 24 = = (780)
Eiminated ondisposal A EMBA
of subsidieries (186) (12) (28 (647) = > 5 - 873
Tansferedtoassets ~ BAAEARELE
classffied asheld for sale 2 & = (328) (2.426) = = = = = (2,754
Impaiment loss HEBE = = = = = = 13,823 4040 17,863
Exchange reaignment [ 5% (29) (19) (89) 284) 75) 99) (6,406) (1,139) 8,133
At31 December 2015  R=F-ZFT=A=1-R
and1January2016 ~ R=%-~F-A-A 790 42 1,066 5,226 1,323 1,670 108,381 19,616 188497
Charge for the year EEHE 100 @ 146 4 7 810 2547 = 3714
Wtten off A 25 = = = 6 = = - (30)
Deconsoidation of e E—THEAA
a subsidiary - = - = ) = - - 9]
Impaiment loss BEFE = = = = = 881 11,690 — 12571
Exchange realignment % (18 — - o15) 65) (170) (6:274 (1,102) (7,844)
At31December 2016 R=F-~F+-A=1-R 847 467 1,212 5,003 1,275 3191 116,344 18,614 146,903
CARRYING AMOUNT:  REfE :
At31December2016  R=Z-~"E+-A=1-H 139 - 606 336 65 601 18,524 - 20,271
At31December 2015 R-Z-EF+-A=1-H 250 £ - 398 173 2,346 32,857 - 35,566
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

19. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

19. 13 ~ BB R&RE @)

i AEEER T NFEREmE L#

Note: The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its plant

and machinery, transmission and other network equipment in 2016.
The recoverable amount of cash generating units in property, plant
and equipment has been determined by the Group management
based on value in use calculation using cash flow projection. The
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit in the digital cable
television business has been determined based on value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period. For
the periods after the financial budgets a steady growth rate of 3% is
applied. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 23.77%
(2015: 22.88%). The impairment test has resulted in recognition of
impairment loss of HK$12,571,000 (2015: HK$17,863,000) during
the year in consolidated profit and loss.

B EHkEMAKSENTTRES
B ¥ BMERRBHRSELEMN
AREeEEHASEEEECRRS
REEIEZERNEABENEEE -8
BENBREBESELENAATKRE
SENBRESEEEEEHRBNAF
BB BEFERE S RERAAERE
REEEEE - MEBEE 2 ZN M
AlZ3% MIBEHERERFE - RERE
TERIFTE AR TR K B28.77% (= F
— R :22.88%) o BEAHEHFR
RiEa B R R ERREREE 12,571,000
BT (ZZ—RF : 17,863,000/87T) °

20. GOODWILL 20. B2
2016 2015
—EB-R¥ —ZET-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T
COST: R :
At beginning of the reporting period R HR 9] 853,887 848,764
Arising on acquisition of a subsidiary WiE—FMEB A F SR - 8,883
Assets classified as held-for-sale DEARFERECEE - (3,760)
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary BUB4RE ABR—REEB A A (8,883) =
At end of the reporting period RS EIR 845,004 853,887
ACCUMULATED IMPAIRMENT RIPREBSE :
LOSSES:
At beginning of the reporting period R HR 9] 833,441 753,146
Impairment loss recognised RERHER BERE
in the current year 11,563 80,295
At end of the reporting period RS HIR 845,004 833,441
CARRYING AMOUNTS: FREIE :
At end of the reporting period RS EIR - 20,446
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
20. GOODW' LL (continued)

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash generating units (“CGUS”) that are expected
to benefit from that business combination. The carrying amount of
goodwill had been allocated as follows:

BE-Z—

NE+Z_A=1+—HItFE
20. & (@)

MREBE P U EE 2 BB TR E R 5 e
ZHEHEEZFEBEHER c ReEEE
L ([ReELBM]) - MBZEEEBERD
BLgn R

2016 2015
—E-RE —T—hHF
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
liEss FET FHET
Digital cable television business BB ERETE 0] - 11,563
Castor products business BifEmET (i) - 8,883
- 20,446

Notes: Ff5E
(i) The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit in the digital U) ARBUBRIGZRAEELE T LA

cable television business has been determined based on value in use
calculation using cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period. For
the periods after the financial budgets a steady growth rate of 3% is
applied. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 23.77%
(2015: 22.88%).

The Group management’s determined budgeted growth rate
and gross profit margin based on past performance and market
expectation. Besides the original business sectors, the Group has
been investing its resources in the acquisition of new business and
was prepared to enter into new business segments.

The impairment test results in the recondition of an impairment loss
of goodwill of HK$11,563,000 (2015: HK$80,295,000) in the digital
cable television business, which is expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

(ii) The Group lost control on the subsidiary which operates the castor
products business and the Group has deconsolidated this subsidiary
in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2016.

WE B AERBENEE  BiES
FEBEIE 2 BIEEFE 2B ST
SEAMETE  AHAFHHEERZ
HEFAFENEREI%ARESR
EEBMZHREAR2B77%(ZF—H
F 1 22.88%) °

AEBEHEE 2 AEE K EMENRKT)
RIBBERBRNTHEMEE - FRE
XN REBEDRRKERBHE
% RN EBFEMIEESEDED

BRI BB R EN EAR E TR
2R EE1811,563,0008 T (ZE—H
% : 80,295,000 70) * Ré&RAE= K
Hih2mEBRARF L -

(i)  AEBKREANEEBMEREBOHITE
RAWESE  BAKREERBE_-F
—ANFT A=+ —RIEFENGEY
MR AL B A RERE AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

1. B EE

Technology
fees for
Technology digital cable
fees for castor television  Development
business business costs Patents Total
Bi¥EKe HEIAER
BMER $H2BENER BRAA L] b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T THT THT THET T
COST: 7.
At 1 January 2015 R=E-%%-f-H = 193,446 6,722 = 200,168
Additions RE = 928 = = 928
Disposal = = (806) = = (806)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WeE-FHRBAR 18,778 = = 13,365 32,143
Disposal of subsidiary LERBAF = (103,833) = = (103,833)
Exchange redlignment EiRE = (9,202) 412) = (9,614)
At 31 December 2015 RZE-EE+ZA=1-H
and 1 January 2016 R=Z-~5-A-H 18,778 80,533 6,310 13,365 118,986
Written off fisA = (2,056) = = (2,056)
Deconsolidation of a subsidiary MgRe \NE—RIEAR (18,778) = = (13,365) (32,143)
Exchange realignment fE R = (2,337) (354) = (2,691)
At 31 December 2016 R=E-~F+-A=1-H = 76,140 5956 = 82,096
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION R EHERAERS
AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES:
At 1 January 2015 R=B-1%-F-H — 146,473 6,722 = 153,195
Amortisation for the year EREH — 15,027 = = 15,027
Written off on disposal (i E A = (806) = = (806)
Written off on disposal of subsidiaries ~ tHEHTBA A - (103,502) = = (103,502)
Exchange realignment fE R = (8,254) 412) = (8,666)
At 31 December 2015 R-Z-E+-A=1+-H
and 1 January 2016 kR=E-~5-A-H = 48938 6,310 = 55,248
Amortisation for the year EREH — 6,783 — — 6,783
Written off isa = (2,056) = = (2,056)
Impairment loss HEER = 16,477 = = 16,477
Exchange realignment P R = (2,181) (354) = (2,535)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-~"E+-A=1-H = 67,961 5,956 = 73917
CARRYING AMOUNT: REE:
At 31 December 2016 R=B-~F+-A=t-H = 8,179 = = 8,179
At 31 December 2015 R-B-ZF+-A=t-H 18,778 31,595 = 13,365 63,738
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

21.

22.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group’s intangible assets of technology fees paid for the
digital cable television business and the evaluation technique
for the castor products. The average remaining useful life of the
technology fee is 5-18 years.

The Groups patents protect the specification of the Group’s
products in relation to the castor business. The average
amortisation period of the patents is 18 years. The Group lost
control on the subsidiary which operates the castor products
business and the Group has deconsolidated this subsidiary in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The recoverable amount of cash generating units in intangible
assets has been determined by the Group management based on
value in use calculation using cash flow projection. The recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit in the digital cable television
business has been determined based on value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved
by senior management covering a five-year period. For the periods
after the financial budgets a steady growth rate of 3% is applied.
The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 23.77%
(2015: 22.88%). The impairment test has resulted in recognition of
impairment loss of HK$16,477,000 (2015: HK$nil) during the year.

DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the directors intended
to dispose of one of the Group’s mining investment business.
Negotiations with several interested parties have been taken place
during the year ended 31 December 2016. Up to the end of the
reporting period, the negotiations were not yet completed. The
assets and liabilities attributable to the mining investment business,
which are expected to be sold within twelve months, have been
classified as a disposal group held for sale and are presented
separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

21.

22.

BIELEE®)

REERARBILERE REME meT
R EPEEZRMNE - ZiTEZ
FORTAERAFHSEEISE -

AEBEEFRREAEBNREMERS ZE
mRIG o BRI FHBEMB18EF -
AEBEREUNEBMERFEFOMNBL
AEIETIE - MAKECREE TN
FH A=t RLEFENGEMBHRE
MR EZHTBARIRA AR ©

EREEZRSELE LA KEISEE )
HASEERENEAEEFEERESR
EEAMEE - BRBMNEREK RS
EABTLZ AW Bl SR AEAEEE
% RIEEAEREEBIEETHE
ZREnEBAMERE - ARAFYEE
Hig s HRFHAFEAEREI% - AR
ReMEBR 2R ER2377% (=T
—RF :22.88%) ° BEMHEBAFR
MR EEE 16,477,000 L (—E—H
F T8 -

DEAFHEZHERE

HE_Z—AFE+-_A=1+—HILtEE -
EFEeRNEASBEP HEXREE
Be-BE_Z—XR"F+=-ZA=1+—HLLF
EOEETRERALTETZNER - &
EREHR - BEAERTIARTK - BRE
EREEBCEERBBEE Y EA—ER
EHEZ HEEBI B 2FNERE 75
ARE - BN+ ZEARNEL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

22. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE

(continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

The proceeds of disposal are expected to exceed the net carrying
amount of the relevant assets and liabilities and, accordingly, no

impairment loss has been recognised on the classification of these

operations as held for sale.

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the disposal
group classified as held for sale at 31 December 2015 and 31

December 2016 are as follows:

22,

DEAFFHEZHERHE
()

HESFRERSEAEEEERAR
ZEEHEFE - ABEARSDERXEELS
FrEH EMAEREIRERE -

EERABEEEIBABELEZLE
EE)R_ZE—AF+-_A=+—H8HEK=
E—RFE+-_A=+—HZEEBHEAW
I

2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHET
Property, plant and equipment L E YN L] 26 20,525
Interest in an associate AL /NI A 39,634 40,200
Goodwill kS 3,760 3,760
Other receivables, deposits HEf N R « e
and prepayments MIERFIR 201,129 189,794
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEFEEY 719 83
Total assets classified as held for sale DERFHELRE 2 BERRE 245,268 254,362
Trade and other payables, and total for P AR FR R E A RS 5K 08
liabilities associated with assets AR DR R ELRE
classified as held for sale BEMRBaEERE (43,650) (64,246)
Net assets of disposal group HEEBEEFE 201,618 190,116

At 31 December 2016, cumulative income or expense recognised

in other comprehensive income relating to the disposal group

classified as held for sale amounted to a credit balance of
HK$828,000 (2015: debit balance of HK$280,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE

23. SUBSIDIARIES 23.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

A.  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2016 are as follows:

f /&S 2 F)

FEW,FEFI P B A

AIRIARELA - 28

A ETEWRBRAIR=-Z—X"FT+_A
=t+t—BHZFBEOT

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration Issued and interests attributable
Company name and operation paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
ERKL,/ ERIR KA FHRE
ARER R EE L HERE ZESK TEXK
Directly held:
EERE:
Heng Xin Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% Provision for
management services
ERERARAR BE 1,000,000/87T 100% RUERRYE
Indirectly held:
BERA
China Champion Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% Investment holding and
Limited trading of electronic parts
HEERERAR &b 10,000/7C 100% REARKEEETEEMN
AP EERRBRAT The PRC RMB200,000,000 100% Investment holding, digital
(Shenzhen Champion cable television business,
Maxiumic Group Co., Ltd") general trading and
provision for technical
services and related
value-added services,
technology development
and technology consultant
AP ERRRRBRAT i AR%200,000,0007C 100% RESKR  BRBNER

X5 —RESRER
A AR S AR AR
SRS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

23. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

23. B~ =) ()

A.  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December A FEWBRARKRZ=ZZ—XF+=A

2016 are as follows (continued):

=+ —RZFBWT (&) :

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration Issued and interests attributable
Company name and operation paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
Bl BRR KRR E

ACE aRREELE BERE ZAEM TEXHK

Indirectly held: (continued)

BiERE : (&)

AR EERRERAR The PRC RMB10,000,000 100% Investment holding, digital
(Hebei Champion Maxiumic cable television business,
Technologies Co., Ltd") general trading and

provision for technical
services and related
value-added services,
technology development
and technology consultant

AL R ERRRARAR P AR 10,000,0007 100% RESR  BRBNER

#1% —RE 5 RaRd
Bl PRs SAERAE E R -
R R
WNASHEFREREERAR  ThePRC RMB10,000,000 100% Research, design,

(Huzhou Mingxin Micro-Electronic manufacturing and

Co., Ltd") trading of wireless digital
audio products and
related solutions and
services

HMBATHEFREABREERR  F AR10,000,0007C 100% W Ret HEREE

BESNUSHER R
L E Y
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

23. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

23. B~ =) ()

A.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2016 are as follows (continued):

A EFEMRBRARR-_FT—A"Ft+=-A
=t+—BZFHEWMT (&) :

Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration Issued and interests attributable
Company name and operation paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
Bl BRTR KRR E
NCE aRREELE BERE ZAEMN ITEXHK
Indirectly held: (continued)
BEsE  (F)
R R TR ER AR The PRC RMB16,550,000 100% Wireless digital television
(Beiling Champion Maxiumic value-added services,
Technology Co., Ltd") general trading and
provision for technical
services and related
value-added services,
technology development
and technology consultant
R ER TR RARA] L AR 16,550,000 7 100% BRENEREERY
—fRE 5 IR
AR R AR AR -
SRRSO
TREREREERAA The PRC RMB50,000,000 51% Project investment,
(Zhong Kuang Jing Zi Investment investment management,
Co., Ltd") investment consulting and
sale and trading of
metal materials and
mineral products
PRERERERRAA i AR%50,000,0007 51% HARE RAER-
REZAARHER
BEECBMHREER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—A"F+-A=1t—HILFE
23. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 23. M;”%/A\EJ (%)
A.  Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December A FEWBRRNRZ=ZZ—XF+=A
2016 are as follows (continued): =+t—HZFBUOT(E)
Place of
incorporation/ Percentage of equity
registration Issued and interests attributable
Company name and operation paid-up capital to the Company Principal activities
Bl BRR KRR E
ARER SR E S BRRE ZBA TEEH

Indirectly held: (continued)
BiERE : (&)

FREREREMARAR The PRC RMBS5,000,000 100% Entrusted to conduct
(Beiling Yaao Boshi Technology processing of radio and
Limited) television equipment

and communication

equipment; technology
development, transfer,
service, consulting and
training of technology
products; sale of
machinery equipment,
electrical appliance
equipment and
instruments & meters
FRERERR M ARA A Gl AR%5,000,0007 100% EREMIBRESARE
BEXE  MRERD
RATFAE - RirEE
RfinfRa - KA -
BlE - HERmRE
BaRf  BEER

* The English names are for identification only * BN AEEMRRE

B. The following table shows information of subsidiaries that B. TRIFEAKEESEKAHEEIE
have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. R IR R R ([ FE R AR R A == )
The summarised financial information represents amounts 2B RARER - ATl 2 A&
before inter-company eliminations. KHE R RIEEIHAT 2 £ 58 ©
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23. SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

23. B~ =) ()

B. (continued) B. (#&)
Shanxi Zhongze Heng Yuan Zhong Kuang Jing Zi
Name Eg Biological Technology Company Limited  Investment Co., Ltd.
LERREEENNEARAF FREREREFRAHE
2016 2015 2016 2015
I vAtia =il A —2—0F
Principal place of business TE& % E K
and country ML E R
of incorporation the PRC the PRC
H H
% of ownership interests ~ FEIER IR R ER
and voting rights BEZEEER
held by NCI RREEF I 49% 49% 49% 49%
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THT TET THET
At 31 December: W+=A=+—-8:
Non-current assets FnBEE - 32,229 39,660 64,485
Current assets MBEE - 67,779 201,847 189,877
Current liabilities nHAE - (3,634) (220,178) (228,925)
Net assets BEFHE - 96,374 21,329 25,437
Accumulated NCI ZEt R R - 47,223 10,451 12,464
Year ended 31 December: #HZE+=-F=1+—H
LHEE:
Revenue Yeas - = - =
Loss for the year FREE - - (8,653) (17,888)
Total comprehensive loss FREEERESE
for the year - — (7,545) (17,997)
Profit allocated to NCI Al T IEER R R
2l - - (4,240) (8,765)
Net cash used in operation & HEFTAR ¥
activities - — (726) 23,199
Net cash used in investing KEGRHAREFE
activities - — - (23,206)
Net cash generated from BMEEHELR S FE
financing activities - = - =
Net decrease in cash and RekReEEY
cash equivalents RFE — = (726) (7)
C. As at 31 December 2016, the bank and cash balances C. RZE—ARFE+=ZHA=+—H8' &K

of the Group’ subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to HK$14,700,000 (2015:
HK$1,141,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

EEFEMBRATAARE(T A
REDFAECRITIERREERA
14,700,000 T( = & — A F:
1,141,000/ 70 ) » KA R &N
W R PR B INE B HIERR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

24. OTHER INVESTMENT

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

24, EfiRE

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—ARF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FiT
Non-current assets: ETMBEE -
Unlisted equity securities, at cost IEEMRAFES - KA 61,750 —

On 1 February 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with World Dragon Enterprise Limited (“World Dragon”),
an independent third party, pursuant to which, World Dragon has
conditionally agreed to sell, and the Group has conditionally agreed
to acquire 9.5% shareholding interest of the entire issued share
capital of Million Fortune International Investment Limited (“Million
Fortune”) at a consideration of HK$61,750,000 (“Acquisition of
Million Fortune”). Million Fortune indirectly holds 90% equity interest
in P EHmRSH O (FS)BERAF (formerly known as &
EREELBR S5 OLEMRAR), a company incorporated in the
PRC which headquartered in Qingdao, Shandong Province, the
PRC and is primarily engaged in the provision of online platform
for trading and deferred spot delivery services of precious metals
mainly being silver and copper, and other associated services
including transaction settlement management, commodity delivery
management and related consulting services to customers
nationwide in the PRC. The Acquisition of Million Fortune was
completed on 19 February 2016.

Unlisted equity securities with carrying amount of HK$61,750,000
was carried at cost as they do not have a quoted market price in
an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
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RZZE—RFEZA—H  A&EEHEBFT
£ = J5 World Dragon Enterprise Limited
([World Dragon]) &7 32 B & 1 & © &
Ift + World Dragon B & &4 Rl & &
REE B B &R E U EE Million Fortune
International Investment Limited ([ Million
Fortunel) 2 #8821 TAR A 9.5% AR & -

K (B /561,750,000 7T ([Milion Fortune
WA =1 |) » Milion Fortune B #4545
MEEEmRXSZHRL(FS)ERAA (A
BRAEEHESEBRIPLRHBERA
A]) 2 90% Bk A #Ewm - %A RIA—RKNH
BUEF MRS 2 AR] - HARERERA AR B R
A FERSATEEBERNERREMAE
B (FZARKM)BEFHHEETFARE
B HE HA ST AR 75 A B EL At A A AR 75 (243
RSHENERR -~ EmX T EE KB

AR#%5) ° Million Fortune i FIHE R =F
—RNEZATNBTEK

BRE {8 A& 61,750,000 7 7T 2 FE F iR A
BHETIRKABENER AAZEEHFTE
SERTIGRE N E AT ETEA it

E-°



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE
25. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF NON- 25, WEBIERBIEE 2%d
CURRENT ASSETS
2016 2015
—E—REF —ET—1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries: WM B AR Z S ¢
—Daging AORUI Bioenergy Co., Ltd — RERIGEYRERER AR
(note i) (BF3ED 18,000 36,000
—JTI Securities Limited (note ii) — EERBESERAT
(Bt3E i) 1,300 =
19,300 36,000

Notes:

On 1 December 2015, the Group has entered into a non-legally
binding memorandum of understanding (“MOU”) with Mr. Qu Yong
Bo (the “Vendor”) to purchase 100% equity interest in Daging
AORUI Bioenergy Co., Ltd, a company incorporated in the PRC,
at an intended consideration of RMB600,000,000. Pursuant to
the terms of the MOU, the Group had paid a refundable deposit
of HK$36,000,000 (equivalent to RMB30,000,000) in cash to the
vendor upon signing of the MOU. If the formal agreement has
been entered into between the Company and the vendor, the
deposit, without interest, shall be applied as partial payment of the
consideration for the possible acquisition in accordance with the
terms of the formal agreement.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 31 May
2016, after taking into consideration of, among other factors, the
preliminary results of the due diligence review, the directors decided
not to proceed with the possible acquisition and accordingly, the
Company served a written notification to the Vendor on 31 May
2016 informing the Vendor of its decision not to proceed with the
possible acquisition. Pursuant to the terms of the MOU, the Vendor
shall, within seven days from the date of the termination of the
MOU, refund the deposit to the Company. Interest on the deposit
shall accrue at the rate of 1.5% per month calculated on the actual
number of days elapsed from the date of termination of the MOU if
the Vendor is unable to refund the deposit in accordance with the
terms of the MOU within seven days from the date of the termination.
As at the date of this report, the Vendor has not yet refunded the
deposit to the Company.

Consider the recoverability of the deposit paid is remote, impairment
loss of HK$18,000,000 was recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016.

R-ZE—RAFE+_A—H A&EEEH
BRAE(ER DI TEERORS
ZRREs ((RRER]) - BER
8 A A K 600,000,000 7T JA 4 38 —
AR B RE AR L 2 2 B K B SR s A Rt
BB R AR Z100% B AR o RIBEFR
FRESS 2GR - NEB SRR R R
=8k 1% LAIR € [ & 75 % 17 86,000,000
&7t (A8 E M AR % 30,000,000 7T ) 2 AT
REES - WAQRIBEBESFIZIER
i - Blige (Rt FLR) i RIERERE
N IPRIEH A AT R E B 2 Fn 1K
{go

WARRIAE=-T—A"FRAA=1—
B2z AGAHEE  SRE (EHaiE) 8
BERES VS ER  BEERTTE
TRREREESIE - Bt - ARFIR =T
—ANERAAZ+ARBEARLEESR
o ENMEREBETETAAKRESE
HZIRE - BIBFRBERGZGR B
FARNRIEFBRESSEBHEEARR
BIESTARR o ME A RERIERE
BTERZ IERAR I A B RRE
BE BEFEBUGRETSRRZ
BREE A B1.5%E - HEAR
SRH - BAMKRERERSE TARA

ZERIBMRe 2 REMHER - B
REBEE-ZE—R"F+_A=+—HIHF
JERER 18,000,000 87T 2 R EE1E °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

25. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF NON-
CURRENT ASSETS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(i) On 7 June 2016, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 100% equity interest in JTI Securities
Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong which is principally
engaged in securities brokerage business and is a licensed
corporation under the Securities and Futures Ordinance to carry
out Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activities and is a China
Connect Exchange Participant and a Hong Kong Stock Exchange
Participant. The consideration for the acquisition will be determined
with reference to the net asset value of JTI Securities Limited
as at the date as specified in the sale and purchase agreement
plus an agreed premium of HK$13,000,000 (“Premium”). Having
regard to the net asset value of the JTI Securities Limited as at 31
March 2016, it is expected that the final consideration shall not
exceed HK$25,000,000. Pursuant to the terms of the sale and
purchase agreement, the Group had paid a refundable deposit of
HK$1,300,000 in cash to the vendor upon signing of the sale and
purchase agreement.

The acquisition was completed on 23 March 2017.

26. INVENTORIES

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

25. WEBIERBEE ZIRE (&)

Myt (4

i) RKRZZB—R"FENALA AEEFVE
B WE-—RHRESEMALZ
ARl ERKRESER AT Z100% K
A  ZAREEREBFLELE
% B HBREEFRBEGARESE
—H(BHFRH)XHEFTD 2RHEE
E - LARFPEERFHLEE BB
RE2EE - WREE2AREEZZ2ES
EEERESFERARBEE EHETE
BREBMZEEFE  NEBENEE
13,000,000 7 ([ E ) EE - £Z&
CEBREBEERARNN-E—REFE=
A=+—RZEEFE KRN EEH
& 838 25,000,000 7T © 1RIEE H
FER  AEEEREEEEHHEER
B H X AR ER £ 1% € 1,300,000 7%
=

WEEEER - T—+F=A_1+=H
SERK ©

26. 78

2016 2015

=BT —E—ARF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FBT

Raw materials R # - 861
Work in progress E&m - 162
Finished goods I M - 45,710
— 46,733

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
inventories during the year and considered certain inventories
were obsolete and are no longer suitable for use in operation. The
reviews led to recognition of an impairment loss of HK$3,243,000
(2015: HK$4,631,000) which is expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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AEBEERMFAFE 2 B2 -
WETFEREBRERTBEGNE
BHRER ZSEHERERAEBEERE
3,243,000 0 (= — A F : 4,631,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

27. TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. FEURBRFX
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FiT
Trade receivables JE U BR TN 337,130 426,247
Less: allowance for doubtful debts B REREE (301,229) (315,324)
35,901 110,923

The Group’s trading terms with other customers are mainly on
credit. The credit terms generally range from 30 to 180 days.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,
and net of allowance, is as follows:

AEBEABEFZESERAEER
T - FEH-—RR=TEE—EA/NTH-

FEUSBR IR 3 22 B HARSHI B Bt 12 2 BR IR
DT ¢

2016 2015

—E-REF —ET—1F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHEx FHT

0 to 90 days =EN+AH 820 4,978
91 days to 180 days NAr—EZE=E—E M E - -
181 days to 365 days =B/ === ralE — —
Over 1 year == JF 35,081 105,945
35,901 110,923

2016 FF5H EXHEZERARA A
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HILFE
27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 27. FEWBRFR (&)
Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables: JFE U BR R 2 18R -

2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
At 1 January Rn—A—H 315,324 202,629
Allowance for the year FEEBHE 692 137,895
Amounts written off MiH SRR - (13,220)
Exchange differences N = (14,787) (11,980)
301,229 315,324

The aging of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired
are as follows:

BB ARRIE < AR BRE AT -

2016 2015

—E-RE —ZET-RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHIT

0 to 90 days overdue BMEATEN+H - —

91 days to 180 days overdue BENLt+—BZE—//\+H - —
181 days to 365 days overdue BE—AN+—RZE

=BATAHA - 71,490

Over 1 year overdue BE—F LAk 35,081 34,455

35,081 105,945

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
maintained with the Group. Based on past experience, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over these balances.
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BHENRRE BRFRAREEFE
RUFRFrRikc 22 BLEF AR - RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

28. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 28. JE{NFIE &R EffEU

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

RECEIVABLES 18

2016 2015
— i =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHxT FHBT
Advance to suppliers ) (L FE P B K 838 8,641
Other deposits Bt e 1,271 1,166
Other receivables HAth e U GRIE 951 2,157
Prepayments TR RUR - 50,464
3,060 62,428

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29. RERFEZEEY
2016 2015
—E-RE “E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Cash and bank balances Be RIRTT4E% 84,411 88,864

2016 FF#H BEFEZERAERAE
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For the year ended 31 December 2016

30. TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the date of receipt

of goods, is as follows:

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

30.

FEAS BR X

JERTBR SRIRINER & fn B Bl 2 BR e 2 AT 1A
T

2016 2015
A3 —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FA&T
0 to 30 days TE=+H 3,213 5,958
31 days to 60 days = r—EZESTE 1,383 824
61 days to 90 days ANT—HZEATH 58 6,348
Over 90 days A+BBE 16,894 27,936
21,548 41,066
= =
31. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 31. HittENRIBE R EFTE R
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—ARF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Ff=E FHET FAT
Accrued salaries, wages [EEtEe - TEKEF
and benefits 1,396 5,952
Temporary receipts from B &5 R UE 2
shares subscription F IRy IR 0] - 160,050
Other payables and accruals E Ao e FRIA R EET B A 20,319 74,670
21,715 240,672
Note: FiaE
0] On 8 December 2015, the Company entered into two subscription (i) RZZE—RAF+=-ANB " XARIEH

agreements with two independent subscribers. Pursuant to the

subscription agreements, the subscribers have conditionally agreed

to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot

and issue an aggregate of 1,740,000,000 subscription shares at

the subscription price of HK$0.115 per subscription share. At at 31

December 2015, temporary receipts from this shares subscription
were HK$160,050,000. The subscriptions were completed on 5

February 2016.
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EBNREBAT LMD RE DS B
REHZ RBACERERERE
MARREBKERBEZTRABER
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1,740,000,000 BB D - R=F—F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

32. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

32. TEUBRFX

2016 2015
AL —T—FF
Note HK$’000 HK$’'000
Fi7E FBT T
Cooperation development fee EIER%EER [0) - 66,077
Other receipts in advance H TR SR 8,684 37,857
8,684 103,934

Analysed for reporting purpose as: 2 RIEH DT :
Current liabilities mEAE 8,684 47,297
Non-current liabilities JEMEAE - 56,637
8,684 103,934

Note:

On 24 August 2011, the Group has entered into a cooperation
agreement (the “Cooperation Agreement”) with Beijing Qian Tai
Bao Xiang Capital Investment Services Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Qian Tai”)
(formerly known as Beijing Huaxia Innomedia Technology Co., Ltd),
pursuant to which the parties agreed to jointly operate and develop
the advertising business and value-added services of the digital
mobile television project and 60,000 electronic displays in Hebei
province for 11 years (“Hebei Mobile Advertising Business”).

Under the Cooperation Agreement, Beijing Qian Tai shall contribute
to the Hebei Mobile Advertising Business a cooperation development
fee of RMB200,000,000 (equivalent to HK$245,440,000). The
Group has already received RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$122,720,000) as cooperation development fee as at 31
December 2013. On 3 December 2012, pursuant to a supplemental
agreement, both parties agreed that the remaining RMB100,000,000
(equivalent to HK$122,720,000) shall be contributed by Beijing Qian
Tai in terms of equivalent amount of intangible assets and equipment.
As the Cooperation Agreement with Beijing Qian Tai is for 11 years,
the cooperation development fee will be amortised over the years.

R-ZE——E A -+ME  A"EREE
IRHRRBEREARERBAERAR A
(MEmw#ZE ) (REWAILRERE HiEE
HEEERBRAR) LA ERZ(E1F
W) - Bt FTAARERT—FA
HEAEERERMTILE 2BBEMLE
RIFE AR 60,000 R E FRTRRZES
KRB ERES (DB e RSB ]) ©

RIEA (EfE - L R EA TR
PEEEBINEERBRBRAARE
200,000,000 7t ( 48 & 245,440,000 %
) RZE—=F+=-A=+—8 "
& BB W EA R 100,000,000
(HEE 7 122,720,0008 7T ) fE B A 1EF
BER WN-_BE——F+-HF=8"
BE#ExEHE EFREHRBARYE
100,000,000 7t ( 46 & 7 122,720,000 7%
TO) R ERRIRENEERSEZE
BHE - ARELLTEHRFEIEREAD
+—F  WEEREBRAERT—FA
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016
32. RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE (continued)

Note: (continued)
(i) (continued)

During year 2016, the Group entered into a termination agreement
(the “Termination Agreement”) with Beijing Qian Tai, pursuant to
which both parties agreed to terminate the Hebei Mobile Advertising
Business. Beijing Qian Tai will no longer contribute the remaining
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$122,720,000) in terms of
equivalent amount of intangible assets and equipment. For the
cooperation development fee of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$122,720,000) already received, Beijing Qian Tai will not
demand the refund of that. As a result, the remaining cooperation
development fee of RMB52,315,000 (equivalent to HK$61,547,000)
has been recognised as revenue in the consolidated profit and loss

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—HILFE

32. FEURBRRR (&)

s : (48)
[0} (&)

RZZ—RFE  AEBE B FH#RR]
i,%gﬂ:ﬁ% Z([RIEHZE]D Bt &
FREZERIETIEBEESER - bR
REBTBEREVEERIBZEE
it & #4238 A K # 100,000,000 7t (48 &
122,720,000 7T ) © B WEL 2 &
EF % & A A R # 100,000,000 7T ( 4
“%122720000%57‘1)?(13% 3k R
ZRTEBERRE - At FIRAE
ﬁrﬁ%;ﬁﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁé}w,awooom*ﬁ;ﬁm
61,547,000 7T ) EFE&?:?*/—@

for the year ended 31 December 2016. T A=t BIFEZLEEBEPHE
RAE
33. SHORT TERM LOANS 33. BWHAE R
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE T FAIT
Interest-bearing unsecured STEEEREMER
other loans 3,371 12,571

The interest rates at 31 December 2016 were 24% per annum
(2015: 12%-24% per annum).

As at 31 December 2016, all the short term loans and related
interests were overdue due to a temporary shortage of funds. The
directors consider that such matter would not have any material
impact on the consolidated financial statements. No provision has
therefore been made.

According to the loan agreements, the Group and the lender
agreed to pledge property, plant and equipment amounted to
HK$8,341,000 as at 31 December 2016 for overdue short term
loans amounted to HK$3,371,000.

Heng Xin China Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

RZB—RNEF+_A=+—HZAEXAES
F24%(ZE—RHF : BF12%FE24%) °

R-FB—RFE+ZA=1+—8 FEREH
ERREBANECEBE RN E SR
RERATE - EERRBREEITS YR
EUMBRRELEMNEATE - HERL
TEHBHE -

BEERGZE  AEERERAREL
RZE—RFE+ZA=+—HE&EA
8,341,000 T2 W% - KE MFBER
©RE43,371,0008 T2 MR HER 2
R o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

34. ARG

First CB

On 8 December 2015, the Company and National United
Resources Holdings Limited (“NUR”) entered into a conditional
convertible bonds subscription agreement, pursuant to which NUR
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for and the Company has
conditionally agreed to issue to NUR the 5% coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$100,000,000 (“First CB”). The
First CB have been issued on 5 February 2016 and will mature on
the first business day after the date falling twelve months from the
date of issue (i.e. 6 February 2017).

The Company will on the First CB subscription completion date,
exercise the early redemption right under the 11% coupon bond in
the principal amount of HK$70,000,000 issued by the Company
to NUR on 2 April 2015 maturing on 1 April 2016 (the “Bond”) in
full. The subscription price of the First CB payable by the NUR
which is equal to the principal amount of the convertible bonds of
HK$100,000,000 will be partly settled by offsetting the Bond to be
repaid by the Company under the early redemption notice and the
remaining balance will be settled by NUR in cash.

During the year, an aggregate principal amount of HK$100,000,000
of the First CB was converted into 869,565,214 Shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.115 per conversion share.

Second CB

On 8 December 2015, the Company and Sino King Trading (HK)
Co., Limited (“Sino King”) entered into a conditional subscription
agreement, pursuant to which Sino King has conditionally agreed
to subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed
to issue to Sino King the 5% coupon convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (“‘Second CB”). The Second
CB have been issued on 19 February 2016. The Second CB has
been converted in full and a total of 434,782,608 Shares have
been issued and allotted on 1 March 2016.

F—H AT ERES

R-Z—AF+-ANB  ARFHEER
BaBERERERAR([BRBAER])
RIS B R PR AR E SR B A - 3t
BXREAERD A IRTRERBEMARA]
EBRHEREMBERESERETATHE
/%100,000,000% 7T 3 8 £ 5% Z Al # i%
B ((E—HrRRES]) - F—H4AH
BREFER-ZT-—A"F_ARAHT I
BRETEBES T —EBAERE BRZ
BEEXB(AM=_F—+tF=-A/<H)3
B

RABERE— A RRELFRESIE
AR RTEARRNR T —AF
MAZHRABREAEERETASER
70,000,000 TEB11% R 2T —F
MA—HEBzESH(ERFETZRE
BEOET - BHBEREBHEBRRELE
— AR ES 2 RIEE - SR AR
&% 2 N4 %8 100,000,000/8 7T + 210 #%
REELDBATARAAKBEEZESHK
8 - MAERKHBEREEERARES T
At e

FR - N4 48%E 4 100,000,00078 T2 5
— TR ESFE R SRR D0.115
BT 2 AR (B2 5869,565,214R% A% (5

FEH TR EF

RZE—RF+=_ANH' AR F
B2 Sino King Trading (HK) Co., Limited
(I'Sino Kingl) ETx B & RE R - &
it - Sino King B B & RIERBEM AR
B2 B § 1 E Z A Sino King 21T AN & %8
#%50,000,000 7% 7T & B %5% 2 7] # %
EH(FE B mBRES]) - E=#m
BREFER-T—A"F_A+hLB%
17 o FE-H A MBRESFC 2 IPER - &4
434,782,608 XM ER =T —/~"F = A
—BETRERE -

2016 FF#| ERPREZERERLF

177



178

The proceeds received from the issue of the convertible bonds

have been split between the liability and derivative components as

HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

AR ES »)

BITR R BE S WERZ FI1S

TRERTETARM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

34. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continueq)
BIAR 9 A IA

follows:
First CB Second CB Total
E—it E-#t
ABRRES MRRES st
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT T FAT
Fair value of convertible bonds issued BRTIMRER L ATE 110,000 55,000 165,000
Derivative component T T A&
—Conversion components — B (153,987) (85,341) (239,328)
—Early redemption of Company — RRFRFRER 132,115 73,970 206,085
Liability component at date of issue RETREZ BEH M 88,128 43,629 131,757
Interest charged EHEFLE 4,608 270 4,878
Converted into ordinary shares =R aTER (92,736) (43,899) (136,635)
Liability component RZZE—R"F+=A=1+—H
at 31 December 2016 2 B EBH — - —
Derivative component at date of RBETHMZITETA
issue-conversion component iy — @Iy 153,987 85,341 239,328
Fair value loss for the year FARTEEE (65,160) (8,062) (78,222)
Converted into ordinary shares 30 AT (88,827) (77,279) (166,108)
Derivative component RZE—R"F+=-RB=+—H
at 31 December 2016 ZHTET BB - = =
Derivative component at date of RETHBRZITETA
issue-early redemption of Company B — ANRRIREED (132,115) (73,970) (206,085)
Fair value loss for the year FANATEEE 59,644 8,127 67,771
Converted into ordinary shares it AT m R 72,471 65,843 138,314
Derivative component RZZE—A~"E+=-A=+—H
at 31 December 2016 ZITET EEHD = = =
The interest charged for the year is calculated by applying an FREWEF B TR & E3 0 < EEF

effective interest rate of 19.14 per cent to the liability component.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HEZZ—AR"F+-A=1t—HILFE

35. DEFERRED TAX 35. IEAERLTE
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the AEEERZ FZRLEHBEAENT -
Group.

Fair value adjustments arising
from acquisition of a subsidiary
WE—BHREARELENAFERAR

2016 2015

—B-K¥ —E—TF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FEx FHIT

At 1 January n—H—H 7,111 7,361

Acquisition of a subsidiary Ue B — B A A - 1,222

Deconsolidation of a subsidiary BUHARE ABR—RME AR (1,222) =

Charge to profit and loss BEzm Pk (4,121) (1,472)

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 1,768 7,194

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax SRR - ASE ALK RE R

losses of HK$201,730,000 (2015: HK$245,166,000) available 2 RfE TR IEE18 /201,780,000 (=

for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax asset has T — A4 : 245,166,000 7T ) » BN

been recognised in respect of the unused tax losses due to the ATERIR R B AR - Bt A B I 5t
unpredictability of future profit streams. REARIBABEBERELERIEEE -

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in Vi DY EEPNCINE NI b S S

subsidiaries and associates are insignificant. HEMTRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

BEZT—R"FtH=1t—HLHFE

36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. IR
Number of shares
RBEE
2016 2015 2016 2015
—~E —Z-FRF —E-RE —E-hF
Notes ’000 '000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BsE T Fhz FTHET FHEL
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of FRMEEC BT
HK$0.01 each L EBR 10,000,000 10,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRAR :
Ordinary shares of FRMEE.01ET
HK$0.01 each LB
At 1 January n—HA—H 5,260,190 3,458,590 52,602 34,586
Issue of shares upon  ERIH REEMEEST
share subscription <) 0) 1,740,000 1,801,600 17,400 18,016
Conversion of RpnakES
convertible bonds (i) 1,304,348 — 13,043 —
At 31 December ®W+=A=+—8 8,304,538 5,260,190 83,045 52,602
Notes: B
)  On 8 December 2015, the Company entered into two share ) RZE—ARAFE+_ANB  KQAHE

subscription agreements (the “First Share Subscription Agreement”
and the “Second Share Subscription Agreement”) with two
subscribers (the “First Share Subscriber” and the “Second Share
Subscriber”). Pursuant to the First Share Subscription Agreement,
the First Share Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe,
in cash, for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue 870,000,000 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.115
per subscription share in an aggregate amount of HK$100,050,000.
Pursuant to the Second Share Subscription Agreement, the Second
Share Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe, in cash,
for and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue
870,000,000 new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.115 per
subscription share in an aggregate amount of HK$100,050,000.
The First Share Subscription and Second Share Subscription were
completed on 5 February 2016 and accordingly 1,740,000,000
subscription shares were issued at the subscription price of
HK$0.115 per subscription share.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

36. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

36. x4 (=)

Notes: (continued)

(ii) The First CB was converted into 173,912,000, 130,434,781,
43,478,260, 173,912,000, 43,480,000, 43,480,000, 130,440,000
and 130,428,173 shares of the Company on 3 March 2016, 8 March
2016, 14 March 2016, 18 May 2016, 17 June 2016, 10 August
2016, 19 August 2016 and 7 September 2016, respectively.

The Second CB was converted into 434,782,608 shares of the
Company on 1 March 2016.

@iy~ All shares issued during the year rank pari passu with the then
existing shares in all respects.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
short-term loans and notes payable, and equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company, comprising issued share capital
and reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on a
continuous basis taking into account the cost of capital and the
risk associated with the capital. The Group will balance its overall
capital structure through new share issues, repurchase of shares
and the issue of new debt or the redemption of the existing debt.

BieE : ()

(i) SB—HABRKREFEHSNRZZT—R
F=ZA=ZH —E—XR"F=ZANB"
—E-RF=ZA+ETA ZFT— X
FREA+NB —_E—XR"FA~AT+L
A —Z—X"ENA+H - ZE—X
FNA+ABR-_ZE—XRENLALH
# i1 5173,912,000 8% * 130,434,781
A% - 43,478,2600% + 173,912,000
B% - 43,480,000 0% - 43,480,000 f%
130,440,000 & %2 130,428,173 A A 7]
B&13 °

FHMABMBREFER T —RF=H
— HE#/5434,782,6080 A A AIRR D

(i) FABBTZAERMES S EEE R
Z BRI EA REHAL -

AEFEEREES  UBRRASEANE
BREHAFELETALE  FRINE
BEBEREES 2 M&ENFE M SR
MEFME AL - AEE 2 EERED
EFURMBI[IE

AEBZ ERGERAER - AP EEEH
ERRENERARK R BRAER A AL
hHEs (BRERITRARFHR)

AEEERERFERNENERE  BEE
BEARZRAREEREREZER - N&
BB BBITHARLD - BORO RBETH
ESRELREEHAEEREENER
REF 1 -
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HE_Z—R"F+_A=1+—HIFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. A BRI TER

OF THE COMPANY
2016 2015
—E—RE —T—hfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH& T FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB KRB 606 =
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIZIRE 1,000 1,000
Deposits for acquisition of WHEIERBN B E 2 R d
non-current assets 19,300 36,000
20,906 37,000
CURRENT ASSETS MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and TENFIE - EHe Rk
other receivables H fth FEUFRIA 2,079 9,932
Amounts due from subsidiaries R ENGIE S ] 282,667 181,532
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 68,723 87,050
353,469 278,514
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Other payables and accruals HAb T 5RIE R BT & R 1,246 169,943
Notes payables ANESE - 70,000
Short term loans MHIER - 9,000
1,246 248,943
Net current assets REEEFE 352,223 29,571
NET ASSETS BEEFRE 373,129 66,571
EQUITY R
Share capital & 83,045 52,602
Reserves (G 290,084 13,969
TOTAL EQUITY Az 373,129 66,571
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_ZT—XRF+-A=+—HILFE
38. RESERVES 38. ffE
(a) Group (a) X&£HF
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements AEBZHEREDSENEGREE
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of profit @A EMEEABARRGEERE
or loss and other comprehensive income and consolidated BRFE5 -

statement of changes in equity.

(b) Company (b) FRE]
Share
Share option Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
RIVEE BRERE REER ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TATL TAT TAT

At 1 January 2015 R-Z—H%—F—H 1,478,350 4,236 (1,182,308) 300,278
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FRZEEBEE - = (475,235) (475,235)
Issue of new shares BITHRD 188,926 - - 188,926
At 31 December 2015 and RZE—RFE+-A=1—H
1 January 2016 k=—E—~E—HF—H 1,667,276 4,236 (1,657,543 13,969
Total comprehensive loss for the year  FRZFEEEEH - - (57,969) (57,969)
Issue of new shares BT 182,700 = = 182,700
Issue of shares upon conversion of  RER AT ER 21T 2 K h
convertible bonds 151,384 — — 151,384
Share options lapsed during the year ~ FRE K2 B E - 4,236) 4,236 =
At 31 December 2016 “E—E+tZA=T—H 2,001,360 - (1,711,276) 290,084
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) BFEMERAFZE
(i) Share premium (i) BRDRE
The application of the share premium is governed by M imE 2 EASZEIARRRZ
the Company’s Bye-Law and the Companies Act 1981 NRIHEAIRAEREE-NN\—F
of Bermuda (as amended). NEVE (BAEET) FTARBR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

38. RESERVES (continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the difference between
the additional registered capital invested by a former
non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, over the
fair value of the intangible assets injected by the former
non-controlling shareholder.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to directors, employees and advisors
of the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments
in note 4.

Other reserve

During the year ended 30 June 2011, the Group
acquired additional interests in Beijing Jingiao Hengtai
Technology Co., Ltd and Shenzhen Zhongzesaien
Technology Co., Ltd. As a result of the acquisitions,
the difference of HK$79,992,000 between the
consideration paid of HK$115,194,000 and the amount
of non-controlling interests adjusted of HK$35,202,000
was directly recognised in equity.
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38. &

(c) BEMERFGZE =)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

NG

EXFEEE—HNBARZ
— BRI A Z BN
AR E AR H 7% A S FAE AR
RIABVEEZAFEZE
o

SN RE A

SN E R BRI EBINE
B BIMAR L AER 25

BRERE

BRERERERENT4HE
AR RER KA RAE
ARRERZETARAE
= BB RERZ BB
RITERBEAERE 2 R FE

Hitvfek 5

HE—ZT—FA=FHL
FE  AEEERELRESE
ERRHE AR AR KR
ERREAER AR ZEIME
o XRSWESHE HE
2B 115,194,000 7% 7T 2
AR IEIE AR AR R R 2R R IE
385,202,000/ T 2 2 = 58
79,992,000 78 7T T 1A #E 2
EEWER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company was
approved by the shareholders of the Company in the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 30 December 2011. Details of
which are set out in the Company’s circular dated 28 November
2011. The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to selected participants, which include any person who
is a full time or part time employee or director of the Group, a
consultant or agent of the Group, as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group.

Details of the share options granted under the Scheme are as

BE-T-AFt-A=t+—ALFE
39. LA BEB R
DEm it E B2

ARmBEREAE((Zt8 D ER-F
——FF+ZA=+HBTZARAREA
FAREG LEARRBBRRAA - FBHERA
AREPR—F——F+t—A=-+N\BZ
WA - ZETEIE ESAKE A AEE
2EE (BREAEEZBIFRBEISNE
= AEEZERSIKESEMALER
HIERE  (EAREHAKEMERRZ
HRE)HELR

REBZET R DB Z BT -

follows:
Participants Date of grant Vesting date Exercise period Exercise price
SEEE REAH BEAH (id TRE
Employees 29 February 2012 1 March 2013 1 March 2013 to 29 February 2016 HK$0.84
B8 “T——#-A-thB ZFT-=%=8-H 2 =4=A-HE"F-—F-H=FhA 0.8477T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HILFE
39. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued) 39. U BEBRNR @)
Equity-settled share option scheme (continued) UERREZERETE (w)
Details of the share options outstanding during the year are as RERRITERBEFIBAOT :
follows:
2016 2015
ZE-RE “T-RF
Number Weighted Number Weighted
of share average of share average
options exercise price options  exercise price
hnREFEg METS
BREZE TE EREHE 171e(8
’000 HK$ ‘000 HKS$
T4 BT T PBIT

Outstanding at the beginning RERITIE B

of the year 3,000 0.84 3,000 0.84
Expired during the year REANE 2 EAESRHE (3,000) —
Outstanding at the end RERRITIRRERE
of the year - N/A RERA 3,000 0.84
Exercisable at the end RER AT RS IR
of the year - N/A REFA 3,000 0.84
The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 have a weighted RZZE—RF+A=1T—HHERITHE
average remaining contractual life of 0.17 years and the exercise BREZITHEERC84EIT - METH
price is HK$0.84. There was no share option outstanding at 31 BTINANFHR0ATHE - R-_T—RF
December 2016. T A=+ — AR ARITEREIRAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

HE_Z—R"F+-A=+—RHILFE

40. WARRANTS

41.

On 17 February 2011, the Company issued a total of 95,000,000
warrants at nil consideration at an exercise price of HK$2 per
warrant share.

The movement of the warrants during the year is set out below:

40. RIRIEE

MRZBE——F_A++RH  KREAER
RREBER D 2B T2 TRERERETS

A3

$£ 95,000,000 17 FRMAERE -

FARBIEEZEBEIINT

Number of warrants
outstanding

RITEZREZYA
2016 2015
—E-R"E —T-hf
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price ’000 ‘000
R A g 18 T4 T
17 February 2011 17 February 2012 to 16 February 2016 HK$2 - 95,000
—T—%—_A++H T —F-At++AZ 28T

—E—RF-A+R~H

In 2016 and 2015, no warrant was utilised to subscribe for the
shares of the Company. The warrants were expired during the year
ended 31 December 2016.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 41.

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

R-B—RNFER-_ZT—HF HELFAR
MR B A ARE AR RIRG o RIRE
BERBEZ—~FT-A=1+—HI1
FEERIE -

B EIE

RIS - AEEEARELT

2016 2015
R ALS —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Capital expenditure contracted but not UTEEZEEBERRN
provided for in the consolidated A SRR IE L B
financial statements in respect of: ZEARAX
— acquisition of subsidiary — KB B A A 21,500 107,048
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—XR"F+-A=+—HILFE

42. LEASE COMMITMENTS 2. FHAENE

As lessee

At 31 December 2016 the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

1EREAA

RZB—RF+ZA=+—H0 AEER
BEAAREREEOEN 2 RRRERS
AERIT

2016 2015

—E-AF —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FiBT

Within one year —F A 3,643 15,653
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EERF

(EEMFEBEEAN) 3,624 37,608

7,267 53,261

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group
for its offices and staff quarters. Leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from half to three years (2015: one to four years) and
rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent
rentals.

As lessor

The Group leases out certain of its transmission and other network
equipment. At the end of reporting period, the future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable leases are receivables as

REBHNREARERNZETHAE
MERETER - BHEERRI L A¥
FE=F(ZFT—1F: —E0F) mH
EfFEESEE  TREXEESE -

ERHHEA

AEBEHHEEE T E R EMEHERME -
RIREHR - REBTABEHAOR R Z R
REBEHEESWT

follows:
2016 2015
—EB-RF —T—AF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
TFHET FETT
Within one year —&FR 111 —
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_FRERF
(BEMTBEEA) 120 =
231 —
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

42.

43.

LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued)

As lessor (continued)

Operating lease income represent rentals receivables by the Group
for its transmission and network equipment. Leases are negotiated
for terms of three years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms
and do not include contingent rentals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management compensation

BE-T—<E+-A=+—HILFE
42. FAXEE =)
ERBHHFN (#)

RRETHH WA FE AR 5 B R W 2 (8 8 [ 484
REEE - MR DEERIVA=F M
HEPRESEE - TEEXFHES -

43. BEALTR S
(a) TEEBANEZFH -

2016 2015

t A2 —ZT—IfF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FIT

Short term employee benefits pSEGI= =R 8,478 7,926
Post-employment benefits RIKBEA

— defined contribution plans — A EHNKGTE 58 85

8,536 8,011

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note
14 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRESHE 2 E— S FHBRARGRE I
HRMFE14
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016

44.

45.

190

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As detailed in note 25(j) to the consolidated financial statements,
On 7 June 2016, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement to acquire 100% equity interest in JTI Securities
Limited. The acquisition was completed on 23 March 2017 at a
consideration of approximately HK$22,800,000.

Upon completion of the acquisition, JTI Securities Limited become
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group and the financial
statements of JTI Securities Limited will be consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group upon completion of
the acquisition.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MZERBE

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for each

AEEDEMBAESHEZ FENREER

of the five financial periods is as follows: AEMERT
RESULTS &
Period from
1 July
2012 to Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
=
+A—BZ% gz #z 3z S
—E-CF —T—=F —E-mF —E-A1F —E-RE
+=H +=H =k T=E F=H
=+—H =+—H =—E SA e Sr=E
] EEE I35 LEFE 12354
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT FET FAT THET
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
BESEER (i E5) (&= E5) (&=751)
Revenue Yk 297,441 227,539 47,338 34,679 81,218
Profit/(loss) before taxation BEtANER/ (B8) (27,336) (1,013,928) (640,227 (313,964) (108,978)
Income tax expense/(credi) GRS/ (E%) (8,716) (16,698) (400) 1,391 59,551
Profit/(loss) for the period/year from  REFSERL K28,/
continuing operations FNEF/ (BR) (36,052) (1,030,626) (640,627) (312,573) (49,427)
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS A& IFiE#i
Loss for the period/year from REKIEEEB S/
discontinued operations FNER 37,214 (10,933) (132,348) (148,286) (8,653)
Profit/(loss) for the period/year 8/ FREH/ (F8) 1,162 (1,041,559) (772,975) (460,859) (58,080)
Attributed to: &1t
Owners of the Company KARHERA 1,162 (1,039,559) (768,322) (452,094) (53,840)
Non-controlling interests R RS = (2,000) (4,653) (8,765) (4,240)
1,162 (1,041,559) (772,975) (460,859) (58,080)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share FREARRF/ (FB)
(HK cents) (L) 0.04 (32.15) (22.33) (10.17) (0.70)
Diluted earnings/(loss) per share BREERT/ (BE)
(HK cents) (L) 0.04 (32.15) (22.33) 10.17) (0.70)
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MBEREE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
RZF——F RIT—=F RIT-OF HKIZT-1F RZB-5E
+=A +=A +=A +=A +=A
=+-H =+—H =f+—H =+-H Er=F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
THT T TR THT THEr
Non-current assets EnEEE 1,273,729 564,847 242,862 159,646 109,500
Current assets MEEE 639,108 1,182,368 689,166 308,948 123,372
Disposal group classified as PEARELEZ
held for sale HESE 581,152 171,678 = 254,362 245,268
Current liabilities mEaE (180,358) (705,992) (497,881) (467,893) (55,328)
Liabilities directly associated with HHEEE
the disposal group BRI AR (48,048) - - (64,246) (43,650)
Non-current liabilities EnBaE (225,679) (76,098) (76,406) (63,748) (1,768)
Net assets BEFE 2,039,904 1,136,803 357,741 127,069 377,394
Equity attributable to owners ARFIHEEA
of the Company [EfE R 2,039,904 1,111,111 336,702 67,382 366,943
Non-controlling interests R R E R - 25,692 21,039 59,687 10,451
Total equity ks 2,039,904 1,136,803 357,74 127,069 377,394
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Tel B4 : (852) 3678 5500
Fax #H : (852) 3178 9884
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